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BONNEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION'S
PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 1994 BUDGET

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 28, 1993

House of Representatives,
Task Force on Bonneville Power Administration,

Committee on Natural Resources,
Washington, DC.

The task force met, pursuant to call, at 1:00 p.m., in room 1324,

Longworth House Office Building, Hon. Peter DeFazio [chairman of

the task force] presiding.

STATEMENT OF HON. PETER A. DeFAZIO

Mr. DeFazio. I think we are going to get started. It is one

o'clock. You may certainly seat yourself. Randy. I have an opening

statement. Since this is the first meeting of the task force, I am
going to read an opening statement, something I don't usually do,

and then I will recognize other members of the task force as they

come in, and then we will go to your testimony and then questions.

Today the Natural Resources Committee's Bonneville Power Ad-

ministration Task Force holds its first hearing. I particularly want
to thank Chairman Miller for the creation of the task force and for

naming me its chairman. I am looking forward to the hearings that

we will hold over the next six months, and I want to play a creative

and active role in helping the BPA to meet the challenges it faces,

both in the near term and during the next decade.

Today's hearing will focus on BPA's near-term financial condi-

tion. A unique set of circumstances have forced BPA to consider a

rate increase that could exceed 20 percent. But the BPA's short-

term problems will not go away with a few good water years or

higher world aluminum prices. The problems are much deeper than

that, and the fix must be more fundamental. So regardless of the

facts of the current situation, I believe we would be here today no

matter what.
In 1937, just over 50 years ago. Congress created the BPA to

market power fi*om the federal projects on the Columbia River. In

1974, BPA was made a self-financing agency and given power to

borrow money fi-om the Federal Treasury. Then in 1980, Congress

passed the Northwest Power Act which expanded the BPA's mis-

sion to include responsibility for acquiring resources to meet the re-

gion's energy needs. Energy conservation and renewable resources

were given priority over other forms of generation, and fish and
wildlife were given parity with power production.

The Northwest Power Planning Council was created to develop

plans for the orderly acquisition of conservation and other electric

(1)



resources. The Council was also charged with developing a program
to protect, mitigate, and enhance fish and wildlife populations af-

fected by the hydroelectric facilities on the Columbia River system,

Toda3^s hearing is a springboard to the real work of this task
force. Over the course of the next six months, we will take a long

and detailed look at how well Bonneville is meeting those expecta-

tions, the ones that Congress had when it passed the Northwest
Power Act. We will consider ways we can restructure the BPA to

enable it to better meet the extraordinary challenges it will face in

its next 50 years.

The Northwest's failed experiment in nuclear power led to the

passage of the Northwest Power Act. It also led to my first involve-

ment in regional energy issues. In the early 1980s, I sued over the

ability of the Washin^on Public Power Supply System, or WPPSS,
to hold the ratepayers of Springfield, Oregon, liable for the costs of

two of its five proposed nuclear power plants.

As it happened, only one of the WPPSS plants was ever com-
pleted. Two are in mothballs, and the region's ratepayers have
been paying for that boondoggle ever since.

By the BPA's estimate, between 15 and 25 percent of the average
residential ratepayer's bill is eaten up by BPA's liability for two un-

finished WPPSS plants and one that is limping along, at best. At
least 25 percent of the agency's budget goes toward debt service,

operations, and mothballing costs of the WPPSS plants.

While we labor under the burden of WPPSS, an even larger crisis

looms. Threatened and endangered Snake River salmon runs and
the decline of other Columbia River stocks, could lead to a regional

nightmare that would make the spotted owl look like a Sunday pic-

nic. It is imperative that the BPA and all other users of the Colum-
bia River system take responsible actions now—today—consistent,

long-term, scientifically supportable actions to avert that potential

crisis.

I have deep-seated concerns about the BPA's long-term prospects.

We need a new and more competitive Bonneville, but one that con-

tinues to maintain its leadership in energy efficiency and environ-

mental protection. These are concerns for the longer term. How-
ever, the task force cannot ignore the fact that decisions will be

made this year that could have profound effects on BPA's ability

to meet its long-term mandates.
I am disturbed that many of these decisions are being made in

closed-door settlement discussions between Bonneville and a select

group of its utility and industrial customers. BPA certainly has a

responsibility to its customers, but it also has a broader respon-

sibility to the region at large, as well as the United States Con-

gress. And Congress—in the form of this task force, under the ju-

risdiction of this committee—intends to play a significant role in

reshaping Bonneville for the future.

I share many of the concerns expressed by Bonneville's utility

and industrial customers. Bonneville is too big, and it is too ineffi-

cient. It should look more like a business and less like a bloated

bureaucracy. And, in my judgment, a more efficient BPA can not

only deliver cost-effective conservation and reliable low-cost power
but can better satisfy its broader social and environmental respon-

sibilities.



My hope is that we can avoid another WPPSS or spotted-owl-

type fiasco by making sensible energy and environmental choices

today. That is the purpose of this hearing and of the many hear-

ings we will be holding during the next six months.

In closing, I do have one caution for members of the panel. The
BPA is in the midst of a formal rate case proceeding. The task force

has no intention of influencing the Administrator's decision in the

present rate case. I urge every member of the task force to exercise

care in questioning or pressuring the Administrator. At the same
time, this panel has a legitimate oversight function which I fully

intend to exercise.

As we move through this, if I believe one of the members of the

panel has gone beyond the bounds of question, I will caution the

member, and if the Administrator himself, in responding or being

asked to respond, has a concern, he should express it, and we will

deal with it at that time.

At this point, I would like to recognize other members of the task

force and see if they have any opening statements.

Mr. Sharp.

STATEMENT OF HON. PHILIP R. SHARP

Mr. Sharp. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I am very pleased to be a part of the task force and work under

your leadership. You, I have learned from previous experience,

have already been very active and given a great deal of leadership

to concerns about energy supply and consimier issues in your part

of the country, and those of us who are not from that part certainly

respect that leadership.

I was personally involved in the legislation, the Northwest Power
Act, when it was passed. I am not sure that it is wise for one to

claim any involvement now or not, I don't know. We will find out

as we go through this. So I am very much looking forward to work-

ing with you. Obviously, this is of profound concern to the people

who are served by the Bonneville power system, but obviously it

also has major implications for some of the surrounding States,

California in particular. Also it has ripple effects throughout the

entire electric utility industry in this country. So these issues are

not to be taken lightly, and I appreciate your effort.

Mr. DeFazio. I am pleased to have the gentleman, particularly

with his experience in the writing of the Act, and certainly with his

work on the Energy and Commerce Committee, he will be very

complementary. I am glad to have him here.

I would like to recognize my colleague from Oregon, Bob Smith.

STATEMENT OF HON. ROBERT F. SMITH

Mr. Smith. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Hardy, welcome.
I want to thank you, Mr. Chairman, for holding this first meet-

ing. I think it will be productive to have oversight responsibility

over a very difficult time for Bonneville Power Administration.

I want to compliment Mr. Hardy's short but very successful term

as a leader in the Bonneville Power Administration programs, and
what a difficult time since he has arrived. We have got a horrible

problem with the drought in the upper Canadian regions which



provide us with most of the runoff that fiiels the river. We have
a situation in which Bonneville has to increase its revenues and I

know it has been struggling with that question. Of course, as we
increase the rates, it is passed on to producers in the Bonneville
Power canopy.
Beyond that, we are grappling with a Btu energy tax proposed

by the Clinton Administration which will have an additional im-
pact upon those users of energy in the Northwest, and many of us,
I think, in our region question the reasonableness of taxing a clean,
renewable energy source like hydropower at the same level that
you tax fossil fuel plant energy development.

In fact, last month I had a representative from Northwest Alu-
minum in my office who testified before the Ways and Means Com-
mittee on the President's proposed tax package on hydropower. He
said that if the proposed rate increase goes through, that they are
out of business, and that means 489 people in The Dalles, Oregon,
are out of work.
So with the energy tax and the inland waterway fee which will

be passed on, I don t envy Mr. Hardj^s position and job in juggling
these numbers. But the rate increase which may be double-digit
that Bonneville is discussing plus these additional taxes to be
passed on seem to me to be an invasion of private interest and cer-

tainly of the people who convert energy to productive means in the
Pacific Northwest.
So thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am looking forward to the testi-

mony of Mr. Hardy.
[Prepared statement of Mr. Smith follows:]

Statement of Congressman Robert F. (Bob) Smith

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for holding this hearing. I am hopeful that
in the next six months we can address some key issues about how we csm make
the Bonneville Power Administration more competitive and how they can continue
to play a role in economic development in the Pacific Northwest.

In addition, I want to commend Mr. Hardy for the excellent job he has done dur-
ing his relatively short tenure at BPA. He has a big challenge ahead of him and
in many respects, he has joined the battle at perhaps the worst possible time.

Unfortunately, he's not getting a whole lot of help from the current Administra-
tion. To use a boxing analogy, BPA ratepayers have already been rocked by a left

hook from extreme drought, low aluminum prices and the Endangered Species Act.

Now President Clinton is poised to deliver tne knockout blowout with his excessive
and unjustifiable Btu tax.

Like many of my colleagues from the Northwest, I am not clear about the wisdom
of taxing a clean, renewable energy source like hydropower on the same level as an
average fossil fuel plant. It just doesn't make sense.
Last month, a representative of Northwest Aluminum in The Dalles testified be-

fore the Ways and Meeuis Committee about the President's tax on hydropower. The
message he gave to the Committee was simple: If you add an unfair Btu tax on to

BPA's proposed rate increase, they are out oi business and 489 people in The Dalles
are out of work.

In my district, it doesn't end there. Like the mighty Columbia River, the taxes
iust keep rolling along. If you add the Btu tax to other Administration proposals
like the 500% increase in the Inland Waterway User Fee, a typical Oregon wheat
farm is going to pay over $12,000 in additional costs.

In my mind, a double-digit rate increase from Bonneville is serious enough. But
if the Northwest keeps getting hit by the Administration's taxes, it goes beyond a
knockout blow. It's kicking us when we're on the ground.

Mr. Chairman, I look forward to the testimony we will hear today from Mr.
Hardy.
Thank you.

Mr. DeFazio. Thank you.



Ms. Shepherd.

STATEMENT OF HON. KAREN SHEPHERD

Ms. Shepherd. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am dehghted to be

here learning about this process.

Utah is one of those places that will be impacted by what the de-

cisions are, and I look forward to representing their interests.

Thank you.

Mr. DeFazio. Mr. LaRocco.

STATEMENT OF HON. LARRY LaROCCO

Mr. LaRocco. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and it is with great

pleasure that I refer to my colleague from Oregon as "Mr. Chair-

man" today, and hope that this reference becomes permanent in

the future. Thank you also. Chairman DeFazio, for taking on the

immense task of oversight of the BPA, or Bonneville Power Admin-

istration.

Both Bonneville and the entire Northwest, including Idaho, have

benefited from strong leadership in the region's congressional dele-

gation over the years. As a result, BPA has been able to provide

electric power at consistent and predictable rates. It is vital to the

future of both Bonneville and the Northwest that BPA remain

strong and yet flexible to cope with the challenges which face the

Nation and our region.

One of these challenges is whether and to what degree wild Chi-

nook and sockeye salmon will return to Idaho. Although I know the

main thrust of today's hearing is budgetary, I do want to make a

few comments about the endangered salmon which also affect

BPA's budget.
Many of the members of this task force are well aware of the

amazing odyssey of the Snake River salmon. For thousands of

years, these salmon, bom in headwater streams and lakes, mi-

grated up to 1,000 miles to the Pacific Ocean. Beginning as far in-

land as Red Fish Lake, named for the color of the salmon, in

Central Idaho, they roamed as far north as Alaska and as far south

as California before returning upstream to their birthplace to

spawn.
In 1985, Snake River coho salmon were declared extinct. In 1991,

Snake River sockeye, spring, summer and fall chinook were listed

as threatened or endangered under the Endangered Species Act. In

1992, just one sockeye returned to Red Fish Lake. For these mag-

nificent fish to become extinct under our watch is simply unaccept-

able, so we have a lot of work to do.

Along those lines, Mr. Chairman, I have prepared a number of

questions, which I ask to submit for the record, and will do so at

the proper time. I look forward to Mr. Hardy's testimony and fol-

low-up questions, and I appreciate his presence here today at this

heEiring.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DeFazio. I appreciate the gentleman's remarks and would

state that we will hold a future hearing focusing on this issue, and

we will work together with the gentleman to coordinate the site of

that hearing and the timing.



With that, we have one witness. This is, to my mind, a shghtly

unusual hearing. Usually we have an array of witnesses. But we
have the very capable administrator and some support staff here,

and I would recognize the gentleman at this time.

My understanding is, you will probably take 15 minutes or so in

your opening remarks, and then we will go to questions.

So, Mr. Hardy.

STATEMENT OF RANDALL W. HARDY, ADMINISTRATOR, BON-
NEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION, DEPARTMENT OF EN-
ERGY, PORTLAND, OREGON
Mr. Hardy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
With your permission, I would like to have my formal written

statement entered in the record, and I would like to take 10 or 15

minutes at the opening to talk about the charts to my left—and I

think you have handouts that replicate the charts. I will talk a Ut-

tle bit about our current financial situation to try to set the con-

text.

Mr. DeFazio. Let's suspend for a second. Let's make sure people

can locate these. This would be the initial rate proposal?

Mr. Hardy. Right. The top sheet is the same as on this chart

here, the initial rate proposal. Then you have a variety of colored

graphics that relate both to the water conditions and to different

aspects of our budget and how that spUts out.

Mr. DeFazio. All right. Thank you.

[The charts follow:]
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Northwest Seasonal Precipitation to Date
October 1, 1992 to April 1, 1993
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Mr. Hardy. Bonneville faces probably the most extraordinary set

of circumstances that it has ever had to deal with in its 55-year

history. Basically, as a result of water condition changes in the last

two to three months, our financial condition has deteriorated by
over a quarter of a billion dollars. What I want to describe today,

right now, are the near-term financial circumstances that we are

having to cope with and our strategy for doing that.

Quite apart from the near-term circumstances, however, are a

longer-term series of competitive issues. Mr. Chairman, you al-

luded to these in your remarks, and all I can say is, I fully agree

that we have a series of mid- and long-term competitiveness issues

that we have to successfully address if we are to remain a competi-

tive supplier of low-priced electrical energy for our consumers in

the Pacific Northwest. This near-term crisis simply highlights the

need to take immediate action both in the near term and in the

mid and long term to address those kinds of problems.

The first chart has to deal with the initial rate proposal that we
made in early January of this year. We have a rate cycle of basi-

cally every two years. This rate increase will go into effect on Octo-

ber 1, 1993. The initial rate proposal was basically for an 11.6 per-

cent rate increase. Its components were, as illustrated in the chart,

basically fish and wildlife, resource acquisitions, conservation ex-

penses, drought, and aluminum prices, and less than 1 percent

being all other expenses. That is where we were as of early Janu-

ary.

In the months of January and February we had three things

happen to us that dramatically changed our financial condition.

First, we had a substantial drop-off in precipitation from the rest

of the basin—John, if you could switch the chart.

This chart illustrates what has happened to us. This is as of

April 1 for the water year which began on October 1, 1992. Basi-

cally, the legend here is: yellow and orange are below average rain-

fall; green and blue are above-average rainfall. So you can see that

a good portion of the State of Oregon and southern Idaho are in

reasonably good shape from a precipitation standpoint. But it just

so happens that all of our major storage reservoirs, as illustrated

on the chart—namely. Grand Coulee, Libby, Hungry Horse,

Dworshak, Keenleyside, Duncan, and Mica—are all in the yellow or

in the pink sections. Namely, those are all in areas that are well

below average in terms of their precipitation.

We had the driest February of record in the Pacific Northwest.

We have had the driest six consecutive water years of record, and
the 1992/1993 water years are the second worst consecutive water
years of record. Only 1944 and 1945 were worse, and the list of

worsts or second worsts goes on and on relative to the set of cir-

cumstances in which we find ourselves today.

But low precipitation was only one of three things that happened
to us in January and February. The second thing that happened
was a dramatic cold snap in mid-January that both sent demand
way up and dried up or froze up stream flows, so we had little or

no inflow to the reservoirs.

Those three factors—dramatic drop-off" in precipitation, dramatic

drop-off in stream flows, and substantial increases in demsind for
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our product—caused us to make $170 million of unbudgeted power
purchases in January, February, and early March.

In addition to those unbudgeted power purchases, we also suf-

fered a revenue deterioration of about another $40 million because
the snowpack was lower than we had predicted. Hence we would
not have the same amount of revenues from surplus power sales
to California and other utilities once the snow melted.
The net effect of those three actions—the increased demand and

stream flow drop-off plus the low precipitation—^was to have our
revenue circumstances deteriorate by the quarter of a billion dollar
figure that I just alluded to.

This next chart shows you, in a rate sense and in a dollar sense,
what the effect of this change in circumstances was in January and
February. These are all in addition to the numbers on the first

page.
Basically, the drought, the dry water conditions, added 8 percent-

age points to the rate increase. Increased fish and wildlife ex-

penses, primarily the increased cost of purchasing energy to pro-
vide storage for the 3 million acre-feet of water we are required to

provide in the Columbia and the 1.4 million acre-feet in the Snake,
cost a lot more because power prices went up. That added about
another 2 percentage points to the rate increase.

Finally, worldwide aluminum prices deteriorated further, or the
recovery looked like it was going to be postponed yet further. This
added another 2 to 3 percentage points to our revenue shortfall. We
receive about 25 percent of our revenues from our aluminum com-
pany customers.
The net effect of these three factors was to add 12 to 13 percent-

age points to the 11.5 percent initial rate proposal. Right now, if

we were to do nothing, to take no other actions other than business
as usual, we would be looking at a 23 to 25 percent rate increase.

When these numbers came together five weeks ago, I concluded
that this level of rate increase was simply unacceptable for the re-

gion to accept and survive. So, we set about an exercise to go back
and cut all of our budgets across the board to try to minimize the
size of the rate increase.

What we have, I want to emphasize, is a revenue problem. Our
expenses other than purchase power didn't change at all in the last

three months, what changed was our revenue picture. That being
said, the only tools we have to deal with this problem are on the
expense side of the equation. So, we are using those tools to the
maximum extent possible.

What I announced three weeks ago and what I directed the staff

to do five weeks ago were three things: First, we are going to cut
our administrative expenses by 50 percent for the duration of the
fiscal year. Second, we are going to look to cut program expenses
anywhere from 5 to 25 percent. Our basic programs are trans-

mission, maintenance, fish and wildlife, conservation, and genera-
tion. Finally, we have started the process to terminate the two
mothballed Washington Public Power Supply System plants, Plants
1 and 3, to realize the savings of some $10 million a year in preser-

vation costs associated with those two plants.

I would now like to talk a little bit, given that we are moving
in that direction, about what we have to deal with in our budget
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so you get some feel for the order of magnitude of what is possible

in terms of cutting the budget and its effect on the rate increase.

Next slide please, John.

I'm sorry, before we get to the pie charts, this graph simply illus-

trates in a graphic sense the sum of the previous two graphics.

A year and a half ago when I took over as Administrator, we had

$900 miUion in reserves and were projecting that we would end fis-

cal year 1993 with over $1 bilUon worth of reserves. Today, given

the circumstances that I have just described, we are projecting that

we will end fiscal year 1993 with $90 milhon worth of reserves

after we make our annual pa5mient to the Treasury.

The significance of the $90 miUion figure is that that is working

capital for us. Between the time that we make our annual Treasury

payment on September 30 and the time utility power bills, which

are our revenue source, start coming in the third week in October,

the cash flow in those three to four weeks is $80 to $100 million

in a typical October. So we are already in the cash flow range rel-

ative to m^ng our annual Treasury payment.

I still remain confident that we can make that payment, but we
do have exposures. If we have other unanticipated cost increases as

a result of further worsening in weather conditions, farther Endan-

gered Species Act requirements, or other sorts of circumstances,

that could impair our ability to do that. The graphic simply illus-

trates the causes of that deterioration in a graphic sense as op-

posed to a numbers sense in the $90 million reserve level.

Next slide, please.

This is the overall Bonneville budget. The point of this graph is,

about 25 percent of our budget is our current expense budget. Th^s

is the controllable portion of our expense budget. I suspect our

budget does not look unlike those that you have seen in the Fed-

eral Government.
We have a lot of fixed costs. The blue, which is 15 percent, rep-

resents Federal interest; that is the interest on the Federal debt

ft-om the dams and fi-om the transmission system. The non-Federal

debt service, which is 23 percent, is primarily WPPSS debt. Depre-

ciation is 11 percent. The net cost of residential exchange is 8 per-

cent. Finally, other entities, or basically Army Corps of Engineers

and Bureau of Reclamation expenditures, over which we can re-

quest reductions but over which we have no realistic direct control,

is 18 percent of our annual expense budget.

That leaves about 25 percent of our budget, that is what we call

our current operations budget. That is the principal discretionary

portion of our budget.

Let's go to the next slide, please.

This shows the current operations portion of our budget, some

$560 million worth of expenses. Of this portion of the budget, 39

or 40 percent, the one labeled the green or orange segment—it is

orange on the chart; I think it is green on your graphic; unfortu-

nately, we have switched our colors here—is basically power pur-

chases. This is weather driven. These are expenses, at least that

I would argue, that are not discretionary. To the degree you start

taking risks with these, you literally are taking risks with whether

you are going to keep the lights on or not.
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So, you have about 60 percent of our current operations budget
that is the truly discretionary portion of our budget. That means
we have about $340 miUion, give or take, to work with in terms
of abihty to cut our budget and have a meaningful impact on the
rate increase.

Basically, on the expense side, $25 million equates to one per-
centage point on the rate increase. So the total budget is roughly
equivalent 13 or 14 percentage points. A 50 percent cut in the cur-

rent options budget would give you $170 million, or roughly 6 to

7 percentage points off the rate increase.

Next slide, please.

Mr. Chairman, this graphic shows permanent Bonneville Federal
employment. There were a number of committee questions, about
what our staffing levels have been. The point of this graph is that
our overall employment has been roughly steady for the last 20
years. It has varied plus or minus 5 percent, around a median of

about 3,500 employees, for the last 20 years. The low has been a
little below 3,300; the high has been almost 3,700. Last year, in fis-

cal year 1992, we were at 3,667, and that is about the level that
we expect to come in at this year. So, we have some fluctuations
up and down, but basically we have stable staffing. That does not
include contractor staffing or other kinds of staffing, and I suspect
we will get into that in the questions.
Next slide, please.

The other principal tool, other than budget reductions, that we
have to control the size of the rate increase is taking a somewhat
greater risk on making our annual payment to the U.S. Treasury.
Our long-term goal is to have a 95 percent confidence level of re-

paying Treasury. In the initial rate case proposal, we concluded it

was too expensive to get there all in one rate case, so we lowered
that to a 90 percent probability of repa3dng Treasury.
To decrease the size of the current rate increase, we could fur-

ther lower that probability to 85 or 80 percent, and that gives you
1.7 and 3 percentage points worth of rate benefit, respectively.

That is the other principal tool that we have. There are some oth-

ers, like the level of working capital, but that pretty much runs out
the tool kit of measures that we have to take this 24-25 percent
rate increase and get it down into the range that is more accept-

able. My goal is to definitely get it below 20 percent. The customers
in the settlement discussions that you alluded to coalesced around
a goal of 14 to 15 percent. We are working jointly to try to get to

that goal. I am not sure whether we can make that much of a
change, but we are clearly dedicated to getting as close to that goal
as we can.

I might say one other thing, Mr. Chairman, anticipating a ques-
tion, but drawing from your original opening statement. It is true,

we did have settlement discussions with a number of the rate case

parties two weeks ago. By the nature of the rate case process, only
the parties to the rate case were allowed to be participants in those
settlement discussions.

However, I would observe that those discussions included not
just customers of Bonneville, but also included the Northwest Con-
servation Act Coalition, Northwest Environmental Defense Council,

and other environmental groups. As a matter of fact, NCAC and
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others made some quite constructive proposals around the concept

of tiered rates and others. So, you had a larger spectrum of interest

than just Bonneville's utility customers represented. That being

said, it is true that by the nature of the rate case process only par-

ties to the rate case were allowed to be participants in those settle-

ment discussions.

That concludes my opening remarks, Mr. Chairman. I think it

gives you a fair idea of where we are and our current financial cir-

cumstances. I would be happy to talk about that and talk about the

longer-term competitiveness of Bonneville, or answer any other

questions the committee may have.

[Prepared statement of Mr. Hardy follows:]
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Statement of Randall W. Hardy, Administrator,

Bonneville Power Administration

April 28. 1993

Chairman DeFazio, it is a pleasure to appear before the Bonneville Power

Administration Task Force. In upcoming months, we look fooA^ard to a series of

productive discussions on the challenges facing Bonneville today, and how we

can work together towards meeting the Northwest's energy and environmental

futures.

We face immediate and critical challenges. Our region is in the middle of one of

the most critically dry water conditions in Its history-a situation which will likely

impact the Northwest for several years to come.

My testimony will focus on how this year's unprecedented events seriously

eroded Bonneville's financial condition. I will also present the actions we are

taking to restore Bonneville's fiscal health.

FiNANCiAL SITUATION

Mr. Chainnan, it has been an extraordinary year. When we put our 1992-93

rates in place, we anticipated having nearty $1 billion in reserves at the end of

Fiscal Year 1993. At the present time, we are projecting a reserve level of about

$90 million by the end of the fiscal year.

Recent developments are particularly troubling. In three months, our projected

reserves eroded by over $250 million.
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This dramatic decline has been driven by factors generally outside our control.

Continued drought conditions, low aluminum prices, and Endangered Species

Act costs have significantly reduced our net revenues compared to expectations

when the rates were put in place in October, 1991.

The Northwest hydropower system is under its greatest stress ever.

Streamflows between August and Febmary were the lowest since 1926. '

The last two years have been the second worst consecutive water years in

Bonneville's 55-year history. Only the years 1944-1945 were worse. Continuing

drought conditions are causing severe reductions in the operating levels of

Federal reservoirs. And, it is becoming increasingly expensive to store water to

aid the spring juvenile migration of threatened and endangered salmon.

Drought conditions impact Bonneville in two key areas-reduced revenues from

sale of nonfirm energy and surplus revenues and increased purchase power

costs to cover our fimn load and fish flow obligations. Both have contributed

significantly to the decline of our forecasted net revenues.

Drought conditions are not the sole cause of our financial difficulties. The

region's aluminum industry, which provides about one-fourth of Bonneville's

revenues, is suffering from continued low aluminum prices. Because

Bonneville's revenues from the smelters are tied to worldwide aluminum prices,

we have been impacted as well.
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As our contracts require, the drought forced us to restrict 25 percent of the

interruptible portion of aluminum companies' loads in order to meet the firm

power needs of all our region's customers. Regretfully, this put people out of

work, damaging the region's economy.

The listing of three species of Snake River salmon as threatened or endangered

has also had a deleterious effect on our net revenues. Much of the costs of

measures to protect listed salmon is associated v^ith changing the hydrosystem's

operation to increase streamflows. The cost of implementing these measures is

significantly increased in years when streamflows are low. For example, the cost

of meeting our Columbia and Snake River flow obligations for these listed

Species is roughly $110 million in 1993.

Unfortunately, this year has illustrated our extreme sensitivity to weather

conditions and aluminum prices. Our system planning incorporates flexibility

and safety to ensure reliable system operation; however, the number of severe

and unusual simultaneous events occurring this year is clearly unprecedented.

Should our projected revenues be hammered further by unanticipated events

such as extended drought conditions, or the loss of a generating facility, this

could seriously Impact our ability to make a full Treasury payment this year.
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Last year, as the potential for a large rate Increase became clearer, Bonneville

conducted it's public budget review process. Programs in Perspective. As a

result of Programs in Perspective, we reduced costs by $270 million and were

able to reduce an 1 8 to 20 percent projected rate increase to the 1 1 .6 percent

initial rate proposal announced in January.

The events of the last three months, however, have put us in a crisis situation.

Due to the continued drought conditions and depressed aluminum market, we

are now estimating our rate increase will be significantly higher-substantially in

excess of 20 percent if no further action is taken. In addition, we are in the

"danger zone" concerning our ability to make a full Treasury payment this year.

These levels of Treasury payment risk and rate increase are simply not

acceptable.

COST REDUCTIONS

Extraordinary measures are needed to meet this extraordinary situation. To

meet this unprecedented situation, we are taking three immediate actions.

First, we will cut administrative costs by 50 percent for the remainder of fiscal

year 1993. We will do this by:

• Limiting travel;

• Eliminating most training;

• Reducing use of overtime;
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• Cutting ofTice supply purchases;

• Limiting use of support service contracts; and

• Reducing temporary and on-site contractor employment

Second, we are examining reductions in our programs in fiscal years 1994 and

1995 ranging from 5 to 25 percent. The principal program areas affected would

be transmission system development, operations and maintenance, energy

resources (both conservation and generation), and fish and wildlife.

While we have not made any final decision, I have given Bonneville staff two

guidelines. First, seek to reduce levels of program increases or flatten out these

programs, but do not look for absolute reductions from fiscal year 1992 program

levels. In a word, "cut, but do not gut" our principal programs. Second, try to

achieve rough equity among our four major program areas.

Finally, we have already initiated efforts to terminate Washington Public Power

Supply System Nuclear Plants 1 and 3. These plants are currently mothballed at

an annual cost of roughly $10 million. Savings from their termination can

probably start to be realized in fiscal year 1995. in addition to preservation cost

savings, it is prudent to terminate these plants because their 40 mill cost to

complete is substantially above the acquisition cost of plentiful conservation and

gas-fired resources in the Northwest.
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Presently, we do not know how much specific areas will be cut, especially from

our fish and wildlife, resource acquisition, and transmission programs. However,

I can assure you that across the board, we are taking a very close look and will

be taking immediate actions. We will deliver final program decisions in June.

There are, however, limits to our ability to make significant cost reductions.

Approximately 85 percent of our budget is either fixed costs or is controlled by

entities other than Bonneville, or purely weather driven.

In identifying potential cost-cutting opportunities, we will continue to work closely

with our customers, the Northwest Power Planning Council, and other regional

parties. We would welcome the Task Force's input into establishing priorities for

our cost-cutting activities.

PROGRAMS IN PERSPECTIVE

I want to take this opportunity to point out that Bonneville goes to great lengths

to assure that its programs, which are ratepayer funded, serve Northwest

interests. In 1987, we established Programs in Perspective to involve

Bonneville's stakeholders in the agency's strategic directions and specific

program planning. This annual process creates a forum for determining the

priorities for spending regional ratepayer dollars.
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Through Programs in Perspective, Bonneville has established a history of broad-

based, regional, public participation. The process draws together all of

Bonneville's planning processes into a single package of program descriptions

and budgets. These discussions contribute significantly to our final program

decisions. The budget which was submitted to the Congress reflects input from

this regional process. It is a proven link involving over 500 regional parties. It

has been a model program for others in both the U.S. and Canada.

The dialogue borne through Programs In Perspective will also assist in defining

a new long-term goal of our highest priority-competitiveness.

COMPETITIVENESS

There is an immediate need to cut our programs given the fiscal crisis we face.

But, we have also embarked on a new longer-term program to Improve

Bonneville's competitiveness. Our plan is to become more market-driven,

customer-focused, cost-conscious, and results-oriented. While recognizing our

unique social responsibilities, as a Federal agency, we will apply sound

business principles to good government.

To achieve this, we are first looking at ways to become more efficient. We will

seek out greater efficiencies in existing processes and programs. We will look

for added value from new products and services. And, we are eliminating

activities no longer needed.
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We will also move to "unbundle" our power products and transmission services.

Our goal is to provide greater variety and more customized services to better

match customers' needs and the markets they serve. Possibilities will include

different types of transmission for different voltages, load-shaping, storage, and

transmission and integration services. Bonneville will also examine and

consider multiple rates for multiple products-concepts such as tiered rates will

be explored as well. Everything will be on the table.

CONCLUSION

We will continue to work closely with Congress, the region, our customers, and

other parties to address these short-term financial difficulties-and more

importantly, our long-term strategy to remain competitive in the changing

Northwest energy markets. I am confident of our determination to regain

Bonneville's fiscal strength and help stabilize the Northwest economy. We will

work closely with you and the committee in defining Bonneville's role for the next

decade.

This concludes my statement, I would t>e pleased to address your questions.
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Mr. DeFazio. Thank you, Mr. Hardy.
I would first recognize Mr. Thomas if he has any opening re-

marks.
Mr. Thomas. No, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DeFazio. Thank you.

We will proceed to questions, and we will try and hold to the

five-minute rules, and I would expect multiple rounds. I could fill

up a lot of five-minute segments. So we will begin, and I will take

the first five minutes on the settlement discussions.

The concern is that you formulate a two-year budget, the Council

has put forward a program independent of that in but response.

You develop a budget; the budget is cleared through, I guess, DOE
and 0MB. The concern and part of the reason for holding this

hearing is that as you get into rate settlement—and, again, we are

not going to discuss the pending rate case or your intentions there-

in—but the point is that it seems that policy is potentially made
by financial decisions. I am just concerned that we don't break the

link here between accountability outside of the agency to the Coun-
cil or outside of the region to the Congress and to the administra-

tion in those sorts of discussions. I might just leave it at that. If

you want to comment on that, you can. Otherwise, I will go on to

other questions.

Mr. Hardy. I would say I agree with you, Mr. Chairman. I as-

sume that that is one of the purposes of this hearing and of suc-

ceeding hearings.

I might also observe that in making these program reductions,

particularly in the conservation, generation, and fish and wildlife

area, we are working very closely with the Power Planning Council

to try to make sure that we keep that linkage between policy and
our current financial circumstances as tight as possible.

As a matter of fact, the Council is holding a hearing tomorrow
on the Northwest on just this subject. I expect the hearing will be

very well attended, and we will have a very spirited debate. We
have encouraged the Council to do that, and they were, as a matter

of fact, the first group that I sat down with once I concluded that

I needed to do something of this nature to try to make sure that

we, to the maximum extent possible, could go down this road to-

gether.

Mr. DeFazio. The airlines love us for scheduling these things

this way. I assume a lot of the audience will be back there for that

hearing tomorrow, although I guess you will be here for other hear-

ings.

Mr. Hardy. Yes, sir.

Mr. DeFazio. Just a couple of comments before I get to my for-

mal questions.
When you talked about your scope of control and you were talk-

ing about the pie chart and pulled out your 25 percent, which does,

in fact, to some extent, mirror the Federal budget when we talk

about entitlements, but I am curious on a couple of points. We have
the other entities, the Corps and Bureau, and you said you could

request reduction but you have no control. Have you anticipated or

entered into any discussions with them to deal with that?

I don't know, are they that whole 18 percent, or does some of

that 18 percent—^where does WPPSS operations come in? We have
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got non-Federal debt service, which is 23 percent. I understand
that; residential exchange; Federal interest. Where do you put
WPPSS operating costs? Is that on other entities, 18 percent? Is

that in there? I am just curious. What is that 18 percent block?

Mr. Hardy. I believe WPPSS operating costs are part of that,

along with the Corps and the Bureau, and those are the three prin-

cipal factors associated with that.

Mr. DeFazio. Okay. Then I would just like to have a brief discus-

sion of that. First off, have you thought about, considered, entered

into discussions with the Corps or the Bureau regarding their

share of that and seen whether or not there are any potential re-

ductions there given the extraordinary circumstances that confront

you?
Mr. Hardy. Yes, we have. We have both done that at the assist-

ant administrator level and at my level, and I am anticipating we
will get some reductions from both of those agencies. I don't expect

it to be a huge amount, but they are trying their best. The Bureau
in particular has been quite forthcoming in trying to present us

with some savings. We have deferred at least one capital project

that we otherwise would have directly funded at Hungry Horse.

That I think will provide us with some savings, and we are looking

for other savings as well.

Mr. DeFazio. Yes, I would urge you to be aggressive in dealing

with your fellow agencies, and maybe I will get a look at some of

their costs in more detail.

My imderstanding is that the Administrator does have a right of

review of the WPPSS expenses. Do you agree with that statement?

Mr. Hardy. Yes.
Mr. DeFazio. You have a right of review and
Mr. Hardy. We have a right of review of the Supply System ex-

penses. We have made the same request of the Supply System, and
we are actively working with them to try to identify those savings.

They are in the process of doing that, and at least the figures I saw
at the Supply System executive board meeting last week would in-

dicate that there are several million dollars of savings in the cur-

rent operating budget that are available. We are aggressively pur-

suing those with their cooperation.

Mr. DeFazio. In your formal responses you did note that WPPSS
was at the high end in terms of single plant operating utilities in

terms of their per-unit costs.

Mr. Hardy. That is correct.

Mr. DeFazio. What sort of scrutiny do you give to their budget?

Do you have a detail of staff that goes over their budget, or how
do you review their budget, their submission, their costs?

Mr. Hardy. We have about a 10- or 12-person staff that is per-

manently on site in Richland that not only reviews their budgets

but basically is into all aspects of their operations. So we are work-

ing with them on a continuous, day-to-day basis. One of those Bon-
neville staff people is an auditor who participates with Supply Sys-

tem staff and with their independent commercial auditor to audit

those expenses. We track and monitor that quite closely.

The Supply System has just hired a new managing director, and
I am optimistic that he is the kind of turnaround manager that will

help us produce even greater savings. I can tell you that in the few
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interactions that I have had with him, his observation has been, at

least on first blush, he thinks there are some significant staff sav-

ings available in the Supply System, and he intends to pursue that.

Mr. DeFazio. So he is going to earn his quarter of a million a
year?

Mr. Hardy. I would hope he would and then some.
Mr. DeFazio. That is good.
Mr. Hardy. I guess his observation was, he ran a very similar

utility in Texas where the staffing was considerably less than is at

the Supply System, and I suspect he will pursue that aggressively.

I expect him to, and the Supply System board expects him to.

Mr. DeFazio. Perhaps a good first step would be to say that you,

in fact, given your extraordinary circumstances, find their request
too high and ask them, since you—and I will get into this a little

later—but since you are considering across-the-board cuts, that you
recommend that they consider across-the-board cuts. I think it is

$240-some-odd million, their operating expense.
Mr. Hardy. $242 milhon a year.

Mr. DeFazio. Right, and we have the figure that—what was
it?—$25 million rates increase by 1 percent?
Mr. Hardy. Right.
Mr. DeFazio. So if we could get a 10 percent reduction there, we

could pick up a percent. A percent here and a percent there, and
pretty soon you have got real percents.

My time has expired, but I will get back to this. I want to recog-

nize other people so that I don't carry on at too great a length.

Mr. Smith.
Mr. Smith. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Hardy, I am interested in the irrigation discount as well as

the heavy industry discount like you give to aluminum production
folks. First, how much impact does the irrigation discount have on
your budget?
Mr. Hardy. It is about a $13 million impact. That was the

amount of the discount in 1992, I believe. That is about a half a
percent.

Mr. Smith. A half of 1 percent.
Mr. KLardy. Half of 1 percent; yes, sir.

Mr. Smith. And the heavy industry discount?
Mr. Hardy. It is not a discount, it is what we call a variable rate.

Mr. Smith. It is on the price of aluminum.
Mr. Hardy. Right. It varies not only with the cost of power but

also with the price of aluminum. So it has a slope to it. The base
rate floats up and down with the cost of power, but where you are
on the slope depends on what the world price of aluminum is.

Right now, because the world price of aluminum is so depressed,
the industry's rate is 18 mills, which is the lowest it can get under
the current rate structure.

Mr. Smith. And what was it at its peak?
Mr. Hardy. At its peak, I believe it was in the range of 26-27

mills. Our priority firm rate is 23.5 mills. So it was considerably
above that.

I guess the point I would make, Congressman Smith, is that in

the five or six years since the variable rate was initiated we have
about broken even. When aluminum prices were over a dollar a
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pound in 1988 and 1989, we made a lot of money, a little over a

quarter of a billion dollars. We basically now have lost that, if you
want to look at it that way, and we are about even.

However, the rate has probably kept on line some plants that

otherwise would have gone off line. In that sense we are probably,

in a net sense, ahead for having instituted the rate.

Mr. Smith. I want to get into this long-term competitiveness

issue. I think you mentioned it, and I want to talk about it a

minute, because we are faced here with not only yoxir needs for

revenue enhancement but also the question of how, with the Btu
tax, we keep our aluminum industries competitive, and I notice

that you have mentioned in an Ore^o/imn-reported statement that

the proposed energy tax on top of your proposed rate increases

could force utilities to abandon energy conservation programs. Do
you want to comment on that?

Mr. Hardy. I am a loyal member of the Administration, and I

support the Btu tax. Honestly, I have gotten myself in some trouble

because I have concerns, but I guess those are handled by forces

that are beyond my control.

Mr. Smith. I understand the 0MB, and I know how it operates,

and I understand your loyalty, and I am not trying to interfere

with that, but am trying to get your expert opinion about the long-

term competitiveness of rates in view of the increases that you
have established here you need, plus the increase that may occur

if there is a Btu tax.

Mr. Hardy. Let me describe to you in a factual sense, Congress-

man, what the compounding effect would be, and then everybody

can make whatever value judgments they think are appropriate.

I have just described to you a rate increase that, if we do noth-

ing, is 23 to 25 percent. We have described in these settlement dis-

cussions, which the chairman referred to earlier, an ability to get

that down around 20 percent. Our customers want it to be in the

14-15 range. Absent any other things going bad, we are probably

in that 15-20 percent range.

The Btu tax, if passed in its present form, would add 10-12 per-

centage points just in and of itself to Bonneville rates. In 1995, we
will be looking at another rate increase. I can't project with any
high degree of confidence what that rate increase will be, but it

probably would be in the high single digits.

So you could look at a three-year period of time where you could

easily draw up a scenario of a 40 percent or more increase in Bon-

neville rates as a result of forces that are already existent in our

rate structure, be they water or Endangered Species Act or low alu-

minum prices or external forces in the form of a Btu tax or poten-

tially repayment reform or other kinds of initiatives. I think it is

a pretty factual statement that those would have a serious competi-

tive impact not just on the aluminum industry, but on the irriga-

tion industry and on a number of other Bonneville customers.

Mr. Smith. I appreciate that.

This question of reservoir drawdown is something that is in the

experimental stage at the moment, I understand, and there is

questionable science about whether or not it saves salmon or

doesn't. But what are your views on the drawdown issue, and what
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are the costs that might be associated with the drawdown as we
have known it has been discussed at least?

Mr. Hardy. We are not opposed to drawdown. We would like to

see some form of biologic test before we commit to the large ex-

penditure that would be involved. In fact, we, the Corps and the

National Marine Fisheries Service are working with the recovery

team and others to try to design just such a test. We are kind of

a third party in this. It is much more the Corps and the National

Marine Fisheries Service that have taken the lead. We have fully

endorsed that effort, I think, that is potentially scheduled for 1994.

In any event, I think some test of the biologic validity would be

extremely helpful, and we clearly think that issue needs to be ad-

dressed as part of the long-term recovery plan for salmon that the

NMFS Recovery Team is currently working on. We need a yes or

a no, or more likely, a biologic testing road map to get to yes or

no on drawdown, and I am hopeful that will be the outcome.

The costs of the drawdown proposal, as currently laid out by the

Corps, plus the power impacts would probably amount to another

5-10 percent rate increase for Bonneville. I should emphasize that

that is a rate impact that doesn't occur until well after the turn

of the century. I mean it takes you probably on the order of 14-

15 years or more to actually do all of these things, so you don't feel

the full impact of that in a rate sense until probably between the

years 2005 and 2010. So it is not an immediate thing, but clearly

it has competitiveness and other implications in the long term.

Mr. Smith. In dollars, what are we talking about?

Mr. Hardy. I would have to answer that question for the record.

The Corps has estimated that the dam modification costs alone

range from $1.3 billion to $4.9 billion. There are also power impact

costs in addition to those, and I would have to get those and an-

swer that for the record.

Mr. Smith. All right. Thank you. I wish you would. Thank you.

[The information follows:]

Power impact costs associated with operating all four lower Snake River projects

to near spillway crest from April 15 to June 15 were analyzed for the 1992 Colum-
bia River Salmon Flow Measures Options Analysis Environmental Impact State-

ment. Drawdown is to occur April 1 to 15 and refill by early July. The annual cost

for lost firm energy is estimated to be $72 million per year and lost firm capacity

is $32 million per year. Lost non-firm energy is estimated to range from $21 million

to $55 million per year. The lost capacity may not affect the ability to serve North-

west peak loads, but may affect the ability to market capacity. These impacts are

based on not operating turbines once the reservoir level is reduced below the point

that turbine screens can no longer deflect the fish away from the turbines. If the

turbines were kept in operation, BPA estimates that impacts would be in the neigh-

borhood of about half of the above estimates.

Mr. DeFazio. I thank the gentleman.
I would like to recognize that we have been joined by two col-

leagues, but first our colleague fi-om Washington State, who is not

a member of the committee but asked permission to sit today,

given the vital concern of Northwest Members, and we welcome
him.
We are going through a round of questions, but if the gentleman

had a brief opening statement we would take that now.
Mike, do you have one?
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STATEMENT OF HON. MIKE KREIDLER
Mr. Kreidler. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I do have an opening statement. What I would like to do is per-

haps enter it into the record so that we might proceed with ques-
tions that are probably most germane to this committee's activities.

Thank you very much for allowing me to attend.

[Prepared statement of Mr. Kreidler follows:]

Statement of Congressman Mike Kreidler

I'd like to thank Rep. DeFazio for allowing me the opportunity to sit in on this

task force meeting. Obviously, the deliberations of this task force are important not

only to the Natural Resource Committee members, but to all the memoers of the

Pacific Northwest delegation. I appreciate Rep. DeFazio's acknowledgment of that

fact, and look forward to attending and perhaps participating in future meetings of

the task force.

I am pleased to be able to comment on Bonneville's current financial situation.

I understand that the original intention of the task force was to address long-term

issues affecting Bonneville's operations at the end of this century and beyond. How-
ever, if we do not mitigate this short-term crisis there may be no "long-term" issues

for the task force to confront.

I, like others in the delegation, am very concerned about the combined impact of

drought conditions, fish mitigation measures, lower aluminum prices, debt repay-

ment, and possible energy taxes on Bonneville and its consumers. We have already

seen some of the impacts reflected in Bonneville's need to increase its initial 1993
rate proposal.

I understand that Mr. Hardy is making efforts to keep the total rate increase

below 20%, including cutting administrative costs in half, shutting down two
"mothballed" nuclear plants, and reviewing all programs for an unprecedented sec-

ond time. I support these general objectives, but am concerned about what this

means when it comes down to specific numbers.
My main concern is that as part of this review, important programs in the Fish

and Wildlife and Conservation sectors will be significantly cut. I understand that

since there are not many discretionary programs from which Bonneville can make
cuts this a very difficult issue to resolve. However, it makes little sense to make
short-term cuts in programs that will cost us more in the long-run. In fact, making
cuts in these programs now may incur additional costs in the future which would
not have occurred had these programs been preserved.

I would like to explore methods by which Bonneville can lessen this additional

rate increase request without damaging significantly its ability to meet its obliga-

tions to the Federal Government and others. At the appropriate time, I'd like to ask

Mr. Hardy for his thoughts on alternative approaches to resolving this problem, in-

cluding: drought surcharges; cutting back or eliminating irrigation assistance; allow-

ing a rate increase of slightly more than 20%; turning more conservation respon-

sibilities over to BPA's customers; reviewing and changing contracts that are not

cost-effective; and cutting all acquisition and development of new, traditional power
generation for a few years while focusing more on conservation and renewables.

In addition, I'd like your thoughts on whether a viable long-term solution to Bon-
neville's fiscal problems could include granting more financial oversight authority to

the Northwest Power Planning Council to ensure that Bonneville's financial condi-

tion does not deteriorate further.

Again Mr. Chairman, I'd like to thank you for holding this hearing and I look for-

ward to talking further with this witness.

Mr. DeFazio. Thank you.

We have been joined by another Northwest Member, Mr. Wil-

liams.
Mr. Williams, do you have opening remarks you would like to

make at this time?

STATEMENT OF HON. PAT WILLIAMS

Mr. Williams. I, too, would like to get to questions, Mr. Chair-

man, but I can't help but visit with Randy just a little bit being

as I have a minute.
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I know that this is a very difficult time for BPA and that you
have an extraordinary set of circumstances within which to operate

the power system this year between the drought and efforts to

maintain Northwest fisheries and the need to purchase additional

power. I think you and Bonneville are between a rock and a hard
place.

I want to commend the task force for having this hearing and
commend you, Mr. Hardy, for accepting our invitation to be with
us and would ask that an opening statement be put in the record

and would conclude, Mr. Hardy, by just making this point. You and
I have visited about this personally, and you have always been very
generous with your time with me.
When it rains, those of us in the headwaters are expected to keep

the water, when it rains a lot, in flood time. When there is a
drought, we are expected to give it up. We have vital fisheries.

When the fish downstream are in trouble, our fisheries, for the
most part, are expected to suffer. I don't know that that is BPA's
intention, I think it isn't, but our scientists tell us that is the result

of what would happen given certain proposals if they were carried

out.

We took the dams. I guess back then we were glad to have them.
We gave up the land. We ruined a lot of the great and wonderful
scenic waterways. We ended forever the scenic beauty of many of

the canyons. We would like to know that in heavy drought years
we can keep some of the water in payment for those things given

up. We would like to. know that the bull trout of Montana are on
a par with the salmon downstream, and we are hopeful that this

can be worked out by you, who, again, I know you are between a
rock and a hard place. But from my part in Montana I make you
this deal. If you will work out these problems and others that I will

have in my opening statement—and I will send it to you. Randy

—

if you will work out those problems in Montana, we promise to

make it rain. [Laughter.]

Thanks, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DeFazio. I thank the gentleman.
Now, Mr. Sharp.
Mr. Sharp. Thank you very much.
Mr. Hardy, you indicated that while this is a hearing on the im-

mediate financial situation that you are struggling to deal with,

that you are open to discuss some of the longer-term problems, and
I wonder if you would take a couple of minutes just to identify for

us, those of us especially who are not recently very familiar with
what has been happening, what you see over the next 5, 10, 20
years as the sort of key issues that you have to deal with.

Mr. Hardy. I would be delighted to, Mr. Sharp. Let me try to

sketch this out. This has implications not just for Bonneville, but
I think the picture I will sketch is pretty similar for the electric

utility industry nationally.

I see us facing three factors that fundamentally affect our long-

term competitiveness. Factor number one is what is going on here
in Washington, DC. We are going to reinvent government, in the
phrase of the day, and the conclusion that I have reached is, Bon-
neville had better reinvent itself in a way that is consistent with
the objectives of the Clinton Administration to be a leaner, more
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customer-focused organization, or we are going to have serious
problems, and I think that is entirely appropriate.
But with repayment reform issues that affect us, btu taxes, fed-

eral FTE employment restrictions and reductions, all of those
things are things that will affect us nationally, we have to restruc-
ture ourselves to be responsive to that set of governmental impera-
tives that are starting to move that affect us and affect all indus-
tries to a significant extent.

The second factor is one that is unique to the electric utility in-

dustry. This industry has been a series of regulated monopolies for
its entire 100-year existence, and that is now going to fundamen-
tally change. As a result of the bill the Congress passed last year
to deregulate transmission access, we are already deregulated at
the generation level. Deregulation at the transmission level is rap-
idly coming, and we only have to look to what the airlines and the
gas companies and the banks and the phone companies went
through in the 1980s to get some picture of the amount of competi-
tive change that is going to occur in this industry as a whole in
the 1990s.

Bonneville is not unlike any other major utility; we have to be
equipped to respond to that kind of new and very different competi-
tive challenge. Simply leveraging our monopoly power and our
transmission system and our hydro system is no longer going to be
sufficient to enable us to remain competitive in that kind of rapidly
changing environment.
The third portion of this that is important is our customers' com-

petitiveness. It is not just the aluminum companies, it is Boeing,
it is Weyerhaeuser, it is major industrial customers and commer-
cial customers of most of our retail utilities. Most of them are com-
peting in a global marketplace. Whether it is paper or aluminum
or airplanes or whatever other commodity or product you are talk-

ing about, there is much keener competition. That makes them
much more sensitive to our price increases as a major segment of
their operating costs. To keep them competitive in earning reve-
nues that will basically pay our bills, we need to keep our rates as
low as possible.

So I see those three factors all creating significant long-term
pressures on Bonneville and, frankly, on most utilities across the
Nation that we have to cope with.

In the past, Bonneville has tried to be all things to all people in
the region. Our customers have an analogy that is pretty apt. They
call us the punch bowl. Every customer and most of the interest
groups have a straw, and he or she who has the biggest straw and
sucks the hardest and the fastest gets the mostest.

Unfortunately, that has been all too true, and we have played
that role. We have tried to please all parties and balance all inter-

ests. I have concluded we can no longer continue to do that and re-

main competitive. We need to move fi-om being a kind of bene-
ficiary-focused, process-oriented organization to being a more mar-
ket-driven, customer-focused, cost-conscious organization. We need
to make that movement towards a more businesslike posture with-
out abandoning our social responsibilities for fish mitigation and
environmental protection. We need to be more selective about the
investments that we make, and we can't be all things to all people.
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We have adopted a competitive statement and a strategy of about
10 or 15 pages that lays out a concept of where we want to go, but

it basically involves two things. First, we have to become much
more efficient. Not efficient in the sense we are describing here
today of just squeezing the grape and cutting the budgets; we have
to go through a fundamental structural change to look at making
ourselves more efficient. That probably implies staffing reductions.

It implies a lot more fundamental changes in how we deliver pro-

grams and our services. Secondly, to use the utility jargon, we have
to unbundle our services.

Basically, we have one product right now. It is plain vanilla PF
bulk power. We deliver it to everybody, and we load all of our costs

under that one product. That is a little oversimplified, but not

much. That may work for a small co-op in eastern Oregon or east-

em Washington. It is not a particulsirly attractive product to a gen-

erating utility privately or publicly owned. We need to break apart

our products and services; we need to market our storage, our load

factoring, our other transmission integration services, shaping all

of these different services that we are uniquely equipped to pro-

vide. We provide them now. Sometimes we charge for them, some-
times we don't, but we don't market them as separate products.

From my perspective, we don't collect nearly the value we should
fi*om those products, and we don't serve our customers very well

because we are not marketing in a discrete sense to try to meet the
individual needs of individual customers. We have to do that.

Probably the final thing that is implied in this is, we have to look

at subsidies in our existing rate structure or things that are argu-

ably subsidies—^variable rate, irrigation discoimt, low-density dis-

count. I am not saying we are necessarily going to do away with
them, but we clearly have to examine whether those are still ap-

propriate given this kind of competitive environment that we face.

Finally, we have to look at other rate structure changes. The
chairman has expressed an interest in two-tiered rates at the

wholesale level. We are going to actively investigate that concept.

If we were to adopt a two-tiered rate, I beheve we would be the

first utility probably in the country to adopt a two-tiered rate at

the wholesale level. There are significant equity and revenue sta-

bility questions involved in that, but I have concluded that we need
to start moving in that direction so we have a combination of pro-

gram incentives and price signals.

We need to do all of that, and that is what our competitiveness
project is designed to do. Those are the challenges that I see in the
strategy that we have tried to scope out to meet those challenges.

Mr. Sharp. My time is about up, but I appreciate that very con-

cise overview and at some point will want to get a little better un-
derstanding of the interplay between the new transmission access

requirements and BPA, which I think is actually treated somewhat
differently than most of the rest of the country on that, as one who
is very much involved in advocating that.

But I think what you are sa3dng is very important for lots of peo-

ple to hear, because that kind of change is oftentimes very upset-

ting, especially when you use the analogy—which I understand
doesn't quite accurately fit—of the punch bowl, that what has, I as-

sume, been brought more to the table, is who really benefits, who
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doesn't, who is getting subsidized, and whether those are values
today that we wish to go forward with.

I mean not everybody is going to want to get rid of every kind
of subsidy that is in the system, but we are going to, in a sense,
flesh out in the open, and that undoubtedly leads to some very dif-

ficult times for you folks and for the public at large as that gets
sorted out again. But I appreciate your very concise view of things.
Thank you.
Mr. DeFazio. I thank Mr. Sharp for his remarks.
The Administrator and I had some discussion of this in the inter-

rogatory phase beforehand. What we agreed on was that this is a
public entity and everything is going to be on the table, even if just
by asking some of these questions I make people uncomfortable or
other members of the committee make people uncomfortable.
You know, you have to learn to live with it because we want to

make our decisions about the future with fiill awareness of all the
implications for all the customers of the utility, and I think the Ad-
ministrator is aware of that and, I think, in fact, supportive.
Mr. Thomas.
Mr. Thomas. Thank you. Just a couple of questions.
Do you have criteria for to whom you sell power, as most of the

other Power Marketing Agencies do? Are they nonprofits? Are they
municipals? Are they co-ops? Or are they anybody that is in your
area?
Mr. Hardy. We have several pieces of legislation, Mr. Thomas,

that govern whom we sell power to and what kind of priority or

preference they get. Like the other Power Marketing Agencies, pub-
lic preference requires us to give first priority in power sales to

publicly owned utilities, both municipals and co-ops. We also have
long-term contracts to sell directly to 15 major industrial cus-

tomers, primarily aluminum companies.
We don't make any significant wholesale power sales to the in-

vestor-owned utilities in our region. However, we do provide them
with a variety of transmission services. We also make surplus
power sales to California utilities and other out-of-region entities.

Those are governed primarily by the Transmission System Act,

what is called regional preference, where before we can make any
sale to a California utility or an out-of-region utility we have to

offer that same amount of power for purchase within the North-
west first.

Mr. Thomas. Do you have an average wholesale rate?

Mr. Hardy. Yes. Our average wholesale rate is roughly 24 mills.

Mr. Thomas. Compare that to the other Power Marketing Agen-
cies.

Mr. Hardy. It is, I believe, lower than the other Power Market-
ing Agencies. I don't know what
Mr. Thomas. Quite a bit lower, isn't it?

Mr. Hardy. Yes, it is.

Mr. Thomas. You don't know what the others are?
Mr. Hardy. I am not familiar with the exact rates of each one

of them right now.
Mr. Thomas. Who pays for the changes in both capital and oper-

ating for fish and wildlife? Does that come out of power revenues?
Mr. Hardy. Yes, sir, it does.



39

Mr. Thomas. All of it?

Mr. Hardy. Most of it does. In the case of some fish enhance-

ments that are done by the Corps and the Bureau, some portion

of that, but usually a pretty small portion, comes out of appro-

priated funds, but typically anywhere from 70-90 percent comes
from Bonneville funds, and then almost all the other fish program
measures are ones that we directly fund. So probably 90-plus per-

cent of all of it comes out of power revenues.

Mr. Thomas. Do you have full supply contracts with all these

people?
Mr. Hardy. Yes, we do.

Mr. Thomas. If you were a regular commercial utility—of course,

the drought is a problem, but you have more problems than
drought—what would you be doing? In other words, you don't have
the power supply now, do you, to meet the needs of all these cus-

tomers?
Mr. Hardy. Right now we do, but we have interrupted the top

25 percent of the aluminum company loads, which contractually we
are allowed to do to try to preserve our ability to serve the firm

loads of all the rest of our customers. We have enough power to ba-

sically keep the lights on and meet the loads, but we have only

been able to do that this year because of a significant amount of

out-of-region spot market power purchases that we have made from
California.

Mr. Thomas. I guess I am interested philosophically in whether
or not a public entity like Bonneville has an obligation to meet the

needs of all these folks and whether or not over a period of time

you are generally a hydro producer and that is what you sell, or

do you intend to go back into coal generating and those kinds of

things?
Mr. Hardy. We have the obligation to meet all of our customers'

electric load low growth requirements, and in that respect we are

fundamentally different from other Power Marketing Agencies.

Mr. Thomas. Why do you?
Mr. Hardy. Because the Northwest Power Act that passed in

1980 gave us the obligation to meet the load requirements of all

of our current customers, we are in the business of acquiring re-

sources to meet those load requirements.
Mr. Thomas. Have you acquired new customers since that hap-

pened?
Mr. Hardy. We have acquired a few minor new customers, some

small public agency customers that have formed, but no significant

new customers. Our typical customer base of our firm power cus-

tomers is about 155 customers: roughly 120 public agencies, t3rpi-

cally small utilities that take all of their power fi*om us; 6 investor-

owned utilities, which typically don't take a lot of bulk power from
us but take a variety of transmission services; and, finally, 15 di-

rect service industrial customers, primarily aluminum companies,

that take all of their power directly fi"om us.

Mr. Thomas. I see.

As you know, we have just one of your customers in Wyoming,
Lower Valley Power and Light, and they are interested in provid-

ing gas utility service to their area. Do you have any role in that?
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Mr. Hardy. We potentially could have a role, and we are working
with Lower Valley to try to see if there is a set of arrangements
that can be mutually beneficial to Bonneville and to Lower Valley,

and I am hopeful that those will work out.

Mr. Thomas. Thank you.

I think you have a tough task, and one of them, it seems to me,
for many of us, is to really define the role of a public power agency.

It is different, and it is changing, as you have suggested, sind it

would seem to me that seeking to define that in fairly long-range
terms is kind of the first step of where you go when you make
major changes.
Mr. Hardy. If we could come out of these six hearings with some

sense of direction on that, that would be extremely helpful to me.
Mr. DeFazio. I thank the gentleman.
If I could just address one of the questions you raised, which was

about other PMAs, I chaired the hearings on WAPA for the chair-

man in the last Congress and took the lead in putting that portion

into the energy bill, and my recollection is that WAPA has a rate

that varies across the region by project, and it runs between 15 and
30 mills, so in some places actually their PF rate is lower than
BPA's and in others it is higher. They don't blend it the same way
BPA does and give everybody the same rate. I think mostly Mr.
Thomas' people are subscribing to WAPA.
The second thing is that WAPA, with the Pick-Sloan project, has

gone to tiered rates. I don't know whether it is a model or not, but

it is certainly something to be aware of.

At this point, what I am going to do is run and vote. I am going

to give the gavel to Mr. Williams, and it will be Mr. LaRocco's se-

ries of questions. I will be right back.

Mr. LaRocco. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I think I can conclude before I have to go vote, too.

Just a couple of questions, Mr. Hardy. With regard to the chart

that you had up there on the changes in BPA's financial condition,

maybe you can help me understand with regard to increased costs

and fish and wildlife that you have got delineated here. What has
really changed here, other than no rain, since the initial proposal?

Mr. Hardy. That is the principal change, and let me describe to

you why that has produced additional costs. We are not doing any-

thing more. We are providing the same amount of flows that we
were previously required to provide. It is just that the cost of pro-

viding those flows, the 3 million acre-feet in the Columbia and the

1.4 million acre-feet in the Snake, has gone up significantly, par-

ticularly in the Columbia.
To provide that three million acre-feet of water in a low water

year, you basically have to purchase energy to assure refill of

Grand Coulee, which is typically the reservoir that that water
comes out of.

Mr. LaRocco. So this cost is really for purchasing
Mr. Hardy. It is purchase power cost, right, that is attributable

not to keeping the lights on but to providing that additional 3 mil-

lion acre-feet of water stored behind Grand Coulee. We purchase
power to serve load rather than drafting Coulee to serve load. We
keep that water behind the dam in Coulee, so in May and June
when the fish flush comes we can provide that water.
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Last year, that cost was pretty low; it was down around $10 mil-

lion. This year, it is about $60-$70 million purely because of the

change in the power market. It is also going to cost us more next

year because none of the reservoirs are going to refill this year, and
hence to refill the reservoirs next year, we will incur more pur-

chase power costs than we originally anticipated when we adopted
the Power Council's fish program a year and a half ago.

Mr. LaRocco. So there have been no new requirements, no new
programs.
Mr. Hardy. There have been no new programs. This is strictly

the cost of providing the same basic program that we provided in

1992, but it is much more expensive because of the higher power
purchase cost.

I don't know whether other new requirements may be levied or

not. We are still in consultations with the National Marine Fish-

eries Service on this year's operations. The outcome of that process

could be additional requirements, but right now that isn't certain.

But those figures are simply higher costs to service already existing

requirements that we adopted in late 1991 with the passage of the

Power Council's program.
Mr. LaRocco. Is there an argument to be made that it should

go under the drought category here, or is it easier for the public

to understand that it is in fish and wildhfe? I mean there is no in-

crease in any program and no new requirements. Shouldn't it be
under drought instead of under fish and wildlife?

Mr. Hardy. We tried to do an intellectually honest job of dividing

the cost. The 3 million acre-feet that we provide in the Columbia
for fish is just that, it is a fish-related cost, it doesn't have any-

thing to do with keeping the lights on. So we tried our best to at-

tribute the costs associated with purchasing power to store that 3

million acre-feet to fish, and all the other power purchase costs

were attributed to drought—namely, purchase power to keep the

hghts on. As you see, the majority of those expenses are still

drought expenses, they are not fish expenses, but we thought that

was the appropriate cost categorization of those costs.

Mr. LaRocco. With regard to across-the-board cuts, do you an-

ticipate any new requirements with regard to potential listings of

any more endangered species? If there are anticipated listings, will

that raise your budgets? Are you going to have to seek money to

address those anyway? In other words, is fish and wildlife an area

that maybe you shouldn't cut, or is it just easier to go across the

board?
Mr. Hardy. We need to be sensitive to that. We don't want to

make penny wise/pound foolish cuts in the fish program or any
other program. As I believe I described in my opening statement,

my general guidance to staff has been to cut but not gut the pro-

grams.
That is particularly applicable to the Fish and Wildlife Program.

We are not seeking absolute decreases, we are seeking to lower the

rate of increase. You will still see some increases in program costs

in 1994 and 1995 over 1992 levels. We are going to try and gain

efficiencies in those programs, but not do things that would either

put us in jeopardy relative to already listed stocks or cause addi-



42

tional nonlisted stocks to become listed if we could take some pre-

ventative measure. v tt i.

I am still anticipating that the expenditure levels for the Fish

and Wildlife Program will continue to increase by some amount

and that we will have some capability to try to step in ahead of

time and address potential listings, whether they are bull trout or

Kootenai sturgeon or whatever. Clearly if we can take a preventa-

tive measure early on, it almost invariably is less costly than if we
get into a listing situation. None of the budget numbers con-

template additional costs that might come about as a result of ad-

ditional Ustings. We have tried to preserve some capability to deal

with those, and we will try to give priority, in terms of how we re-

duce our fish and wildlife budget, to Hsted stocks or potentially Ust-

ed stocks to avoid that kind of result.

Mr. LaRocco. With regard to the reserves that you have had, I

don't have a historical perspective on that. Can you help me out

in understanding the amount of reserves that you have normally

had at BPA over the past decade or so, and were those reserves put

aside to take care of situations like these, or do you normally

Mr. Hardy. Well, over the past decade our reserves have typi-

cally varied from almost to the high of $900 million that we had

about 18 months ago. Our desired level of reserves to maintain the

95 percent probability of repaying Treasury as well as execute all

of our other program requirements are probably in the $400-$500

million level. Part of what is driving the current rate increase is

to try to rebuild our reserves. We calculate our reserves will now
be down to $90 milUon, at the end of this fiscal year. We want to

rebuild our reserves to the $400-$500 million over the 2-year rate

period so we have an ability to withstand at least one bad water

year and still not gut our programs.

Mr. LaRocco [presiding]. Okay. The task force stands in recess

until we see Mr. DeFazio or Mr. Williams, and I will go vote.

Thank you.
Mr. Hardy. Thank you. Congressman.
fRecess.l

Mr. DeFazio [presiding]. We are back in session, and I would

defer to the gentleman from Washington State, if he has some

questions, for five minutes.
Mr. Kreidler. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The first question I have, Mr. Hardy, deals with how much of the

current financial crisis is brought on by some of the problems that

Bonneville has had with its contractors. It is my understanding

that some of these contractors consider the money that Bonneville

provides them with as more or less an entitlement and that they

have not been very responsive when asked to account for the

money that they have spent. It may be that some of Bonneville^s

fish and wildlife and/or conservation money could be more effi-

ciently spent either by different contractors or by changes in the

present contractors' methods.
What are your thoughts on that issue?

^ . , • •

Mr. Hardy. I would say some of that is true. I don't think it is

a first order problem, but it probably is a second-order kind of

problem. One of the things that we are seeking to do as we go m
and look at reducing our programs is try to both cut out some of
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the administrative overhead associated both with our own staffing

and contractor staffing; second, in some cases we have awarded
sole source contracts, particularly in the fish and wildlife area at

particular agencies because they are fish agencies; we are going to

compete some of those contracts.

So I think this whole exercise will allow us to get at some of

those problems and get much more of a performance-based cri-

terion for delivery of services than we have had in the past. That
is true in a variety of areas, but the fish and wildlife area, and con-

servation area, are two where we have suffered fi"om the entitle-

ment mentality and we need to correct that.

Mr. Kreidler. I might add that I think sometimes it may not be,

given the proportion of the discretionary section of your total budg-
et, the largest issue, but sometimes these issues become very sym-
bolic to the rate-paying public. A fair amount of distrust, anger and
frustration can develop when the public sees indications of mis-
management. This generates the kind of broad publicity that over-

shadows the many good things that Bonneville is doing.

I think in the fish and wildlife area in particular some of the con-
tractors, such as State agencies, have not been accountable as they
could be because Bonneville monies are an additional revenue
source for them. Some of those examples come to Members of Con-
gress' ears, and undoubtedly are not going to be the only ears that
are going to hear this, and at some point they could be rather
broadly talked about—certainly in the media.

In addition, I would like to get your thoughts, in the context of
the challenges that Bonneville faces right now and in the future,

regarding a longer-term solution which would address the oper-
ation of Bonneville as it relates to its customers. One long-term so-

lution would be to create a board of Bonneville's customers or to

perhaps expand the authority of the Northwest Power Planning
Council, to have more input, control and/or approval over Bonne-
ville's finances. What is your response to that proposal.

Mr. ELahdy. I think those are fair questions to be examined. I

hope the committee will get into some of those questions.
If I understand the chairman correctly, I think one of the things

the committee is intending to do is look at some of the repayment
and other long-term structural financing problems that we have to

deal with. Those are logical points of departure to getting at the
governmental structure questions that you are talking about. I

think everything is potentially on the table.

I guess I would observe relative to the ideas that you have men-
tioned in your question, whether it is a board of customers or the
Power Planning Council, I think there are pretty substantial con-
stitutional problems with going much farther than we already have
gone with the Power Council. It is a State-appointed body, and we
are a federal agency.
Now, that being said, it is logical to look at a TVA kind of model

where you have a federally appointed board of directors. That is

one model. Another model would be to look towards making Bonne-
ville essentially a government corporation. We act like a govern-
ment corporation now, but we are not, and that seriously con-
strains our ability to do business cost effectively in a number of
areas. Those are only two of probably several different alternatives,
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but I think it would be appropriate to explore all of those, and we
are very open to exploring those with the task force.

Mr. Kreidler. Very good. Thank you very much,
Mr. DeFazio. In response to the gentleman, we will be holding

a hearing on the long-term perspective on Bonneville, and that will

go to structural issues, because when you begin to look at debt re-

structuring it has implications under the Budget Act which could
require a more independent agency and other constructs, and I

have said to people we are going to look at all those things. So I

will be certain and invite the gentleman back.
If I could return to where I left off, which is on WPPSS. I don't

want to belabor this because I have many other questions, but you
said you have a permanent staff of 12. I don't necessarily want to

second guess management's judgment here, but I am concerned
that when you permanently assign people to monitor another agen-
cy that ultimately they begin to develop a stronger alliance to the
other agency where they are permanently stationed than to the
agency which stationed them there to begin with, and institutional

concerns begin to come into play.

I would urge the Administrator and senior staff, in conjimction
with the new director or administrator of WPPSS, to take a very
hard look at the operations of WPPSS and begin to exert pressure,
holding out this ultimate tool you have, which is disapproval, if

they are not following prudent utility practices and hewing to other
concerns that you have. So I just want to make that point one more
time.

I do have a question about mothballing since we are there. I ap-
preciate the fact that you have finally, after many years of pro-

longed agony, decided to cut off the continued expenditure of funds
for mothballing, but my understanding is that there will be
mothballing costs in 1994. Is that correct? And what would the
amount be?
Mr. Hardy. I don't expect, Mr. Chairman, that we will realize

much of those savings in 1994. We have got a number of steps that
we have to go through before we can formally reach the termi-
nation decision. Most of them are legal.

Probably the most significant of them is a declaratory judgment
action that we will need to pursue as a result of agreements we
made with the bond fund trustees for Plants 1 and 3 when we did
the refinancing several years ago to make sure that termination
does not constitute an event of default for purposes of sale of the
assets of those two plants. That will also help us clarify some other
questions relative to use of the construction fund for Plant 1 and
some other issues.

So it is about six to nine months away from the point where we
can actually reach a termination decision, per se, and I think if we
start realizing savings in this rate period, it probably won't be until

1995, but if you don't get started you never finish these things.

Mr. DeFazio. All right.

Is it your understanding that the WPPSS board is now commit-
ted to termination?
Mr. Hardy. The Executive Board is strongly committed to it, but

they are not the ones who make the decision. It is the WPPSS Full

Board which, ironically, provides virtually no policy guidance for
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the organization but does two things: They vote on members to the

Executive Board, and they terminate plants.

I think if you put it to a vote of the Full Board today it would
not be unanimous, but I am pretty sure you would have a majority

that would favor termination, and I am confident that is the deci-

sion the Full Board will reach. But we will not be ready to present

that decision to them until we have all of our legal ducks in a row,

which is probably later this year or early next year.

Mr. DeFazio. Okay. And you don't expect any additional expend-

iture requests from WPPSS to undertake further study or other

things regarding this subject?

Mr. HijlDY. We don't need to study this subject any more. We
know what the answer is; we have just got to do it.

Mr. DeFazio. Okay. I appreciate that. It has been a long time

coming. I am glad to hear it. We may finally put a stake in the

heart of the vampire here and keep it from rising again. That
would be great.

You alluded to the $150 million in bond revenues in the construc-

tion fund, and I guess there is about $100 million in fuel and en-

richment options or commitments. I assume that we will be hear-

ing more about that as we move through this process, the potential

uses to which that money could be applied after other obligations

are satisfied,

Mr. Hardy. That is true. The figures are more like $100 million

in the construction fund, and $100 million, give or take, fi-om the

potential sale of fuel and other assets, but we need to use the de-

claratory judgment action to clarify the purposes for which we can

use both of those funds.

The bond fund trustee basically has to agree with how we will

dispose of those or how we will use those fiinds in a way so that

the bond holder's interest is protected. That will be a major pur-

pose of the declaratory judgment action, to structure those so we
will get the maximum amount of flexibility in how we use those

funds.

Mr. DeFazio. We have made an awful lot of lawyers rich and
kept a lot of judges really busy. Does everyone agree and believe

that we need this declaratory judgment? Aren't there legal theories

out there, looking at the agreements and otherwise, that perhaps
that is not necessary?
Mr. Hardy. We have to address that question with both of the

bond fund trustees. There are two different trustees. Seafirst is the

trustee for Plant 3, and Morgan is the trustee for Plant 1. If both

of them agree, perhaps we could short-circuit this, but that is a dis-

cussion we have yet to have with them. We did make a commit-
ment when we did the refinancings to do a declaratory judgment
action. That was necessary for them to give the approval to go for-

ward with those refinancings. So if there is any way to short-circuit

that, we certainly will do it, but we want to make sure we get the

right answer here.

I share your desire not to have more folks earn more legal fees

fi-om what has already been a very profitable endeavor for much
of the legal profession in this country at the expense of Northwest
ratepayers. But I want to make sure we get the right answers be-
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cause there is a significant amount of savings that is available if

we do this thing right.

Mr. DeFazio. I appreciate that.

You answered my colleague from Washington on the question
about contractors, and I asked some questions in the preliminary
interrogatories about personnel and contractors, and I would like

to spend a little time examining that. I can't say that I am fully

able to decipher the chart that was provided, which I have here,

in terms of the total staffing.

[Editor's note,—See "Questions and Answers Supplement to the
Statement of Randall W. Hard/' in the Appendix.]
Mr. DeFazio. When I look at page 9 and your responses to the

questions I submitted on April 7 and the categories—let's just use
1993 because it is on the chart, and we could use any of the years.

Federal employees, as you stated, 3,667; I understand that. Then
we go to contractors and cooperating agencies. There is a support
services contractor staffing levels breakdown, but it seems to me
there is a substantial portion where we don't have a breakdown be-

tween what are cooperating agencies and what are contractors.

Going back to the question about WPPSS, this doesn't include
the WPPSS FTEs. They are not considered a coordinating or co-

operating agency, are they?
Mr. Hardy. This is page 9, Mr. Chairman?
Mr. DeFazio. Yes.
Mr. Hardy. You are right, these do not includethe Supply Sys-

tem, the Corps or the Bureau. These include principally contractors

that we have for basic support services in those respective areas.

Mr. DeFazio. It is puzzling me. So this does not include the
Corps or Bureau.
Mr. Hardy. That is right. Your chart on page 8 includes all of

the Corps. If you count the portion of Corps and Bureau employees
that we finance, that is under the hydro generation and construc-

tion line on page 8. So the 1,630 number is mainly Corps and Bu-
reau employees whom we pay for. The nuclear generation line on
page 8 is basically all the Supply System activities that we pay for.

The fish and wildlife line is basically all the fish and wildlife staff-

ing that we pay for. So those are all contractors in a technical

sense of that term.
I would say a more relevant chart for purposes of contractors

that we use on a pretty much full-time basis to do tasks that other-

wise we would use Bonneville permanent employees to do is what
is on page 9, which are support services contractors.

Mr. DeFazio. Okay. So the estimates of support services contrac-

tor staffing levels are semi-permanent or more regularly occurring.

Mr. Hardy. Yes.
Mr. DeFazio. So we would add that to the BPA number.
Mr. Hardy. That is right.

Mr. DeFazio. And then the rest are other.

Mr. Hardy. That is correct.

Mr. DeFazio. As you would say, the nuclear generation number
in there is for WPPSS or the Supply System, and fish and wildlife

involves cooperative agreements with the State fish and wildlife

agencies, such as for the program for predators and things like

that.
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Mr. Hardy. Predators, and a whole variety of research activity.

As you see from that figure, we have got 900 fishery biologists £ind

related people under contract to us.

Mr. DeFazio. Some of these, I would assume, are not intergov-

ernmental contracts but are private sector contracts that are let

competitively or, as you said, sole source.

Mr. Hardy. That is correct. I don't know what the breakdown is

between competitive and sole source, but there are some of both in

there.

Mr. DeFazio. Could we break this down a little further so we can
get some grasp of the range of the contracts that we have ongoing,

the duration, the expected termination, or whether they are perma-
nent, reoccurring contracts, those sorts of things?

Mr. Hardy. We would be happy to provide the committee with
a further breakdown of those contractor expenditures.

Mr. DeFazio. I am sure your staff feels the same way mine does

when I say those sorts of things.

I thank you.

[The information follows:]

Staffing that BPA pays for among its contractors and cooperating agencies has an-

nually been in the 7300 to 8400 FTE range during FY 1991 to 1993.

The Transmission System Design and Construction component includes architec-

tural and engineering firms under direct contract to BPA for design services (ap-

proximately 90-170 FTE annually) and construction firms under direct contract to

BPA (approximately 500-700 FTE annually).

The Transmission System Operation and Maintenance component includes non-

electrical facilities maintenance contractors (principally right-of-way clearance and
buildings maintenance) and electrical crew relievers under short-term, "Kelly-Tem-

porary Services" type contracts (130-170 FTE annually); construction firms support-

ing heavy equipment replacement (approximately 50-70 FTE annually); and mar-
keting/scheduling/dispatch support (approximately 10-50 FTE annually).

The Energy Conservation component includes utility, state, and local agency staff,

and the contractors to these entities, who are engaged in the delivery of the BPA
conservation programs (700-1200 FTE annually).

The Hydro Generation and Construction component includes Corps of Engineers
employees (approximately 650 annually), Corps contractors (approximately 300-350
annually), Bureau of Reclamation employees The Nuclear Generation component in-

cludes Washington Public Power Supply System employees (approximately 1750-

1780 FTE annually) and its contractors (approximately 580-630 FTE annually),

plus 30 percent of the Trojan Nuclear Power Station workforce (approximately 340
FTE annually, prior to the planned shutdown) and 30 percent of Portland General
Electric Company's contractor support of the plant (approximately 180-190 FTE an-

nually, prior to the planned shutdown).
The Fish and Wildlife component includes firms under contract to BPA (approxi-

mately 120-160 FTE annually); and Federal, State and Tribal fish and wildlife

agencies and their contractors (approximately 600-800 FTE annually).

The "Other" category includes contract support to BPA overhead functions, profes-

sional and technical services, and data processing (approximately 390-430 FTE an-

nually); and operating employees at small-scale generating resources under contract

to BPA, construction employees at plants under development for BPA power acquisi-

tion, and the staff and contractors of the Northwest Power Planning Council (ap-

proximately 100-250 FTE annually).

BPA's direct support services contracting has involved competitive procurement
for 89-95 percent of the dollar volume during FY 1991 to 1993. Based on actual con-

tract awards, 95 percent of $49.6 million was competitively let in FY 1991; 90 per-

cent of $61.2 million was competitively let in FY 1992; and 89 percent of $29.7 mil-

lion has been competitively let so far in FY 1993. We do not have the competitive/

non-competitive splits by program.

Mr. DeFazio. You have implemented a limited hiring freeze.

Does that mean you are going to seek to lower employee levels by
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attrition, or does that mean you intend to hold where you are and
replace people to remain at that staffing level?

Mr. Hardy. The former. We are already, as a result of the hiring

freeze, reducing permanent staffing at Bonneville, and associated

with the program cuts that we are now making, we will substan-

tially reduce both contractor and temporary employee staffing.

WTiat I have told our employees is, if we have staffing reductions,

and I fully expect we will, that we will handle that to the maxi-

mum extent possible by attrition. I also intend to look seriously, as

part of our long-term competitiveness project, at potential separa-

tion bonuses and other kinds of programs that would provide a

maximum incentive so that, if we downsized, we could do that as

humanely as possible. We would also do it in a way that, frankly,

is a heck of a lot more efficient than trying to do the RIF process.

Let me illustrate an example to you that may seem convoluted, but

believe me, it is apt.

You identify a GM-14 middle manager whose position you no

longer need. You institute a government reduction in force process

to try to eliminate that position and several others. That manager
exercises his or her reversion rights to the next lower position, and

he bumps her, bumps who, bumps who, and the person that ends

up going out the door is a GS-7 secretary who is probably the most

productive person in the organization to begin with.

That is not a very productive process for us to engage in, so I

am trying to think through that a httle more carefully. In the

meantime, we are taking significant reductions in contractor and

temporary staffing because we can hire and fire at will there. With
full-time federal employees, we are going to do that through attri-

tion, but we are also going to look at these separation programs so

we can target that to make sure we realize the benefit of any staff-

ing changes we pursue.
Mr. DeFazio. So you do have more flexibihty and you do expect

to be addressing the contractor level substantially in these reduc-

tions.

Mr. Hardy. Absolutely.

Mr. DeFazio. Okay.
Mr. Williams, do you have questions?

Mr. Williams. Thank you.

Mr. Hardy, I thought there was real wisdom on BPA's efforts to

have energy savings in the various sectors through an aggressive

conservation effort, and I have followed that with some specificity

through the years, the residential sector, commercial sector, indus-

trial sector, and the agriculture sector.

Where, if in any of those sectors, are most of the savings occur-

ring, and in which of the sectors do you think we have the most

room for improvement?
Mr. Hardy. I would say the savings, in terms of dollar savings

as opposed to megawatt savings—let me back up. Our goal is to re-

tain the same megawatt acquisition targets that the Power Plan-

ning Council has laid out. They have identified a target of about

660 megawatts over the next 10 years. We think we can still attain

that target even with significant reductions in cost.

I would say that the principal area that would come from is prob-

ably residential. Our existing residential weatherization retrofit



49

program is a pretty expensive program, in a pretty mature market
and we have gotten all of the easy savings. Some reductions c£in

be made there; potentially in the Super Good Cents program. A lot

of cuts can be made in infrastructure supports and training and
things like that. We have a pretty well-developed conservation in-

frastructure already, and there are potentially some savings in

smaller commercial. Those are probably the areas we would be

looking at.

Mr. Williams. Are you satisfied that the agriculture sector is

practicing appropriate conservation?

Mr. Hardy. No. I think there is a lot more to be done in that

sector. It tends to be probably our most expensive sector, but it also

is one where the potential, from my perspective, is largely un-

tapped, and we need to figure out a better way to do that.

I am uncertain, Congressman Williams, as to how these reduc-

tions would affect the agricultural sector. We are in the process of

looking at those right now. The savings there are not huge, but I

expect the bigger savings targets are in residential, both Super

Good Cents and existing residential weatherization retrofit.

Mr. Williams. It is my understanding fi-om the staff of the task

force that you have been asked this question in writing, but let me
perhaps rephrase it and see what your answer is publicly here. The
task force tells us that the Washington Public Power Supply Sys-

tem pays its board members $500 a day plus expenses and that

those costs are passed on to BPA's customers. Is that true?

Mr. Hardy. That is true.

Mr. Williams. How much does that cost BPA and therefore its

customers, through, what, a 5-year period? 10-year period?

Mr. Hardy. We have got a chart that answers that for the com-

mittee, and I think the combination of both reimbursement and ac-

tual travel and related expenses is on the order of a couple of mil-

lion dollars over the last 4 or 5 years. The chart is on page 20.

[Editor's note.—See "Questions and Answers Supplement to the

Statement of Randall W. Hardy" in the Appendix.]

Mr. Williams. Your staff gave it to me as well, Peter. Thank
you.

$2,415,262. So you have kept track of it. I suppose that is a small

amount, but it is Ev Dirksen's quote about a million here and a

million there. I also suppose this is the type of thing that, once it

becomes exposed, just drives ratepayers crazy even though it is a

very small part? What do you think we ought to do with that prac-

tice?

Mr. Hardy. I think it appropriate to reexamine that practice.

I would observe that the Washington State governor has it with-
• in his unilateral authority to change that compensation level. He
has made several statements about his view of that, and I would
expect that he would follow through on that. I would hope we
would still retain some level sufficient to attract particularly out-

of-state board members if we replace some board members, but I

don't think that necessarily has to be $500 a day.

Mr. Williams. You say that is Washington's governor that has

that authority?
Mr. Hardy. Yes, sir.
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Mr. Williams. I remember Lowry from his days around here. I

expect that practice will be ending soon.

Mr. Hardy. One might have that expectation; yes, sir.

Mr. Williams. Thauok you, Mr. Hardy. I appreciate your being
with us.

Mr. Hardy. Thank you, Congressman.
Mr. DeFazio. That was most illuminating. I was unaware that

he had that unilateral authority, and I think I may correspond
with him and urge that he use that unilateral authority.
Mr. Kreidler.

Mr. Kreidler. Mr. Hardy, I would go back to some of the issues
relating to BPA's short-term situation and get your thoughts on the
viability of various options to limit any additional rate increase re-

quests while retaining Bonneville's ability to meet obligations to

the Federal Government and others. One option would be to charge
a one-time drought surcharge on BPA customers as a means of

more or less looking at this as a short-term crisis and not some-
thing that is ongoing, hopefully.

Mr. Hardy. I think the drought surcharge is kind of appealing.
It has a clear conceptual linkage. The chart I showed you clearly

shows that a significant portion of the costs are weather related,

and that if we get average water next year it will go away. So hav-
ing a higher level of rate for the first year and a base level of rate

that you recede to may make some sense.

I must say, in the discussions we have had both in the rate case
and in the settlement discussions with our customers, they have
not favored that approach. Our public utility customers, in particu-

lar, for a variety of reasons that are still a bit of a mystery to me,
are reluctant to proceed. I think they have to do with how many
times you go back to your commission to get your rate changed and
wanting to have some stability of some 2-year rate period rather
than changing it every year or every 6 to 9 months.

I think they are also concerned somehow that the Direct Service
Industries are going to be advantaged because they would be recov-

ering in the second year just to take advantage of this while the
public utilities would be penalized in the first year.

I must say, I don't find those arguments to be terribly persua-
sive, but that is one of the issues that will be considered in the rate

case. We have left ourselves the flexibility to do that, and I simply
need to look at the rate case record and make a decision, but I

think there is a certain logic to that.

Mr. Kreidler, What do you think of the more long-term option
of turning more of the conservation responsibilities over to the
BPA's customers.
Mr. Hardy. We are actively working with our customers to do

just that. It is called third-party financing. They put up their bond-
ing capability to finance conservation activities, and we pay the

debt service.

We have a group of customers, about 7 or 8, with whom we are
actively pursuing negotiating such arrangements with right now,
the advantage being both at the federal borrowing that is shifted

to them because they can borrow in the tax-exempt market and we
have to borrow at Treasury rates; they can actually do it more
cheaply. I am hopeful that we will be able to conclude some con-
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tracts. That is not easy, but the advantage it has for our customers

is that it gives them multi-year commitments.
If they sign such a contract with us, they have got basically a

guarantee for 5-7 years that they have got stable program levels

and conservation funding rather than being subject to our financial

circumstances each year when we allocate our budgets. I am hope-

ful that we will be able to gradually shift some of that financing

burden to our customers in exchange for giving them multi-year

contracts, given that program stability.

Tacoma and Seattle, in particular, are two of the customers that

we are attempting to negotiate such arrangements with. Eugene
Water and Electric Board is another. We have a whole group of

Washington utilities called the CARES group, which are some of

the smaller PUDs, mid-sized PUDs, in Washington State, and the

same thing with some of the Oregon munis. So we have quite a

number of customers or groups of customers that we are attempt-

ing to negotiate such arrangements with.

Mr. Kreidler. Do you have any estimate of what proportion of

your discretionary spending on conservation, which I understand to

be about 11 percent, could potentially be turned over to the cus-

tomers?
Mr. Hardy. I don't have a precise estimate, and I will have to

get that for your for the record. My guess would be that it is some-

where in the 10-20 percent range, maybe higher.

[The information follows:]

Current negotiations with utilities on third-party financing arrangements for FY
1994 and FY 1995 would turn over about 30 percent to customers.

Mr. Kreidler. Another option would be to perhaps cut back on

acquisition and development programs in favor of conservation,

particularly over the next few years. Is that a viable?

Mr. Hardy. That is one of the issues we are actively pursuing

in the current budget reduction exercise. I meaii we are not just

looking at our conservation budget, we are looking at our genera-

tion budget as well and seeking to bring both of those down. We
are actuSly seeking to keep our conservation acquisition targets at

the same level while making ourselves more efficient.

Our generation targets we are probably going to decrease by

some amount, slip on-line dates and possibly even cancel some
projects. So we are looking at delaying those acquisitions. The
trade-ofi" there tends to be how much can you do and what kind of

additional short-term power purchase obligations would you incur,

on average, over the number of water years.

I think it is fair to say we are trying to take some additional risk

in that area, hoping we are going to have average water and there-

by decrease the size of the rate increase. So you will see cuts in

both those budgets, not just the conservation budget but the gen-

eration budget as well.

Mr. Kreidler. Lastly, what are your thoughts on using the lump
payments that are going to come to Bonneville in connection with

the transmission lines to California for rate increase reduction pur-

poses. I am asking about the potential of essentially postponing

those lump payments to the Federal Government as a means of

moderating the immediate impact in the short term.



52

Mr. Hardy. That is true. If you are talking about the $150 mil-

hon, roughly, that we will receive from other utilities who would
purchase their own ownership shares of the 50 percent of the third

AC Intertie we have constructed.

Right now, the problem that we have is that we have committed
to the Congress, the Appropriations Committees and to 0MB that

we will handle that money in a particular way; namely, we will

take it in and use it to retire outstanding debt obligations. We have
committed to that in this year's budget to both the Appropriations

Committees and 0MB.
That being said, what I have told the customers is, if they can

prevail upon the forces that be in Congress and in the Administra-

tion to change the treatment of that, recognizing that this is an
emergency kmd of situation, we will do all we can to try to treat

the money in that way.
I would tell you frankly, I am in a position of having made com-

mitments to both the Congress and 0MB that I feel I cannot uni-

laterally change. So that ball is squarely in the customers' court to

take and run with and try to muster the political wherewithal to

get those changes.
That being said, it is worth 3-4 percentage points on this year's

rate increase if we were able to use the full $150 million that

would make a significant difference. Now that would push the

Eroblem into 1996, which would affect next period's rate increase,

ut if we had good water and better aluminum prices and things

like that, we might be in a little better position to deal with it at

that time.

Mr. DeFazio. I thank the gentleman and go on to my next round

and come back to him if he has more questions.

Just to reflect on some of the questions about conservation, I

think I am supportive of the direction you are headed, which is

that you want to keep the targets but look at something that may
be dnven in different ways, driven with different sorts of incen-

tives. Are we looking at something a little more decentralized?

You know, one of the common complaints I have heard—and I

think we will be looking into some of these things in future hear-

ings and hearing from customers—is that some of your customers

have developed what they consider to be credible and ambitious

conservation plans, but the negotiation process with BPA was just

so onerous that many of them ultimately abandoned those plans or

otherwise curtailed or changed them undesirably.

Are we going to be looking at something perhaps that is driven

a bit more by targets as opposed to process and bureaucracy?

Mr. Hardy. We are. Basically, we have done two things. When
I first came to the agency a year and a half ago, we started to de-

centralize our conservation acquisition operation to give more re-

sponsibility to our area offices to acquire conservation. That has

been a difficult process with a staff the size we have and with a

fairly highly centralized mode of running conservation programs up
to that time.
Now I think we have now pretty well defined for the area offices

the so-called envelope within which they can operate. That is, if

they can negotiate a contract with certain cost parameters and cer-

tain contractual provisions, the area manager has the authority to
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make the decision within that envelope. I'm optimistic that that

will lead to a less bureaucratic, more responsive kind of approach.

The second thing I would say is, part of the budget cutting that

we are now doing is looking at further efficiencies in that operation

and, in particular, our own administrative overhead costs which I

thir^ are excessive in those areas. I am convinced that we can sig-

nificantly reduce those costs and probably make ourselves more re-

sponsive in the bargain.
All that being said, I think we need to distinguish between what

we need to acquire the 660 megawatts in a more efficient fashion

with probably lower program incentives but with a tiered rate or

some other kind of price signal, and what a customer may want.

I can't satisfy all the wants. The more you satisfy all the wants,

the more this becomes an entitlement program, and we simply can-

not succeed if that is the way it is viewed by ourselves and our cus-

tomers. Our customers, I think, are aware of that and are actively

working with us to try to change that.

I must say, however, that I often run into a world of difference

between the theme that I hear from a utility general manager and
that that I hear from the same utility's conservation manager
about what we are doing and not doing. Some of our own utilities

have a rather fundamental management inconsistency that they

need to wrestle with before we are going to be successful in solving

this problem.
Mr. DeFazio. Since you mentioned entitlements, I thought I

would bring up Super Good Cents, which I think some look at as

an entitlement.
Now that both Washington State and Oregon have adopted the

model conservation standards and revised upward dramatically

their residential building codes, do you believe it is time to revisit

the amount of subsidy that is provided in the single family residen-

tial, and are you going to look at that?

Mr. Hardy. Yes.
Mr. DeFazio. Okay.
The power purchases, if we could just dwell on that for a mo-

ment. You talked about purchases, $170 million unscheduled in

January, February, or early March. What are you projecting for fis-

c£d year 1994 for power purchases? In looking at next year's budg-

et, is one of the underlying factors driving the total cost of this

budget an assumption that you will require similar purchases in

the next winter that were unanticipated this year and came out of

reserves, but are you now building those into your base budget?
Mr. Hardy. Not to that level, but let me describe to you the plan-

ning horizon we are using. I will answer for the record the precise

number because I don't have it in front of me.
As a result of the fact that, given water conditions in this year,

reservoirs will not refill this year, we will have to plan to purchase
an amount of power based on average water assumptions for 1994
that will enable us to assure or give us a reasonable probability of

reservoir refill in 1994. So we would be making purchases above
what we would normally make if our reservoirs were full on July
31 of this year, but I am not going to budget $170 million of addi-

tional purchases because what we had this year was a l-in-50-year

event. It would not be prudent to collect that amount of money, but
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we are planning, based on average water assumptions, to purchase
an amount of water to make sure that under average water condi-
tions we will refill on July 31 of 1994.
Mr. DeFazio. Okay. If you could provide that figure, I would ap-

preciate it.

[The information follows:]

Power Purchases for FY 1994 are estimated at $126 million.

Mr, DeFazio. Is the budget predicated upon continued curtail-

ment of the first quartile for the aluminum companies for next
year, given the fact that you are anticipating additional
Mr. Hardy. I don't believe so, but I need to check that, Mr.

Chairman. I don't know right now what the answer to that ques-
tion is. I think we have assumed that we would have a return to

average water conditions and we would be able to serve that low.

I need to check that; I am not certain.

Mr. DeFazio. Well, if on the one hand we are assuming that we
need to have an additional budget allocation for power purchases
to refill the reservoirs, and on the other hand, we are over here as-

suming that we can reinstate that quartile, it seems that that is

not entirely contradictory. I understand there is a difference be-

tween storage and flow, but it still seems there is some overlap of

concern with those two issues.

Mr. Hardy. I am not sure what assumption we are now using
in the 1994 budget on that question. I need to get back to you on
that.

Mr. DeFazio. Could you?
[The information follows:]

The FY 1994 estimate of $126 million assumes that the first quartile for the Di-

rect Service Industries is restricted from October through December.

Mr. Hardy. I can tell you relative to what we are doing with the
DSIs that this is a day-to-day kind of thing. We have recently made
them an offer for the duration of 1993 that is a fixed price offer

to try to give us some additional stability. Basically, they would
pay for the first several months, fi*om May 1 forward, a much high-

er price for energy than they otherwise would if they got it from
surplus sales in exchange for a guarantee of replacement energy for

the duration of the year. However, I don't know what specific plan-
ning assumption we have used for the 1994 budget, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DeFazio. Is that a subject of the rate case?
Mr. Hardy. That is outside the rate case.

Mr. DeFazio. I would like to have some details on that, if I

could.

Mr. Hardy. Certainly. I would be happy to provide you that.

[The information follows:]

The 1994 budget assumes service to the first quartile of the aluminum companies
for 1994 when energy is available. The forecasts used in preparing the budget were
the same as those used in BPA's Initial Proposal to the 1993 Rate Case. BPA uses

a historical water period of 50 years in the forecast process. Whenever there is

nonfirm energy available, the aluminum companies are given first priority to pur-
chase it at the forecasted Variable Industrial rate. The expected value of the 50
water conditions is used in forecasting the service to the first quartile and becomes
the basis for the budget.

In BPA's supplemental proposal, BPA had new information on streamflows for the

spring and summer of 1993. With this new information, BPA adjusted its forecast

of service to the aluminum companies' first quartile by projecting restriction through
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December 1993. Recently, with newer information on forecasted stream flows, BPA
felt that it could be in a position to offer special service to the first quartile through

that period.

The planning assumptions used in preparing the 1994 Budget and the Initial Pro-

posal of the Rate Case do not become operational standards. They are only forecasts

of operations based upon the most current information. In the Rate Case, BPA is

not stating what will happen during the rate period; instead, BPA is only trying to

estimate what revenues and costs would be, based on the most recent input.

Mr. DeFazio. At least in my recollection, the last major problems
we had was some time in the mid-1970s. My recollection is McCall
was governor, or maybe it was Straub, but I think it was McCall.

There was a great outcry in Oregon for voluntary curtailment of

energy use. There was a big debate about car lots, over whether
they should be required to turn off their lights at night because it

was a security issue, because people might steal the cars, and
about outdoor advertising, and other calls for curtailment. I am a

little puzzled as to why we didn't ask for some voluntary curtail-

ment this year.

I think the people of the Northwest are extraordinary and un-

usual in this country, exhibiting a different spirit than I see in the

East in terms of neighborliness and cooperative sorts of responsibil-

ity that I think people in the know now would respond well, and
I'm curious why we didn't call for some voluntary curtailment while

we are in this huge deficit situation and purchasing so much
power.
Mr. Hardy. That is an excellent question, Mr. Chairman. Let me

try to explain why we didn't.

In terms of when we proceed to call for voluntary curtailment,

we have reached an agreement with the region's utilities to do that,

and it is the governors that do that. It is not Bonneville or the re-

gion's utilities; the governors have to make that call and make that

request. We have agreed to do that only when we have a genuine
power supply emergency as opposed to a severe revenue problem.

Right now, we don't have a power supply emergency; we have a se-

vere revenue problem.
If we would have gone out in mid-January when the cold snap

hit and called for region-wide curtailments, we would have exacer-

bated our revenue problem. The reason that would have happened
is just what you have alluded to—the people of the Northwest are

very conservation conscious. They would have responded just like

they did in 1977, and we would have had about 5 or 10 percent
tj^iically less kilowatt hour sales. We would have had the same
amount of fixed costs spread over a smaller kwh sales base, and
rates would have been forced up even more.
That is exactly what happened to utilities like Seattle City Light

in 1977 when we had region-wide curtailments. We had them in

1977 because we had a genuine power supply emergency. City

Light and others had a 50 percent drought surcharge. The citizens

did their duty, they conserved, and they got hit with a 50 percent

surcharge on their power bill. You can imagine the public reaction

in Seattle and other places when that became manifest. The conclu-

sion that we reached here was that unless we had a genuine power
supply emergency we would simply make an already bad revenue
problem even worse if we did that, so we have stopped short of

doing that.
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That being said, had we had one or two more events in mid-Jan-
uary, we would have been to the governors requesting regional cur-

tailment. Had two more things happened, we probably would have
been at that point. Had the cold snap lasted another week or two
and had WPPSS II continued off line for more than it did, we
might very well in early or mid-February been to the governors
asMng for that, because we simply would not have been able to

purchase enough power to serve load. That is what the regionwide
curtailment plan is set up to address, that kind of power supply
emergency as opposed to the severe revenue problem which we cur-

rently have.
Mr. DeFazio. What was yoxir average price for your purchase

power versus your average wholesale rate, or maybe even looking

at your blended rate with the lower rate to the
Mr. Hardy. If I recall correctly, our average purchase power

price for January, February, March, is about 28 mills. Our whole-
sale rates for public utilities is 24, and the rate for the aluminum
companies is 18.

Mr. DeFazio. I can't quite imderstand that then. Okay, let's say
we sold one kilowatt hour less through conservation, we have lost

24 mills of revenue; but if we had to purchase that kilowatt hour
it would have cost 28 mills; so we lost 4 mills. I don't quite imder-
stand. If you are buying it for a higher price and selling it for a
lower price, if you didn't have to sell it, do you get it? I'm puzzled.

Mr. Hardy. Our calculations were that we had a significant risk

of being worse off as a result of that in a financial sense, and we
are, by virtue of the obUgations under the regionwide curtailment

agreement, responsible for those lost revenue costs of the utilities.

That is the only way we could get them to agree to sign up.

Mr. DeFazio. Oh, so you are sajdng it isn't your wholesale rate

that is relevant to me, it is the retail rate, and so we have a rate

system in effect where, even if expensive, costs you more to pur-

chase than to generate. When you are in a deficit situation you will

go out and purchase because your avoided cost is actually higher

because it is the difference between your wholesale rate to those

utilities and their retail rate that you have to make up. So we are

subsidizing consumption at the retail rate level even in periods of

economic crisis. Is that in the rate case that you have to reimburse
them for those costs?

Mr. Hardy. No. It is part of the Share the Shortage agreement
that we have negotiated with the utilities.

Mr. DeFazio. And that is the long-term power sales agreement
with the utilities?

Mr. Hardy, No. It is a separate curtailment agreement that basi-

cally regulates a series of progressive steps associated with calling

for curtailments to address a power supply emergency.
Mr. DeFazio. It doesn't sound to me like they are sharing much.

They are saying, "We want to be made whole for the power that

we might have sold," and I mean I would say that is something to

be looked at very carefully, particularly if we beginning to look at

tiered rates. I mean we have got a problem with that kind of an
agreement because you are going to go out and purchase at higher

cost, which is a 4 mill loss to you, in order to avoid the higher mill

cost to reimburse these utilities for foregone revenues.
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Mr. Hardy. I would have to refer back to the agreement. I don't

beheve we reimbursed our total amount, but we reimbursed some
amount. But the nature of this agreement is that the power system

is all interconnected, and if we can't get unanimous consent to go

forward, one utility can lean on the system at the expense of an-

other utility. Absent trying to exercise the police powers of the

State to compel them to do certain things, and audit that and en-

force that, the best way to try to do this is to reach some collective

voluntary agreement where you share the costs that you incur

when you have to do a power supply sort of voluntary curtailment.

That is what the attempt has been with the Share the Shortage

agreement.
Mr. DeFazio. Right, but they aren't voluntarily making up the

difference in your wholesale costs at this point in time; I mean your

purchase costs. They aren't helping you pay that 4 mill difference.

That is coming out of your reserves, which of course they contrib-

uted to because they are customers, but then that drives the rate

case.

I would just say, this seems to me something that warrants a lot

of scrutiny in looking at the two-tiered or multi-tiered rates. We
shouldn't be driven by the lowest common denominator. If we have
got a bad utility out there that is not going to ask its people to con-

serve in these periods of common concern, then rather than them
driving everybody else in the wrong direction, maybe they need to

pay a little extra if they want to stay at that high rate of consump-
tion. I just urge you to look carefully at that.

I am not sure this meets the overarching mandate of the North-

west Power Act of driving us toward conservation and renewables.

It doesn't send a conservation signal to me and apparently didn't

send one to the utilities. Anyway, I think that is something that

warrants some more scrutiny.

I have gone on for quite some time. Let's see if Mr. LaRocco has

some questions. I don't have too many more. I told you it would
take about two hours. Randy, and probably we will get you out of

here in another 15 minutes.
Mr. LaRocco.
Mr. LaRocco. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I just have one question for you. The Northwest Power Planning

Council has produced a graph showing a drop in BPA preference

rates in real dollars from 1983 to 1992. If BPA had adjusted rates

since 1983 to keep pace with inflation, what would your current

cash reserve situation be? Do you have any estimates on that,

Randy?
Mr. Hardy. Basically, our rates have declined by about 23 per-

cent in real terms. We would have needed a rate increase of about

that amount over that 10-year period, 23-25 percent probably, to

keep our cash reserves level at the $400-$500-million level that

would have been our planning criterion.

So if we would have done that, I think our cash reserves would
have come in, rather than at the $90 million that I showed you in

the chart, would probably be in the $500 million, give or take,

range, which is about what our planning estimate is for what we
thiiS: an appropriate level of reserves is.
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Mr. LaRocco. You would have to raise them by 23 percent now
just to catch up to real terms?

Mr. Hardy. We would have to have raised them by a total of 23-
25 percent over that 10-year period. We would probably have to

raise them by a little more than that now, probably on the order
of 27 or 28 percent would be my guess, to get back up now, today,
to the point where we started out at 10 years ago.

I should probably also point out, Congressman, that while it is

true that our rates have declined in real terms over the last 10
years by about 20 percent, if you extend that period to the last 15
years with all the run-up in WPPSS costs in the early 1980s, they
have actually tripled in real terms in that longer time frame. So
it depends a lot on what time frame you pick.

Mr. LaRocco. Okay.
Mr. Chairman, I tlunk that is all the questions I have.
Mr. DeFazio. Thank you.
Just one more question on the conservation issue and the Super

Good Cents. It seems to me that in some areas where alternatives

are available at the curb in terms of gas for single-family resi-

dences that we are, in fact, encouraging construction of single-fam-

ily all-electric homes which, as efficient as they may be, is building
load. I wonder to what extent that is going on.

I mean, is there any discrimination in Super Good Cents on
whether gas is available at the curb, or is it just up to the discre-

tion of the utility? In fact, in some cases we may have utilities that
are not unified utilities so they aren't going to be making a choice.

I mean we have got an electric utility, and the gas utility may be
private, say, in the case of my home town. Are you looking at that
issue?
Mr. Hardy. Yes, Mr. Chairman, pursuant to our changes in our

fuel switching policy, that is one of the areas that we are reviewing
and that we had actually committed to review before the current
budget crisis came upon us.

It is clear to me that there have been abuses of that program to

build load rather than to conserve energy. While I don't think those
are universal or even a majority of the cases, they are significant

enough that they are troubling. So we are clearly looking at that
along with reducing the incentive levels in the Super Good Cents
program, and I expect that we will conclude that within the next
month or so and that you will definitely see, at a minimum, some
changes in incentive levels, lowering of incentive levels, in those
programs and perhaps curtailment of some of the programs alto-

gether, depending upon what other alternate fuel choices are avail-

able in particular areas.

Mr. DeFazio. Right. It seems to me the key is if there is alter-

native available. Certainly in a lot of rural areas and other places

there is no alternative.

Mr. Hardy. Right.

Mr. DeFazio. So there should be some distinction made.
On fish and wildlife, Congressman Smith touched a little bit on

the potential for John Day drawdown. I have seen a price tag that

says that, you know, for less than $100 million that facility could

be modified to a minimum operating pool which would increase

flows, as I have seen, for migrating fish, between half a day and
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a day through that reservoir and apparently may incur much lower

costs than some attempt to flush from higher points on the system.

Is this something that the BPA is going to be looking at as a poten-

tial option?
Mr. Hardy. Yes, we have had a meeting with fishery public in-

terest group leaders about three weeks ago. I committed to do that.

Since it is a Corps project, it has been more in the Corps' court.

The same people in my staff that will be looking at that I presently

have got fully occupied right now with the current biologic opinion

and some of the ongoing river operations, but we will take a look

at that. It does offer some interesting potential. It has some risks

associated with it that we have to evaluate. I believe that part of

this is, you have got capacity losses and other things that we have
to evaluate.

All that being said, if it does offer those kinds of improvements
in travel time for something around that kind of cost, it is some-
thing that we ought to give some consideration to. I think the real

trick here is getting a good evaluation ofjust what are all the costs,

and it is not just power costs. We have issues with the Umatilla
hatchery and wildlife preservation and other kinds of things that

are affected by the water table and water level as you vary that

reservoir. So we need to be confident that we can address those

questions satisfactorily, and we are committed to taking a look at

that.

I would say the other issue is this: If you did something like the

John Day drawdown, is that in lieu of providing additional flows

in that part of the Lower Columbia or in addition to? If it is in lieu

of, that becomes a much more attractive proposition. If it is simply
one more measure that is in addition to amount of flows that you
will have to provide, that is much less attractive. So we need to

look at all of those issues.

Mr. DeFazio. In response again to the interests of the Member
fi-om Idaho, I would expect that later this year, probably after we
have the recovery team proposal, we will devote an entire session

to our finned ftiends and related issues. So we will have more op-

portunity to explore this then.

I would like to ask another question. This one just sticks out.

You know, once when I was a county commissioner I got a hostile

editorial written by a local paper sajdng that I was counting pencils

at Lane County. Of course, this was at a time when the entire staff

of the county was on two-thirds time and we had major revenue
problems because of a downturn in the industry, and I thought, in

fact, it behooved us to look everywhere and anywhere to save

money. I think it is also an example to the organization. If there

is something that sticks out like some of the earlier questions

about the A^PSS board of directors either to the ratepayers or to

the internal organization as a sore point, it sends a message, and
it sends the wrong message.

I am a little puzzled and concerned at the numbers I see on this

squavs^sh program, and I just wonder where all the money is

going. I see a total figure of around $8,000,000 and I see $700,000
in bounties, and I wonder where the other 90 percent of the money
went. Could you illuminate that issue for me a little bit?
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Mr. Hardy. I can illuminate it. I am not sure it will be a very
satisfactory answer. That program has very high administrative
costs which we intend to cut significantly.

Mr. DeFazio. What do we do? Gro out and name every fish and
then keep track of them?
Mr. Hardy. That is a good example of a program with a sole

source contract with a particular set of State agencies. That is one
problem.
Mr. DeFazio. Who got the contract?

Mr. Hardy. The State does, ODF&W and Oregon State Univer-
sity, if I am not mistaken. We have done things like evaluating the
socioeconomic impacts of this; can you create a food consumption
market for squawfish.
Mr. DeFazio. People eat whiting these days; we are fighting over

whiting. Ten years ago it was called hake, and no one would touch
the stuff. So you never know. My cats would like it, if no one else.

Mr. Hardy. You never know, and that is a significant portion.

From my perspective, that was something that maybe was an in-

teresting and potentially attractive question when we designed and
implemented the program two years ago. That probably is some-
thing that we can't afford in this day and age. So we are going to

go back and look at those kinds of costs, Mr. Chairman, because
I would heartily agree with you that that level of cost over the ac-

tual bounty is just grossly out of proportion.

Mr. DeFazio. I would suggest that maybe we raise the bounty
a little bit. I will just put ads in the local paper for you down in

my district for unemployed mill workers and loggers. A lot of them
like to fish, and I think they would be happy to go up there and
pull them in for a little less.

But that just sort of stuck out. It sends a message. And I don't

mean to belittle you or the administration, and I realize new pro-

grams are problematic, but I am glad to hear you are going to ad-

dress it, because I think it does stick out.

I will give an observation, which maybe I shouldn't, but I am
often doing things like this. I wanted to look at the Willamette
Basin, because I had concerns over the operation of a flood control

reservoir which also had recreational value, which wasn't an al-

lowed use at the time it was constructed. In dealing with the Corps
of Engineers, they came up with a phenomenal price tag to just

study the system, which hadn't been studied as an integral whole.

It had been built one dam at a time, and the last modeling they
did was in the 1930s before any of the dams were built, so I said

I think maybe it is time to update this. So they gave me this very
big price tag, and reluctantly I paid it, and of course 3 years later

I am still waiting for the result.

Then I asked them to look at another study, and this time they
came in with another phenomenal price tag, and I said to them,
"I'll tell you what. You go back and you justify everything in this.

Detail me the budget. You show me where all this money is going,

and I'll look at getting the money"—I learned something fi*om the

first example—and suddenly the price tag for the second study
dropped rather dramatically. I still didn't get the detailed breakout
and, in fact, still thought it was too high.
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The point is, in dealing with these State agencies or anyone else,

sole contracts, you know, they are going to rip you off if they can.

I mean they have got Measure 5 in Oregon and they have got ev-

erything else going on, and if they can pick up some money from

you they don't have to get it out of the licenses or somewhere else.

That is just a concern with your sort of general contracting proce-

dures when you get to sole source contracts. I think we should only

use sole source contract when there is some very unique attribute,

and that still doesn't mean we let them bargain like a monopoly;

we can hold them to some reasonable accountability.

Maybe we could close on a couple of general questions. I think

we have got a pretty good picture of where we are headed this

year, and we are looking at out years in the budget, but I am con-

cerned that there is ongoing litigation. I would think we know pret-

ty well where we are headed with water this year and other poten-

tial problems, and it looks as though the Treasury payment is not

imperiled, in my opinion, at this point in time for this year, which

I think is very desirable in the current climate in Washington, DC.
I just can't follow all this stuff, but it seems to me that Judge

Marsh is our Judge Dv^^er of fish, and there are some cases pend-

ing before him that might have some impact on the system or sys-

tem operations.

Could you briefly comment on that and what the potential impli-

cations of those are possibly—best case/worst case?

Mr. Hardy. To speculate on the state of mind of a federal district

judge is probably a little beyond my purview.

TTiere is a hearing before Judge Marsh tomorrow which could

fundamentally change things. I don't know if it will or not. It is on

the permit that National Marine Fisheries gave the Corps to trans-

port fish by barge fi-om the upper part of the Snake down below

Bonneville Dam. That has been challenged by a group of interve-

ner, tribes and environmental groups—in particular, American Riv-

ers and the Sierra Club.
When the judge held his initial hearing on that last Thursday,

what the Department of Justice argued was that this was a fairly

narrow issue associated with a strategy that has been in place for

20 years and that it should be treated that way. The judge indi-

cated, as I understand it—I was not in the courtroom—that he was
not inclined to treat it that way. He swore in several experts who
happened to be there in the courtroom and basically went through

four hours of trying to understand how the river system ran. He
had significant questions about increased spill, about potentially

more flows, about other hydro system measures, and he indicated

he would reconvene everybody tomorrow. He asked for a couple of

specific witnesses to appear before him and potentially make some
Mnd of a ruling.

If he were to uphold the permit and allow the barging to con-

tinue, our revenue situation would be basically unchanged, and

from my perspective, this is a question really that the MNFS recov-

ery team should address in a comprehensive fashion as opposed to

singling out one issue.

But S" the judge were to decide to take control of this situation,

it is unclear what the impHcations would be. But any more flows

or increased spill would have significant revenue implications and.



62

depending upon what the magnitude of those were, could very well
put the Treasury payment in jeopardy.
Mr. DeFazio. But you are at this moment committed to making

the flows—to meeting the Council's program?
Mr. Hardy. That is right. We are meeting the Council's plan

with some added flows that we committed to as a result of our
1992 consultation with the National Marine Fisheries Service. We
are currently in consultations with NMFS this year, and I think it

is safe to say that we will probably end up providing even more
flows in 1993, although we haven't finally resolved those issues.

What Judge Marsh may do, however, is a total unknown and
could be well beyond an5^hing that we have contemplated so far.

If it is, it could have significant revenue implications, and I would
be hesitant to speculate on what those could be because I just don't

know.
Mr. DeFazio. But you have at this point no intention of not

meeting the goals that were set in cooperation and coordination
with the Council and consultation with NMFS.
Mr. Hardy. That is absolutely correct. We have met the Power

Council's goals and our 1992 operational commitments to NMFS to

the letter, and we intend to do that in 1993, whatever the result

of those consultations ends up being.
Mr. DeFazio. Okay.
Just two things to put this all in perspective. This was touched

on before, and I realize that I may have to ask this in a different

manner, which has to do with your operating reserves. Having
come fi-om county government, I am familiar with the concept of
revenue anticipation notes, tax anticipation notes, commonly used,
and obviously in the case of BPA we have a stable and predictable
customer base and can predict with some accuracy, absent generat-
ing problems, but at least on the consumption side, what our reve-
nues will be given a rate.

When BPA bills a utility, how often do you bill your customer
utilities?

Mr. Hardy. Monthly.
Mr. DeFazio. Monthly. And then how long do they have to pay

that bill?

Mr. Hardy. We require payment 20 days.
Mr. DeFazio. And are they all billed on the same date, or are

they billed on different dates?
Mr. Hardy. The large customers are billed at the beginning of

the month and the smaller ones are billed throughout the month.
Mr. DeFazio. At the beginning of the month. So if there were to

be a critical cash flow problem next fall after you make your Treas-
ury pajmient, that would occur in the initial weeks of the month
of October.
Mr. Hardy. It is a little more complicated than that. Let me just

talk about the problem generally without reference to the specific

proposal that the customers have made in the rate case.

Mr. DeFazio. I am certainly not raising a specific proposal, I am
investigating your billing practices, because my utility doesn't give
me three weeks to pay the bill, do you. Bill?

Mr. KiTTREDGE. No.
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Mr. DeFazio. No, I didn't think so. In fact, last month, with my
travel schedule, I was in arrears and I got a notice.

That isn't set by contract, is it, the length of time which they

have to pay? Is it set by contract?

Mr. Hardy. Yes, it is set by contract.

Mr. DeFazio. Oh, it is. The 20 days?
Mr. Hardy. Yes, sir.

Mr. DeFazio. Is it set by long-term contract or

Mr. Hardy. I believe it is set by their power sales contract, if I

am not mistaken, but I would have to check to make sure.

Mr. DeFazio. Okay. It is?

Mr. Hardy. It is the power sales contract, so it is a long-term ob-

ligation The power sales contract requires payment in accordance

with our rate schedules which set the payment date.

Mr. DeFazio. So given current contractual obligations, we have
given them the 20 days.

Mr. Hardy. For your information, we are renegotiating the

power sales contracts over probably the next 18 months to 2 years,

and that could well be one of the provisions that could be changed,

and as I say, the customers have made a specific proposal to

change that or to agree to a so-called prompt payment in the rate

case, and we are evaluating that.

Let me talk a little bit about what we have got to deal with here.

We have got two sets of problems. One is the immediate cash flow

problem to get through that three-week period, and as I mentioned
in my opening statement, typically to get through that three- to

four-week period we would typically have $80-$100 million worth
of cash flow in the month of October.

What we proposed initially, back before we entered the rate case,

was to carry a $100 million reserve level. We have now lowered

that in our initial rate case proposal to $50 million to try to gamer
the rate benefit of that.

What the customers are asking is to reduce it to or 5 or some
other number that is fairly low. We are looking at that proposal.

We are also looking at other proposals that would have the same
effect. But we have got two problems. One is the immediate prob-

lem, but the other is a problem that goes on for several months.
Typically, even with $100 million of reserves, our expenditures

exceed our cash receipts for a 3- or 4-month period from October

1 until about the end of the year. So if that is the pattern and you
don't have a fairly high level of reserves to begin with, you are run-

ning to catch up, and what you need from the customers if you are

down near in reserve levels is not just that one-time prompt pay-

ment, you need a stream of revenues that is going to help you get

over a 3- to 4- to 6-month period before you are evened out again,

and that complicates the problem beyond just the immediate
prompt payment problem.

All that being said, we are looking at trying to find a way to do

what the customers want, which is to get that $50 million number
down. It may or may not involve the kind of prompt payment
mechanism that they have suggested.

Mr. DeFazio. Okay. Just for reference, when was the last whole-

sale rate increase?
Mr. Hardy. It was in 1991, October 1 of 1991.
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Mr. DeFazio. And how much was that one?
Mr. Hardy. About 2.5 percent.

Mr. DeFazio. Okay.
Do you have any model for measurable economic impacts? I

noted one of my local utilities usually uses a period of rate increase

by BPA to piggy-back. Is that common?
Mr. Hardy. That is not an uncommon phenomenon, Mr. Chair-

man.
Mr. DeFazio. Is this measurable long-term—if you go 2.5 percent

or you go 5 percent, the inflationary impact in terms of cost of elec-

tricity throughout the region is x, is there any model out there?

When we are talking about rate increases of the magnitude you are

talking, I am just curious about what the total economic impact is.

Mr. Hardy. It is very difficult and dangerous, frankly, to specu-

late about what the ripple effect of our wholesale rate impact is at

the retail level because utility circumstances are so different. A
rule of thumb that some use is, if you are a total requirements cus-

tomer you buy all your power from Bonneville. A 10 percent Bonne-
ville rate increase would equal about a 5 percent retail rate in-

crease absent any other factors. Now you crank in inflation, and
you crank in the cost of a utility's distribution system. Typically I

think a number of our customers do use the occasion of our rate

increase to increase rates not just to accommodate our increased

wholesale power bill but for their own needs it is convenient to do

that. The costs can vary significantly anywhere from 90 percent to

10 percent of our wholesale rate increase passed through to retail,

just depending upon the individual circumstances of an individual

customer.
Mr. DeFazio. When we were talking earlier about your power

purchases and the concerns about consumption, it seems to me
there must be some elasticity with consumption which will be driv-

en by the rate increase, particularly for marginal businesses or

other large consumers of power, et cetera. So at some point, after

you raise the rates to a certain amount, you must be assuming that

your consumption falls off a certain amount. Is that factored in?

Mr. Hardy. It is factored in, in terms of how we evaluate the

load impacts of any rate proposal. I don't have those numbers right

at my fmgertips, but I would be happy to give you some illustrative

examples for the record.

Mr. DeFazio. Okay.
[The information follows:]

BPA accounts for the effects of electricity rate increases on electricity load. In gen-

eral, as the electricity rate increases, load decreases. In addition, with any given

rate increase, marginal businesses or large electric energy-intensive industrial con-

sumers will be affected the most, relative to residential or commercial consumers.

We reflect the effects of rate increases in our load forecasts used for rate projec-

tions and for long-term resource planning. The electricity rate is a significant factor

influencing electricity consumption, along with other factors, such as employment
and variations in weather. We describe the responsiveness of electricity loads to

electricity rates by the term elasticity. Our near-term forecasting models, used t»

forecast one to five years out, have relatively low elasticities of less than -0.1, indi-

cating that a 10 percent increase in average retail electricity price would result in

a public utility load decrease of less than 1 percent. This is a short-term elasticity,

intended to reflect only near-term changes in retail electricity usage.

In our near-term forecasting, we have also included a small amount of additional

load losses from marginally viable industrial firms that we believe will be especially

had hit by rare increases. This is because the general models used for near-term
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forecasting do not fully capture the effects of price increases on some firms. Elastic-
ities in our long-term load forecasting models are higher (about -0.3) reflecting the
fact that consumers will show a greater response to price increases when they nave
more time to react (i.e., acquire more efficient buildings and equipment and/or sub-
stitute alternative fuels for electricity).

Unfortunately, several factors complicate the assessment of load responses to
price increases outlined above. First, at the wholesale level, our utility customers
will consider alternative sources of bulk power (generation resources or possibly
non-BPA power purchases) that are competitive with the price of BPA's power. We
presently oelieve that this rate threshold is between 35 and 40 mills/kVh depending
upon the utility and resource being considered, assuming that utilities can acquire
generation resources at a price comparable to BPA's acquisitions. This level is still

significantly above our expected wholesale rate level, but the gap is narrowing.
Second, our analysis for the initial rate proposal considered BPA wholesale rate

increases in the range of 15 to 17 percent. Significantly higher wholesale rate in-

creases in the range of 20 percent or hither were not incorporated in the initial rate
proposal, but sensitivity analyses with respect to higher rate increases have been
conducted. Our current assessment based on work done to date is that most firms
and industries will respond to higher rates consistent with the elasticities described
above. We are continuing to review and assess likely responses to rate increases and
will reflect the results of such review when we prepare our final rate analyses of
loads.

Third, at the retail level, industrial consumers could be made temjMjrarily or per-
manently unprofitable if their production costs increase significantly as a result of
our rate increase relative to the market price for their products. At some point, are
"thresholds" are reached, such that the load responses by individual consumers will
be "lumpy." These response thresholds differ by individual firm and industry be-
cause individual economic and market circumstances differ. We focus emalysis on
those firms and industries most apt to hit "thresholds" and believe we have a rea-
sonable assessment of likely load responses, but this sort of firm and industry level

analysis is inherently complicated and difficult given the myriad factors that influ-

ence firms' decisions about operations and investments in plant and equipment.
Two large Northwest industries in particular, primary aluminum and pulp and

paper, have sufficiently high electricity costs as a fi-action of total production costs
that significant load reductions are plausible. For example, a rate increase in excess
of 25 percent would result in an aluminum smelter production cost increase of over
5 cents per pound of aluminum, which, at currently forecasted aluminum prices,
could cause an additional load loss of 150 average Nw beyond currently forecasted
smelter curtailments, an amount equivalent to a small regional smelter.
At retail rates of 35 to 40 mills per kWh, pulp and paper mills would begin to

consider installation of cogeneration facilities to decrease their reliance on pur-
chased electricity. Even large (40 percent) wholesale rate increases do not result in
industrial retail rates for most public industrial electricity consumption that ap-
proach 35 mills per kWh, however, Therefore our current analyses ao not indicate
that large reductions in pulp and paper loads will be triggered by the BPA rate in-

creases currently being considered.

Mr. DeFazio. One other last, last point. Just an observation from
my years in public service and government is that I realize that
you are making some extraordinary efforts in terms of your admin-
istrative costs, and I was very pleased to hear that we are going
to look at the contractors and WPPSS and their administrative and
operating costs, et cetera.

But when you look at your major program areas, I guess I would
say I am not certain that across-the-board cuts are most desirable,
that in the case there may be some parts of the organization that
haven't seen reductions or cuts or pressures as much as other parts
of the organization; some parts of the organization are more essen-
tial than other parts of the organization; some parts are mandated,
some parts are not.

I just want to express that general concern when you are looking
at those sorts of constraints, and again, you are the administrator
and you have got to make these calls, but it is just a general obser-
vation. It goes to the concern that I opened with and I'll close with,
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which is to say that at any and all costs, not wasting money or

anything else, but we have to avoid getting into a situation where
our federal system is being run out of the courts.

It is just not desirable for anybody to get to that point in time,

and if there are certain measures that some may even find objec-

tionable in a difficult budget year, we have got to remember that,

you know, fish, according to the Northwest Power Act, are not nice

to have, they are something we have to have and we have to at-

tempt to perpetuate. We really need to avoid in any areas of the

budget untoward cost cutting. You know, in the case of the Forest

Service, they did some things under the direction of John Crowell

that the industry applauded greatly at the time and thought, "Boy,

this is great, we are going to get more timber harvest." Well, it

turns out, in fact, they began the long downward spiral to catas-

trophe and virtually no timber harvest or sale program and very

little timber harvest because of what people thought was very ben-

eficial to them at the beginning.

So I realize you have customer pressures, and I think, from the

hearing, that you have expressed some things that I am very sup-

portive of in terms of taking some tough looks at basically every-

thing and putting everything on the table. I really applaud you and
support that. I realize that you are under a multitude of pressures

out there, but we have got to keep the long-term view in mind, too,

as we make some of these short-term decisions. Maybe we are not

going to be comfortable with it, but on the other hand, if it is a

choice between an essential program that is going to avoid future

huge costs, those are judgment calls you will have to make.
But I just want to applaud what I see as your willingness to con-

sider anything and eve^hing and let you know that I will support

you in those efforts and continue to push you on a number of those

points I raised.

I think you got the points about WPPSS and the contractors and
some of the other things I raised. I think those are stones to be

turned over in addition to some of these other things you are al-

ready doing, and I appreciate your willingness to be here and share

so much of your time, your opinions, and be open with your re-

sponses. I hope that your customers appreciate it too because I

think you are representing them well.

So thank you very much. I appreciate it.

Do you have any closing comments?
Mr. Hardy. I guess I would like to say two things, Mr. Chair-

man. One is, I appreciate, as I have expressed to you before, your

chairing this task force and convening these series of oversight

hearings. It helps to have someone, both you and the other task

force members, taking a comprehensive look at what we do and the

trade-offs we have to make.
I must say, what I suffer fi-om most in this job is people coming

in selectively on this issue or that issue and then they disappear

for the 99 percent of the rest of the issues that I have to deal with.

Taking a comprehensive look is very helpful to let us know wheth-
er, in your judgment, I am making the right judgments or we are

msiking the right judgments about these trade-offs between the size

of the rate increase and funding essential programs.



67

The other thing I would say is, when we talk about across-the-

board cuts, I don't mean to imply equal percentage cuts for each

program. We are talking about a range of 5-25 percent. What I

mean to imply is, every program is going to take some level of cuts,

but I am going to be highly selective in how I do this. When I say

"cut, not gut," what I mean to try to express by that is, we are not

going to sacrifice the long term for the short term, and we are not

going to single out fish and wildlife and conservation programs to

be the only programs that are going to be cut.

Unless I miss my guess, our transmission program will probably

bear the single biggest share of the cuts of any of our programs.

The others will span somewhere in between that 5-25 percent

range with fish and wildlife probably being in the middle some-

where, but with making those reductions in areas like the

squawfish program and other things, where we frankly can and

should make them, but hopefully not sacrificing long-term objec-

tives. I appreciate your support in trying to do that.

Mr. DeFazio. I will look forward to our series of hearings and

meetings over the year. In the future you won't have to carry the

entire burden yourself. We will have witnesses from the region,

utihties and other interested parties at the fiiture hearings, and I

am looking forward to that.

Thank you. I appreciate it.

Mr. Hardy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DeFazio. The hearing is adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 3:41 p.m., the task force was adjourned.]
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Responses to Congressman DeFazio's Pre-Hearing Questions

Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) Task Force

QUESTIONS FROM CONGRESSMAN DEFAZIO

Please note that the figures expressed in this document do not reflect revisions which will come

about as a result ofFY 1994 Rate Case settlement discussions and fi-om BPA's ongoing cost

cutting actions.
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OVERVIEW

Question 1

:

Please indicate what percentage ofthe BPA FY 1994 budget is spent on the

following:

- WNP 1, 2, 3 debt service

- WNP 1, 2, 3 operations and mothbailing

- WNP 4, 5 settlement costs

- non-WNP energy resources

- federal/interest principle

- transniission

- residential exchange

- non-WNP operations

- conservation

- fish and wildlife

Answer: Percentages ofthe BPA FY 1994 budget are reflected in the following Table:

1994 Congressional Budget Obligations for FY 94

Gross Net 4/

WNP-1, 2 & 3 debt service

WNP-1, 2 & 3 operations &
mothbailing

WNP 4 & 5 settlement costs

Non-WNP energy resources 1/

Federal Interest/Principal 2/

Transmission

Residential Exchange 3/

Non-WNP operations

(miscellaneous)

Conservation

Fish & Wildlife

TOTAL

FY 1994
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2/ Includes $156 million as an unscheduled amortization payment connected with funds

from the non-Federal participants in the Third AC Intertie transmission line, and will be

made only if these funds are received in a timely manner.

3/ The 1 980 Northwest Power Act established the residential exchange in order to extend

the benefits of the Federal Power system to all residential and small farm electric customer

in the Pacific Northwest. The gross cost of the Exchange is offset by revenues of

$1,055.2 million, resulting in an estimated net cost of program to BPA customers in FY

1994 of $166.6 million.

4/ For budgetary purposes BPA must obligate the gross costs of the residential exchange

program. The only difference between the gross and net cost is a factor of the residential

exchange program where the gross cost of the Exchange is offset by revenues of $1,055.

million as noted in footnote #3. This column is provided for discussion purposes only.
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OPERATIONS

Question 1

:

The amount ofthe BPA operations budget per year from FY 1980 to FY 1993

and proposed budget for FY 1994, with a breakdown of operations expenses by

function per year.

Answer: The following Table 1 provides the data requested.

Question 2:

Answer:

A list of the number ofFTE positions, including seasonal or temporary

workers, at BPA by fiscal year from FY 1980 to FY 1993 and proposed FTE
for FY 1994. Please provide a numerical breakdown for each fiscal year of the

following:

- number ofFTE at each GS, GM, or SES level;

- staff fiinction by program (for example—power operations,

transmission, conservation, public affairs, etc.)> and;

- nimiber ofFTE slots actually filled.

TO BE PROVIDED LATER
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4/1

Question 2: A list of the number ofFTE positions, including seasonal or temporary workers, at

BPA by fiscal year from FV 1980 to FY 1993 and proposed FTE for FY 1994.

Please provide a numerical breakdown for each fiscal year of the following:

- number ofFTE at each GS, GM, or SES level;

- staff function by program (for example—power operations, transmission,

conservation, public affairs, etc.), and;

- number ofFTE slots actually filled.

Answer: BPA's Federal FTE ("full-time equivalent" employment level, or "worker-years")

has been at a steady 3,500 plus or minus about S percent for the past 20 years

(Figure 1). We estimate, however, that the regional workforce BPA pays for

numbers about 12,000. So, BPA accomplishes most of its mission to deliver the

benefits of the Federal Columbia River Power System to the people of the Pacific

Northwest by and through other parties. Many of these parties are contractors of

various stripes—construction firms in the building of our transmission &cilities,

retail utilities in the delivery ofour conservation programs, the States and Indian

Tribes in the enhancement offish and wildlife, etc. Nearly all of the great

expansion ofBPA workload that came with the passage of the 1980 Pacific

Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation Act has been accommodated

by contracting.
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The following chart (Figure 2) represents the actual number ofBPA FTE at the

GS/GM, SES, and hourly levels for fiscal years 1985 through 1992. Each FTE

number represents all BPA positions including seasonal and temporary workers.

Projected FTE at the GM/GS, SES, and hourly levels for fiscal years 1993 and

1994 is not available. However, FTE program levels for fiscal years 1993 - 1995

were projected in BPA's 1993 Initial Rate Proposal and are detailed in Figure 3.

Figure 2

Actual FTE Levels at Each GM/GS/SES/Hourly Level
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The next chart (Rgure 3) shows FTE by program, and includes projections for

fiscal years 1993-1995.

Figures

Actual, Estimated,
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The total amount budgeted in FY 94 for purchases of equipment, including,

but not limited to, computers, vehicles, furniture, and a list and description of

these proposed expenditures.

For FY 1994, BPA has budgeted approximately $12,770,000 for capital

tools and equipment. This includes S7,600,000 for power system tools and

equipment, and $5,170,000 for capitalized general purpose Automated Data

Processing equipment, and capitalized office equipment and furniture.

Descriptions ofthese categories are provided below. In addition to these

amounts, BPA makes expenditures for transmission system equipment such

as transformers, circuit breakers, microwave, etc., which are purchased as

part ofthe capital investment for transmission system development and

maintenance and replacement programs.

Note: Please note that the following discussion does not yet include the

effects of current cost-cutting efforts.

Power system capital tools and equipment:

Capitalized tools and equipment - portable generators, electronic survey

equipment, chemical sprayers, electric welders, cable and conductor handling

equipment, saws, metal fabrication equipment, etc. - $532,000.

Motor vehicle equipment - Line trucks, trailers, crawlers, tractors, truck-

mounted cranes and manlifls, material handlers and all-terrain cranes, etc. -

$2,432,000.
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Laboratory and field test equipment - Video probes, electronic digital

hydrometers, digital circuit-breaker timers, portable digital fault recorders,

DC. ground detectors, 500-kv standard resistor, etc. - $2,812,000.

Power systems control equipment - Communications test, yoice, and data

equipment, baseband spectrum analyzers, noise-load test equipment, circuit

board testers, signal disturbance monitors, network analyzers, etc. -

$1,292,000.

Special purpose ADP equipment - engineering image processing , stereo

plotters, etc. - $532,000.

General Purpose Automated Data Processing Equipment:

Personal Computers - Personal computers , soundboards and system cards, anc

PC printers - $965,000.

WAN/LAN Equipment - Wide Area Network and Local Area Network

computer systems servers, hubs, modems, cabling, etc. - $1,140,000.

Scientific and technical equipment - workstations, VAX's, VAX disk storage,

roM disk storage, etc. $1,740,000.

Telecommunication equipment - telephone switch, televideo conferencing

equipment, etc. $410,000.

OflSce Furniture and Systems Equipment . - Systems furniture, filing and

records storage equipment, and printing, photographic, and reproduction

equipment -$915,000.
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Question 4: BPA contractor expenditures from FY 1991 to FY" 1993 and proposed

expenditures for FY 1994. Please provide a numerical breakdown for each

fiscal year of the following:

- number of contractor employees;

- amount of contractor funding by program;

contractor equipment purchases paid for by BPA.

Answer: BPA does not measure directly the staffing levels of its contractors. We have

made rough estimates, nevertheless, from funding levels and information

provided verbally by the contractors. The numbers in Figure 1 are FTE for

which BPA bears the cost.
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•(Estimates from operating plan projections at start-of-year Projections not

yet available for FY 1994).

Estimates of the FTE that have been or will be engaged in BPA support

services contracting are presented by program in Figure 3.

Figures

Estimates of Support Services Contractor Staffing Levels:

FY 1994-95 Post-PIP Decisions

By Program Areas

FTE
FY 1990 1/ FY 1991 1/ FY 1992 1/ FY 1993 2/
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On contractor equipment purchases paid for by BPA, BPA generally retains

the title on the equipment. Ifthe useful life of the equipment is over when the

contract expires, BPA may abandon the property in place or transfer the title.

Ifthe useful life is not over by the time the contract expires, the equipment

either comes back for utilization or disposal or, in a few cases, BPA allows the

contractor to retain the equipment if they could use it on another contract for

BPA or for some other Federal agency.

Question 5: It is my understanding that at the most recent "Programs In Perspective" BPA
engineers agreed that in certain cases local utilities can design and construct

power lines below 500 kv more cost-effectively than BPA. Is this an accurate

statement? If so, how much money could be saved from FY 1994 to FY 1998

ifBPA turned this responsibility over to the local utilities? Are there other

areas relating to transmission that BPA could transfer work to local utilities to

achieve more cost-effective resuks?

Answer: The statement is not accurate. In the last Programs in Perspective BPA stated

that in some cases local utilities can build 1 1 S kv transmission lines less

expensively. The comment did not include facilities above 11 S kv and did not

extend to the construction of 115 kv substation facilities or the operation and

maintenance of facilities. The primary reason for BPA costs being higher than

some customer costs is related to the Federal requirement for complying with

environmental planning studies and securing oftransmission line right-of-way.

The added right-of-way costs are attributable to width requirements to comply

with reliability criteria. We can build short 1 15 kv lines and rebuild 1 15 kv

lines to 230 kv more cost effectively than other utilities by using our area

Transmission Line Maintenance crews. However, this practice detracts from

our maintenance program.
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Periodically, BPA conducts intensive detailed comparisons of its design criteria

and unit costs for various transmission facilities with a number of U.S. utilities.

In these comparisons, the cost ofBPA facilities at 500 kv and 230 kv have

been some of the lowest in North America.

We believe very little savings could be accomplished between FY 94 to FY 96

by turning over construction to local utilities for 115 kv facilities. In years

past, BPA has built a significant number of 1 15 kv lines. The BPA system has a

total of approximately 3,300 miles of 115 kv. However, during the last five

years, BPA has completed only 2 miles ofnew 1 1 5 kv line. For FY 1994 to

1998 we anticipate building only 15 miles of new 1 15 kv line as part of a larger

construction program involving 500 kv construction.

At the present time, we are unaware of other areas related to transmission that

could be transferred to local utilities. As part of the competitiveness initiative

we will however, continue to look at all areas of transmission line and

substation design and construction at voltages of 1 1 5 kv and above to

determine how, all things considered, these projects can be built in the most

cost effective manner.

Has an independent entity conducted a top to bottom review of the efficiency

ofBPA operations? If not, does BPA intend to initiate such an independent

review?

BPA has not had an independent entity review its operations. However, BPA

has initiated an internal (function-by-function) review of the entire agency's

operating efficiency. This will be a customer-based, quality-based review. It

will focus on what the customers need, what BPA produces to meet that need,
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and how efficiently and efifectively BPA produces it. Customers will be

represented on each of the functional review teams. At the present time, BPA

does not intend to contract outside the agency for such a review.

Question 7: BPA has announced that cuts will occur in the administrative budget, including

employee training, travel, supplies and support services. What level of

reductions will you take from current levels in these and other administrative

areas? What cuts wrill be taken in FY 94 and FY 95 from budgeted levels?

Answer: On April 9, 1993, BPA announced cuts ofup to 50 percent in the remaining

fiscal year 1993 budgets for administrative costs. The purpose ofthese cuts is to

conserve maximum cash in FY 1993 so that BPA can make its annual payment of

approximately $700 million to the U.S. Treasury on September 30, 1993.

Examples of the administrative cuts BPA is making include limiting travel,

eliminating most training, reducing office supply purchases, restricting overtime,

limiting use of support service contracts, increasing charges for employee

services, and placing a moratorium on work station and equipment moves. The

actual savings from these cuts is still being identified by BPA managers.

At the same time, BPA is undertaking an agency-wide function-by-function

review to identify all possible cost-savings and efficiencies that can be gained

on a permanent basis. BPA customers have been invited to participate in this

review.

Simultaneously, BPA is reviewing its FY 1994 and FY 1995 program levels, in

an effort to minimize the rate increase slated to go into effect on October 1,

1993. BPA program managers have been asked to look at the impacts of cuts

ranging from 5 to 25 percent. Over the next several weeks, customers, key
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constituent groups, and Congressional committee members will be solicited for

ideas on how we can achieve these cuts in a balanced and equitable fashion.
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Revenues

Question 1

:

An estimate ofthe amount of revenues foregone per fiscal year since the

irrigation discount was implemented in 1984, and an estimate of the revenue

increase per year fi-om FY 1994 to FY 1998 if it is eliminated. Is there any

statutory basis for the irrigation discount?

Answer: The irrigation discount has been available since 198S and the participating utility

must pass through the entire amoimt to the end-user irrigator.

The annual amount ofthe irrigation discount since 198S is as follows:

Year

1985

1986

1986

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

Irrigation

Discount Amount

(S Kfillions)

6.050

11.976

11.976

17.468

14.043

13.025

11.883

13.236

Concerning the amount of revenue deficiency for future years, in BPA's initial rate

proposal BPA forecasted the revenue deficiency for the upcoming 2-year rate

period (FY 1994 and 1995) to be a total of $27,018 million. No forecast for years

beyond 1995 has been performed.

BPA regrets that it must refi'ain fi-om addressing the question pertaining to the

statutory basis for the irrigation discount due to the prohibition on ex parte

communications that applies to issues pending resolution in rate hearings

conducted pursuant to section 7(i) ofthe Northwest Power Act. Please refer

to the explanation (Enclosure 1) at the end of this document.
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An estimate of the amount ofrevenues foregone per fiscal year since the low-

density discount was implemented, the revenue increase per year fi-om FY
1994 to FY 1998 if the discount is eliminated, and an estimate of the revenue

increase, if any, if the discount is modified in accordance with the proposal

submitted by the Northwest Conservation Act Coalition.

By fiscal year, the amount of low-density discount is reflected in the following

table.

Year

1982

1983

1984

1985

1986

1987

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

Forecasted

1994

1995

Low Density Discount *

($)

5,502,559

7,660,127

9,490,116

12,471,338

11,876,838

11,852,888

13,993,768

15,190,906

18,625,482

18,363,652

18,859,375

21,336,000

21,619,000

•Numbers exclude residential exchange.

The amount ofthe low-density discount for FY 94 and FY 95, as forecast in

BPA's initial rate proposal is $21,336,000 and $21,619,000, respectively. No

forecasts for years beyond 1995 have been performed.

BPA regrets that it must refi-ain fi-om addressing the question concerning the

proposal submitted by the Northwest Conservation Act Coalition due to the

prohibition on ex parte communications that implies to issues pending
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resolution in rate hearings conducted pursuant to section 7(i) ofthe Northwest

Power Act. Please refer to the explanation (Enclosure 1) at the end of this

document.

Question 3

;

It is my understanding that certain BPA customer utilities have advanced a

proposal to increase BPA's short-term cash flows by paying their BPA
obligations earlier than they presently do. Please describe the benefits that

might accrue to BPA if this approach was adopted Does BPA plan to

implement this proposal?

Answer: BPA regrets that it must refrain from addressing this question due to the

prohibition on ex parte communications that applies to issues pending

resolution in rate hearings conducted pursuant to section 7(i) of the Northwest

Power Act. Please refer to the explanation (Enclosure 1) at the end of this

document

While ex parte restrictions prevent BPA from discussing this specific proposal,

the agency has lowered its level ofworking capital (which this proposal was

designed to address) from $100 million to SSO million in its initial rate case

proposal. It is possible that this level may be lowered further, with associated

rate savings, as the rate case progresses This lower level ofworking capital

might result from adopting a form ofthe customer prompt payment suggestion,

or from other financial approaches.

Question 4; An estimate of the effect on revenues in FY 1994 and annually thereafter if

BPA sold 1350 megawatts of Third AC capacity to participants instead of

the 725 megawatts of capacity BPA currently plans to sell.

Answer: BPA regrets that it must refi'ain fi'om addressing this question due to the

prohibition on ex parte communications that applies to issues pending
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resolution in rate hearings conducted pursuant to section 7(i) of the Northwest

Power Act. Please refer to the explanation (Enclosure 1) at the end of this

document.
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Question 1

:

Washington Public Power SuddIy System fWPPSS^

An estimate of the savings per year from FY 1994 to FY 1998 if the

"mothballing" ofWNP 1 and 3 was terminated.

Answer: The current cost to preserve the two projects is approximately $10.5

million per year, ofwhich about half is funded from BPA revenues (which

is included in the current rate case) and halffrom the WNP-1 construction

fund. The savings from discontinuing preservation may be offset by other

costs. The most significant is site restoration. BPA and the WPPSS are

working to resolve a number of legal and financial issues in order to

maximize the potential savings from a termination decision. These issues

must be resolved prior to making a termination decision.

Question 2; An estimate of the revenues that would result ifWNP 1 and 3 fuel was sold

following the termination of mothballing.

Answer: The current market value of the WNP-1 and WNP-3 fuel and enrichment is

approximately $100 million. Depending on market conditions and the

approach used to sell the fuel, that amount could be recovered over the next

several years following a termination decision. It should be noted that short

term disposition of these quantities could depress the market price for the

commodity and reduce the net gain from the sale. There are unresolved legal

issues that could restrict the potential uses of revenues from fuel and other

asset salvage sales. Resolution will likely require a declaratory judgment in

state or federal court.

Question 3

:

Please provide an estimate ofthe payment the BPA will make to WPPSS for

the operating costs ofWNP-2 in FY 1994. How do WNP-2 operating costs

compare to the nuclear industry average? Does BPA have a mechanism for

auditing WNP-2 operating expenses? Has BPA ever reflised to pay any WNP-
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2 expenses? If so, please state the amount ofpayment refused and the

ratioaak [or] doing so.

The payment BPA wOl make to the WPPSS for the FY 1994 (July 1-Junc 30)

WNP-2 operating costs is estimated to be $242 million. This figure includes

operating and maintenance, cental and fiid. Verifiable industry cost dau is

difficuh to obtain. However, in our opinion, WNP-2 operating costs (37.0

nuUs/kwh - 12 month rolling average as ofMarch 1993) are within the cost range

experienced by other Single Nuclear Plant Utilities and on the high end ofthe

industry average cost for Sin^e Nuclear Plam Utilities. BPA does not currently

audit WNP-2 operating expenses but does have an overaght staff at the WPPSS

and a member ofBPA's internal audit staff is a part of this group. The oversight

staff) working in conjunction with BPA headquarters staff) is responsible for

exercising BPA's contractual authorities including approval of annual budgets and

contract awards greater than SSOO,000. Any BPA disapproval must be based

solely on whether the item is consistent with the standard of prudent utility

practice. BPA has not formally disapproved any WNP-2 expenses. However, the

WPPSS has been responsive to BPA's requests regarding outage scheduling and

reducing expenditures whenever prudent.

It is my understanding that WPPSS currently pays its board members SSOC per

day of service. Does BPA reimburse WPPSS for these expenses? If so, please

provide an estimate ofthe total funding BPA has provided WPPSS since 1980

for this purpose.

The WPPSS currently pays its board members SSOO phis expenses per day of

service. BPA reimburses the WPPSS for these expenses. Below are the totals

for the fiscal years 1987 through 1993. Eariier data is not readily available

because it is archived at the WPPSS.
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WPPSS Board Member Expenses

20

WPPSS/Fiscal Year

(July-June)**
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Please note that WPPSS fiscal year runs fi-om July 1 to June 30.

WPPSS Staff

WPPSS Fiscal

Year

(June - July)
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Question 7: Please provide WNP-2 operations and maintenance (O&M) expenditures per

year from FY 1985 to the present and estimated O&M expenditures for FY

1994. What percentage ofthese O&M expenditures have been reimbursed by

BPA under the net billing agreement from FY 1985 to the present? How do

WNP-2 O&M expenditures compare to the nuclear industry average?

Answer: Operations and Maintenance (O&M) expenditures presented below include

capital and other costs with the exception of FY 1987 and 1988.

Capital/Other costs are not readily available for those years. Data prior to FY

1987 is also not readily available.

WNP-2 O&M Expenditures

($ in millions)
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WNP-2 but on a lesser scale than done by PGE for Trojan. BPA maintains a

continuous dialogue with WPPSS about WNP-2's performance to date and

long tenn strategic targets for WNP-2. The targets include increasing capacity

factor and limiting cost growth to achieve a total cost ofpower of26

mills/kwh in 1990 levelized costs. Most recently, in October 1992, BPA

formally presented to WPPSS managers a comparison ofWNP-2's cost of

power with BPA's competitive acquisition results and with Trojan. The

comparison showed that WNP-2 needed to meet its strategic targets to be

competitive with BPA's new acquisition opportunities (1990 levelized costs of

34 mills/kwh). BPA has notified the WPPSS that achievement ofthe strategic

targets for cost ofpower is critical to the future ofWNP-2. Failing to reach a

65 percent capacity factor and not holding the line on costs would cause WNP-

2 to not be competitive with other resources and could resuh in WNP-2

meeting the same fate as Trojan. The WPPSS has committed to and is

progressing towards reaching those targets.
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Conservation

Question 1

;

In a letter to Chainnan Miller dated March 24, 1993, the Northwest Power

Planning Council stated that BPA "has not been aggressive in reducing

program administrative costs" for conservation programs. Please identify

potential savings, if any, per fiscal year fi-om FY 1994 to FY 1998 fi-om

reducing administrative costs of conservation programs.

Answer: Conservation is a resource for which quality control is essential. This requires

administrative costs at both the level ofBPA and the individual utility. Many

ofthese costs are fixed in absolute terms, and others depend on the level of

activity. BPA has committed itselfto an agency-wide review of every

function, including conservation and generation acquisition activities. We have

been examining the issue of administrative cost in detail over the last four

months, and are looking for efficiencies in both direct and indirect

administrative costs. The challenge is to acquire more megawatts for

approximately the same or slightly increased administrative support. BPA

programs have already shown this type ofimprovement fi"om FYs 1991 to

1992 as our "dollars-out-the-door" went up by about 40 percent without an

appreciable increase in direct or indirect administrative costs. Just as in all

other program functions we are reviewing and will be cutting costs in our

conservation programs. Program budgets for FY 1994 through FY 1998 are

projected to grow, however, we will be reducing FTE, and support service

contracts. These costs can vary with the level of activity and will not increase

at nearly the rate ofthe incentive budgets.

We are striving for continuous improvement, but do not have an estimate of

administration-cost savings for the FY 94 to FY 98 period.
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Please provide an estimate ofthe total expenditures to date of the "Super

Good Cents' program in areas vAitxe natural gas service is currently available.

Please estimate the budget savings that would resuh from a termination of the

Super Good Cents program in areas currently served by natural gas per fiscal

year from FY 1994 to FY 1998.

It is difficuh to estimate the expenditures for areas in which gas is available,

because expenditures are done by utility and gas is not equally available

within each utility, even when gas is available to a part of the service area.

Nevertheless, we estimate that between FY 1985 and FY 1992, BPA paid

incentives of $8.4 million for new construction where gas is currently

available.

The Super Good Cents Program covers both single family and multifanuly

construction. We estimate that, ifthe Super Good Cents Program were

terminated in the areas served by natural gas, BPA expenditures would be

reduced by $3 to $5 million in each of the fiscal years 1994 through 1998, and

2.0 average megawatts of electrical efficiencies would be lost in multifamily

construction in those areas.

It is my understanding that a study has been conducted which compares the

costs ofBPA conservation programs per unit of energy saved to the costs

incurred by certain Northwest utilities per unit of energy saved. Please provide

a copy of this study and explain the differences in conservation costs, if any,

between BPA and regional utilities.

We have not conducted such a study, nor were we aware of any such study.

Further, the Northwest Power Planning Council, in preparing its "Green

Book", did not discuss the issue of cost/kilowatt hour. Such comparisons are

extremely sensitive with regard to whether the "achieved" savings are
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rigorously evaluated, and exactly what specific costs are included in the

analysis.

Question 4; To date BPA's conservation programs have focused primarily on producing

energy savings in the residential sector. Please provide an estimate ofthe

current cost per unit of energy saved fi'om residential, commercial and

industrial conservation programs respectively.

Answer: The most current cost estimates are those for FY 1992. The costs listed below

are real levelized costs in order to account for the varying measure lives. We

are providing both the BPA cost and the Pacific Northwest Regional cost for

all of the sectors fi'om which BPA acquired conservation resources in FY

1992

Residential Seaor

Commercial Sector

Industrial Seaor

Agricultural Sector

BPA cost

17 mills/kWh

21mills/kWh

8 mills/kWh

37 mills/kWh

Reeional cost

22 mills/kWh

24mills/kWh

9 mills/kWh

46miUs/kWh

The residential sector includes appliance efficiency, residential weatherization,

manufactured housing. Super Good Cents, and the Northwest Energy Code

Programs. The commercial sector includes Targeted Acquisitions, Commercial

Model Conservation Standards, and Energy Smart Design. The Industrial

seaor does not include Conservation/Modernization (aluminum industry

program), which did not acquire new efficiencies in FY 1992.

Question S: Please provide an estimate ofBPA expenditures to date on the Manufactured

Housing Acquisition Program (MAP) per fiscal year. What percentage of

these expenditures were administrative costs? Please provide an estimate of

the percentage ofMAP homes that are sited in areas currently served by

natural gas.
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As background, the MAP program includes a feature in which BPA pays the

mamiftcturcrs for each qualifying home The region's investor owned utilities

(lOUs) reimburse BPA on a doUar-for-doUar basis for each home sited in their

service territory. Because BPA is reimbursed for these cosU there is a natural

lag between BPA expenditures, creatii% a situation where BPA cosU always

appear greater at any one time than they actually are.

BPA paid about $8 million dollars to manu&cturers in FY 1992, and S22

million in FY 1993. as of >^ril 1, 1993. We have received reimbursements

from the lOUs of $5.2 million, with another $7 million in process.

Administrative costs for FY 1992 and 1993 were $1.1 million annually,

including support to the states to help with the program. This is less than 4

percent ofthe total program expenditures in these two fiscal years.

Even in utility service territories that also receive gas service, the rural

sections of the utility (where the MAP homes are likely to be sited) do not

usually have accessible gas service. Based on a BPA survey of gas and

electric utilities, we estimate that for the region as a whole, 20 percent of

the MAP homes will be sited in areas where gas would be available.

How much dectric water heating and space heating load does BPA currently

serve? How much of this load is in areas currently served by natural gas?

What is the relative efiSdency ofburning natural gas in a turbine to produce

dectridty which is used for water and space heating vs. bunung gas on site for

this purpose?

BPA currently serves about 1,600 aMW of electric space and water heating

load. About half ofthe homes using electric space and water heat are in areas
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vihert gas is available. Another 25 percent of these homes could be served

with gas if natural gas mains were extended.

For a large fraction of these homes, conversion to natural gas is technically

feasible. However, BPA has concerns about whether a fuel switching program

can be designed to be cost effective. We intend to test this question through

our fuel switching pilot program.

A combined cycle gas combustion turbine (CT) on average provides 38

Btu's in the home for every 100 Btu's of gas put in a pipeline and delivered

to the powerplant. On the other hand, direct gas combustion for space and

water heat on average provides 68 Btu's in the home for every 100 Btu's

put in a pipeline and delivered to a home or building.

Question 7: Please describe the scope ofBPA's activities regarding fuel switching.

Answer; BPA has several fuel switching activities under way at this time. These

activities are discussed in the 1992 Resource Program.

BPA has been working with stafffrom the Northwest Power Planning Council

(Council), Oregon Public Utility Commission, Association ofNorthwest Gas

Utilities, and Northwest Natural Gas to develop a natural gas option for the

region's MAP manufactured home efficiency program. MAP currently

provides payments to manufacturers to offset the costs ofbuilding more energy

efficient electrically heated manufactured homes. The goal is to determine
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what additional efficiency investments are economically justified for gas heated

homes and to support efforts by the Council, gas companies, and other parties

to modify MAP to include a gas efficiency option.

In the 1992 Resource Program, BPA recognized the need to review its

electricity conservation programs and incentive payments for unintended fuel

choice effects. The goal ofBPA's programs is to acquire cost-effective

conservation, not to inadvertently induce consumers to choose electricity over

natural gas or induce consumers to stay with electric space or water heat when

they would have switched to natural gas absent BPA's programs. We have

scheduled review of all of our programs where fuel choice/fuel switching is an

issue Results of our initial reviews of the Long Term Super Good Cents and

MAP programs will be available in June, 1993. Results for other programs will

follow in summer and fall 1993.

BPA is working with its customers on three or four customer-initiated projects

to develop better information on fuel choice costs, benefits and policy options

In the 1992 Resource Program, BPA determined that it had insufficient basis

for specific fuel choice actions beyond those noted above. We are now

pursuing three customer initiated projects that will provide us with better

information for developing sound fuel choice policy options for the 1994

Resource Program. These projects also provide specific economic or

information benefits to sponsoring customers.

BPA is continuing work to develop information and policy options for the

1994 Resource Program. These activities include data development and

analysis, participation in the Council's Natural Gas Advisory Committee, and
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participation in Washington Natural Gas' Least Cost Plan update. BPA has

established an internal "Fuel Choice" team to oversee and coordinate all BPA

fuel choice/fuel switching activities.

Question 8: Please provide an estimate of the amount of energy that would be saved per

year if the two-tiered rates and low density discount adjustment recommended

by the Northwest Conservation Act Coalition were implemented (growth

adjustment and no-growth adjustment model). What is the earliest possible

date that BPA can implement tiered rates? Has BPA initiated an EIS on tiered

rates?

Answer: BPA has initiated an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) on tiered rates.

The Federal Register notice of intent for the rate design EIS is scheduled for

publication late this spring.

BPA regrets that it must refrain from addressing the Northwest Conservation

Act Coalition's proposal due to the prohibition on ex parte communications

that applies to issues pending resolution in rate hearings conducted pursuant to

section 7(i) of the Northwest Power Act. Please see Enclosure 1 at the end of

this document.

However, status reports and communications related to matters of procedure are

excluded from the prohibition on ex parte communications As such, BPA is

able to report that on April 18-the last day of settlement negotiations in BPA's

1993 rate case-it responded favorably to the settlement proposal of the

Northwest Conservation Act Coalition (NCAC) to consider tiered rates in a

separate public process and 7(i) rate case. This proposal, made for settlement

purposes only, recognized that there is a need to (a) synchronize tiered rates with

customers' ability to capture conservation savings, (b) initially give full

consideration to many variables and viewpoints outside the adversarial 7(i)
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fonnat, (c) assure tiered rates will not be put off in the future because of the

complexity ofthe 1995 rate case, and (d) perform necessary Environmental

Impact Statement work. NCAC specifically proposed for settlement purposes

only that (a) a formal study group be formed to consider tiered rate proposals,

(b) a final report be issued in early 1994, (c) the tiered rates proposals inform and

affect rate principles in the power sales contract negotiations, and (d) BPA hold

a separate 7(i) on tiered rates, possibly in 1994. Additional time will be spent by

the rate case parties prior to commencement of cross-examination (May 10) to

determine if a workable settlement can be fashioned along the lines suggested by

NCAC. BPA staff is currently evaluating what a realistic timetable is for a

separate tiered rates process, including formal study groups and a tiered rates

7(i) hearing. The Administrator is desirous that a separate 7(i) on tiered rates be

commenced and concluded in FY 1994.
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Capital Investment

Question 1

:

The amount ofthe BPA capital investment budget per year from FY 1980 to

FY 1993 and proposed budget for FY 1994 with a breakdown of expenditures

by function per year.

Answer: Please refer to the Table 1 provided in the answer to Question 1 ofthe

Operations section for the data requested.

Question 2: It is my understanding that BPA is currently considering a number of proposals

for customer ci^ital financing ofconservation activities. Please describe each

ofthese proposals, including the amount and terms and conditions of such

financing, and the amount of energy that would be saved. Does BPA plan to

utilize these proposals to reduce its dependence on Treasury borrowing?

Answer: BPA may utilize certain conservation proposals to reduce its dependence on

Treasury borrowing. Currently, proposals from various utilities are being

evaluated for conservation program cost-efifectiveness for the amount of

conservation savings proposed. There are presently seven

utilities/organizations with proposals in various stages of development that

have the potential for customer capital financing of conservation activities.

They include Tacoma Public Utility District (PUD), Seattle City Light, Grant

PUD, Emerald PUD, Eugene Water and Electric Board (EWEB),

Conservation and Renewable Energy System (CARES), and Oregon Municipal

Electric Utilities (OMEU). Preliminary estimates ofproposed conservation

programs, for BPA's Fiscal Years 1994-95 only, are identified below.

Because the exact terms and conditions, and feasibility ofeach financing is not

clearly defined at this point, the budget still assumes that these investments

would be financed through Treasury borrowing. However, discussions are
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underwsy with some of the utiUties and as opportunities for customer capital

financing are fiirther defined, assumptions in the budget may be revised.

Utility/

Organization

1. TacomaPUD
2. Clark PUD*
3. Seattle City Light

4. Grant PUD
5. Emerald PUD
6. EWEB
7. CARES
8 OMEU
* Proposal withdrawn

BPAFY 1994-95 (Smillions)
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by the overall economics ofa resource proposal such that the net benefits are

greater to BPA than borrowing fi-om the Treasury. Priority is given to tax-

exempt third-party sources. Implementation ofthird-party financing will

reduce pressure on BPA's Treasury borrowing cap and, to the extent that tax-

exempt sources are used, help minimize interest costs. It is important to note

that implementing third-party financing is complex due to stnicturing, legal,

and tax considerations. Tax-exempt third-party financing is particularly

complicated due to IRS regulations.

Question 4: Please provide projections of net borrowing authority use fi-om FY 94 to FY
2000. When will your current borrowing authority for transmission and

conservation be fiilly utilized?

Answer: The following table outlines the status ofBPA's borrowing authority usage

from FY 1994 to FY 2000.

According to current projections, the borrowing authority for the transmission

system and fish & wildlife investments will be fiilly obligated in FY 1996. The

borrowing authority for conservation and renewable resources will be fiilly

obligated in FY 1999. It is likely these borrowing trends will change

measurably as a resuh of present cost reduction efforts.

FY 1994 FY 1995 FY 199« FY 1997 FY 1998 FY 1999 FY 2000

Capita] Obligations



109

35

The Federal Columbia River Transmission System Act of 1974 (Transmission

Act) was the initial act authorizing BPA borrowing authority. The Pacific

Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation Act of 1980 specifically

amends the SEC. 13, subsection (a) ofthe Transmission Act. The Energy and

Water Development Appropriations Act of 1984 also specifically amends the

Transmission Aa.

Enclosure 2 contains copies of the relevant pages fi'om the three legislative aas

that govern the amount and intended uses ofBPA borrowing authority with

the U.S. Department of Treasury.

How much electric water heating and space heating load does BPA currently

serve? How much of this load is in areas currently served by natural gas?

What is the relative efficiency ofburning natural gas in a turbine to produce

electricity which is used for water and space heating vs. burning gas on site for

this purpose?

BPA currently serves about 1,600 aMW of electric space and water heating

load. About halfofthe homes using electric space and water heat are in areas

v^ere gas is available. Another 25 percent ofthese homes could be served

with gas if natural gas mains were extended.

For a large fi^ction ofthese homes, conversion to natural gas is technically

feasible. However, BPA has concerns about whether a fiiel switching program

can be designed to be cost effective. We intend to test this question through

our fiiel switching pilot program.



110

36

A combined cycle gas combustion turbine (CT) on average provides 38

Btu's in the home for every 100 Btu's ofgas put in a pipeline and delivered

to the powerplant. On the other hand, direct gas combustion for space and

water heat on average provides 68 Btu's in the home for every 100 Btu's

put in a pipeline and delivered to a home or building.
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Fish and Wildlife

Question I

:

BPA staff have stated that fish and wildlife spending amounts to about S300

million per year. Please provide an accounting by year for expenditures and

estimates of foregone revenue for fish and wildlife measures since 1978. For

each year, provide costs ofthe net effects of the water budget and the additional

flow augmentation provided by the Northwest Power Planning Council phase

two amendments; repayment for bypass improvements, reimbursements to other

federal agencies and their purpose, and the fish and wildlife program expenses.

Answer: The following tables and notes reflect the data requested above. It should be

noted that Council Phase Two expenses are included under "BPA Fish and

Wildlife Program." Repayment to the Treasury for bypass improvements at

Corps ofEngineers dams is included under "Associated Projects" and under

"Program Related Fixed Expenses." BPA repays the Treasury for costs

incurred by other federal agencies that are part ofthe Federal Columbia River

Power System Repayment does not go to the individual agency.

BONNEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION
Fish and Wildlife Investments — Notes

General

These notes support three separate tables that display, fi'om a rate making, revenue requirement

perspective, the Pacific Northwest electric utility ratepayers' investment in fish and wildlife

aaivities within the Columbia River Basin. The three tables cover the Fiscal Years (FY) 1978 to

1995. The expenses shown in the tables are based on budget outlays for the year shown. Where
audited actuals are not available for the period FY 1978 to FY 1992, estimates of actuals are

used. The title "Capital Investments," shown at the top of each table, is presented for

information. The annual expense Onterest, amortization, and depreciation) associated with these

investments is shown under the title "Program Related Fixed Expenses"

The three tables cover the following years: Table One FY 1978 to FY 1984, Table Two FY 1985

to FY 1990, and Table Three FY 1991 to FY 1995.

Footnotes — General

(A) Power purchases and foregone revenues estimated for FY 1993 to FY 1995 could be

significantly higher depending on water conditions. The power purchase estimate for FY 1993
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have been adjusted and updated to reflect the poor water conditions now affecting the operations

of Federal hydroelectric system.

(B) The tables represent a "revenue requirement" view ofBPA's fish and wildlife funding

responsibilities. All expenses in these tables are paid for by BPA's ratepayers.

(C) Estimates for FY 1993 to FY 1995 are generally based on information contained in BPA's

FY 1994 Budget Submission to Congress or the 1993 Initial Rate Case documentation.

Footnotes — Specific

1/ Based on outlays.

2/ Based on Plant-in-Service.

3/ Includes costs for environmental analysis that are forecasted in BPA's Power Marketing

Program.

4/ "Existing Water Budget" has been incorporated in BPA's load/resource balance. The water

budget is included under "Program Expenses" for ease of display. In years when there is a firm

surplus of power, the water budget is a foregone revenue In years when there is no firm surplus

of power, the water budget is an expense for power purchases.

5/ These figures are based on operational implementation of salmon measures, 3.0 million acre

feet on the Columbia River and 1 .3 million acre feet fi-om Dworshak Dam for FY 1992.

Beginning in FY 1993 Snake River flow augmentation is in firm planning, Columbia flow

augmentation reflects 50-year planning (instead of 5-year), and the costs of implementing the

National Marine Fisheries Service Biological Opinion are included in these estimates. These

estimates also include some foregone revenues associated with flow augmentation.

6/ Estimate, subject to revision as updated information becomes available fi'om these agencies.

7/ This "drawdown" includes operations near minimum operating pool elevations as in 1992.

Other drawdown proposals being studied include physical changes to the Lower Snake River

dams. These proposals would result in significantly higher costs and are not included in the table.

Question 2: What percentage of the FY 1992, 1993 and proposed FY 1994 budget

are/were devoted to the implementation of Council program measures and

what amount are/were spent for other purposes? Please provide a list of all

non-program measures in these budgets, including the rationale, cost and

purpose of each measure.
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Answer: In FY 1992, 1993, and proposed 1994 about 99 percent ofBPA's direct Fish

and Wildlife costs were devoted to Council Program measures. No more than

about 1 percent ofthe Fish and >\rildlife direct cosu were spent on measures

not called for in the Council's Program. BPA's budget historically has been

used to implement the Council's total program annually.

Though not initially identified by the Council, BPA has implemented certain

projects that have benefited implemenution ofthe overall Program. Program-

Rdated, Non-Measure Projects were undertaken in response primarily to

support measures already qjproved and in the Program. These projects

expanded the scope of effort, provided needed supporting information, or

addressed project components not inchided in the original proposals.

Following are nonprogram measures, budgets, and the rationale for each

measure.

Project TiUc FY92 FY93 FY94
Resources for the Future $300K $390K $4S0K

Rationale - These projects were initiated to collect biological data fi-om

existing data bases throughout the region and then to determine the cost

effectiveness ofthe various approaches to implementing the work being done

within the fish and wildlife program. While the Council does not call for

specific measures or projects to be completed within their program, they are

on record as saying that program measures should be carried out in a cost-

efifective manner. See answer to Question 4 for more detail.

Project Title
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Rationale - The National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) currently has a

Recovery Team working on a recovery plan to address the needs of listed

species in the Snake River Basin. BPA will be called upon the address certain

measures that will be specified in the Recovery Team's plan. This contract is

for the purpose of performing preparatory analysis to address these measures.

The analysis will review the resulu of the ongoing actions now being

undertaken by BPA. BPA's intention is to be able to have data available to

discuss the Recovery Team's plan when it is released.

Project Title

Model Coordination

FY92
SISOK

FY93
$0

FY94
$250K

Rationale - The purpose of this contrart is to fund various parties to review the

various anadromous fish data modeling aaivities being undertaken in the

region and to understand the various modeling approaches being used Those

parties being ftinded are staff at the state resource managing agencies of

Oregon, Washington, and Idaho, the Columbia River Intertribal Fish

Conunission representing the region's tribes, and the Northwest Power

Planning Council. While this is not a specific Council program measure, the

Council did participate in making the final decision.

It is my understanding the BPA is currently reducing program budgets

throughout the agency. Do you intend to defer implementation ofthe

Northwest Power Planning Council's Strategy for Salmon? If so, in what areas

and what savings would result in FY 1994? Do you intend to defer any non-

program measures? If so, in what areas and what savings would resuU in FY
1994?

In an eflFort to minimize the rate increase slated to go into effect on October 1,

1993, all BPA program managers are examining impacts of cuts ranging from
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5 to 25 percent in FY 1994 and FY 1995 program levels. All programs will

be examined, including conservation, and fish and wildlife ~ BPA's fastest

growing programs. BPA believes that efBciencies in these programs can be

achieved without sacrificing overall goals. BPA is committed to meeting its

fish and wildlife obligations and to achieving all the cost-effective

conservation in the region.

To date, specific program cuts have not been selected. BPA is requesting that

customers and other interested parties help in identifying how program goals

can be achieved at minimum cost.

Question 4: It is my understanding that BPA has a contract relating to salmon with

Resources for the Future. What is the purpose of the contract? How much

has BPA spent on this contract to date and how much does BPA plan to spend

in FY 1994?

Answer: The purpose ofBPA's original contract with Resources for the Future (RFF)

was to identify research and modeling needs for analysis ofthe Fish and

Wildlife Program. BPA wanted to develop analytical tools that would allow

better evaluation of proposed mitigation actions and provide a way to track the

progress of the mitigation efforts. The total expenditure under the contract

was $754,099, covering 3 years of research planning and initial biological and

economic model development. The effort culminated in the final report Design

ofStudiesfor Development ofBPA Power Administration Fish and Wildlife

Mitigation Accounting Policy, Volumes 7 am/ 2 published in August 1988, and

a Workshop Series Background Report: The Use ofCost-Effectiveness

Analysis in Planningfor Irxreases in Sustainable Run Sizes ofAnadromous

Fish published in March 1989.
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Subsequent to the original effort. BPA contracted with RFF for further

development, application, and documentation of biological and economic

models ofanadromous fisheries in the Columbia Basin. BPA also called upon

RFF to participate in regional forums to present the analytical approach, and to

provide opportunities for regional understanding of and participation in the

analytical approach. More recently, RFF has t^>plied the analytical approach to

system-level cost-effectiveness analysis. Total expenditure to date (over 4

years) is $1,S70,SSS. Published reports resulting fi-om this contract include:

1) Lee, D.C. The Use ofProduction Indices in Planning and Evaluating

FisheriesManagement Programs. August 1990.

2) Paulsen, C. M. and D. C. Lee, Cost-Effectiveness Analysis ofthe Columbia

River Basin Subbasin Plans: Methods andResults. October 1990.

3) Lee, D. C. and CM. Paulsen. Improving System Planning in the Columbia

River Basin: Scope, Information Needs, andMethods ofAnafysis. December

1990.

4) Lee, D. C. and J. B. Hyman The Stochastic Life Cycle Model (SLCM): A

Toolfor Simulating The Population Dynamics ofAnadromous Salmonids.

May 1991 updated May 1992.

5) Paulsen, C. M., et. al. Mid-Columbia Propagation ardPassage Cost-

Effectiveness Analysis. September 1991.

6) Paulsen, CM., J. B. Hyman, and K. Wcmstedt. Above-BPA Propagation

andPassage Cost-Effectiveness Anafysis. January 1993.

7) Wemstedt, K. Overview andAssessment ofAnalytical Tools Used to

Support Fish and Wildlife Planning Within the Columbia River System.

January 1993.
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8) Ifyman, J. B. Multiple Stock Dynamics. Risk, andMonitoring in

Mitig0ion Planningfor Sabnon: Critical Issues andProposedModels.

Januaiy. 1993.

Continuing development of anatytical methods for cost-effectiveness will

focus on analyas ofactions for ESA stocks, modd modifications to allow

dynamic analysis ofboth biological effects and costs, and devdoping

additional c^ability to apply cost effectiveness to nrnhiple objectives,

including maintenance ofbiological diversity. The currem budget for FY

1993 is $386,240. The planned budget for FY 1994 is $450,000. Placing

tlus cost in context, BPA is spending ab<H]t 0. 1 percent of its annual

investment in Fish and Wildlife mitigation on analysis ofthe cost-

effectiveness of mitigation ahematives.

Question S

:

How many biologists currently work for BPA either directly or under contract?

Is the role ofBPA's biological staffto implement the recommendations ofthe

National Marine Fisheries Service and the Council or to conie up with

ahematives?

Answer: The current stafflevd ofBPA's Division ofFish and Wildlife is 60.7 FTE. The

Division is currently staffed at an authorized levd as f<dlows: 9 managers and

supervisors, 24 biologists, 3 engineers, 1 eccmomist, 7 project numagen, 3

policy analysts, 3 computer specialists. 1 budget analyst, 2 contract

administrates, S secretaries, and 2 administrative technicians.

In 1992, BPA conducted a survey to determine how many contractor

FTE were being supported by the Fish ft V^ldfife Program. The survey

reflected that SO percent ofthe program doOan sui^Mmed 4S6 FTE. If



121

that FTE figure was applied to 100 percent of program dollars, the

number of contractor FTE supported by the program would be

approximately 900 FTE.

The current role ofthe Fish & Wildlife Division is to implement the Council's

Fish & Wildlife program and to respond to those actions called for by the

NMFS. It would also be reasonable to assume that BPA would have

alternative proposals to discuss with both the Council and NMFS at various

times. BPA has proposed alternatives to both parties that have either been

added or implemented in lieu ofprojects that were proposed All parties are

constantly striving to ensure that the right projects are implemented.

Has BPA contracted with the University ofWashington to do a modeling

effort that is similar to one already conducted by the Northwest Power

Planning Council? If so, what is the purpose of this contract and how much

will it cost?

BPA has a current cost-reimbursable contract with the Center for Quantitative

Sciences at the University ofWashington for the development ofmodels that

address both downstream passage ofjuvenile salmonids and the complete life

cycle of salmonids. These models complement rather than duplicate other

extant models due to different scope, time scale, accessibility, and ease of use.

The contract was awarded in FY 1990 and runs through FY 1994.

Authorizations through FY 1993 total $2,809,130. Expenditures through

February 1993 total $2,432,249 with expected exhaustion offunds by the end

ofFY 1993. Planned funds for FY 1994 total $768,000

The question implies that the Council modeling effort has been completed.

That is not the case. The development ofthe Council's Passage Analysis



122

45

Model (PAM) and BPA's Cohunbia River Salmon Passage Model (CRiSP) has

been essentially contemporaneous, beginning about 1989. Both models )»ve

evolved and continue to evolve, incorporating advancements in computer

technology and in our understanding of pertinent physical and biological

processes, in an attempt to address evolving resource management issues. In

general, CRiSP has a much finer temporal resolution than PAM (e.g. daily

average flows in CRiSP vs. annual average in PAM), and includes separate

submodels for many processes that are simply lumped together in PAM (e.g.

dissolved gas generation and associated mortality). CRiSP is calibrated for

spring and fall chinook and for steelhead whereas PAM considers only spring

Chinook. CRiSP is also stochastic in order to represent the highly variable

nature of passage conditions. PAM considers only mean conditions. It is our

opinion that these and other differences between the models make CRiSP

better suited to investigate impacts of modifications to the operation ofthe

Columbia-Snake hydrosystem. While we prefer the CRiSP model, both models

are complimentary.

Question 7: It is my understanding that BPA has contracted for a "shadow" biological

opinion similar to the one conducted by the National Marine Fisheries Service.

It this correct? If so, what is the purpose of this contract and how much will it

cost?

Answer: We assume this question refers to the NMFS Salmon Recovery Plan.

BPA is developing a Technical Analysis document that will address a range of

issues we view as pertinent to the salmon recovery effort, including the NMFS

Recovery Plan. Several examples ofthese issues are: (1) habitats ofweak

salmon stocks ofthe Snake River Basin and feasible recovery measures, (2)
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flow augmentation and reservoir drawdown - strategies for recovery for ESA

listed stocks in the Snake River Basin and (3) ocean carrying capacity. The

purpose ofthe work is to anticipate the scope and content of the NMFS Plan

and prepare BPA to integrate the plan in our operations when appropriate. We

consider the Technical Analysis an internal working document but we are

seeking input from recognized experts and have contracted for portions of the

Technical Analysis. The cost of the contracted portion of the work is

approximately SSOO,000.

Question 8: How much has BPA budgeted for the squawfish program in VY 1994? Of this

amount how much will go directly for the payment of bounties to fishermen?

Please describe the status and results of research on the effectiveness of the

squawfish program.

Answer: For FY 1994 BPA is currently budgeting $8.4 million for the squawfish

management program. Approximately 9 percent of this budget ($750,000) is

allocated to rewards associated with the sport-reward fishery.

The squawfish management program is an experimental effort to significantly

reduce losses ofjuvenile salmonids to northern squawfish predation. It is also

a regional effort, implemented through a multi-agency team of state and federal

fishery agencies, Indian Tribes, universities, and the private sector. The cost

for the program Ms into five categories: (1) squawfish harvest (includes the

cost of rewards), (2) biological evaluation, (3) socio-economic evaluation, (4)

disposition/utilization, and (S) research.

Over the three years of the program, 1990 through 1992, approximately

450,000 squawfish have been harvested. At this time, it is too early to draw
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conclusions aboid the results of this program. Existing information indicates

that the exploitation rates in both 1991 and 1992 were about 12 percent

system-wide, ranging from to 20 percent on a reservoir-by-reservoir basis.

This is within the range ofexploitation on which the research hypothesis is

based. The hypothesis is that a sustained annual exploitation of 10 to 20

percent of squawfish may reduce predation naortality by SO percent or more

within 10 years.

We are making efforts to increase harvest of squawfish to ensure timdy

evaluation.

Question 9: Please describe the so called "lease back/buy back' fish program. How much

will this program cost in FY 1994?

Answer: The leaseback/buyback program is a Coundl measure caUing for payments to

the commercial fisherman in lieu of their harvest income. Estimated cost of

this program could be as high as $6 million. Since the program is experimental

in nature, the payment would be one-time to cover a 2-year period. BPA

began negotiating in 1992 with all concerned parties. To date, no agreement

has been reached with the parties.
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ExpUnatioD of Ex Parte

In Central Lincoln Peoples' Utilitv Dist v Johnson. 735 F.2d 1 101 (9th Cir 1984). the United States

Couit of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit held that the Administrative Procedure Act's prohibition on ex parte

conummications applies to BPA ratemaldng because it is formal rulemaking required to be made on the

section 7(i) hearing record after opportunity for an agency hearing. Accordingly, BPA must avoid ex parte

comnumication concerning issues pending resolution in ongoing rate hearing* -

The recent case f>f Portland Audubon Society v. The E;"4«\gPTH Species Committee.

No. 92-70436 (9th Cir. April 1, 1993) strongly counsels that BPA avoid possible ex parte communications

cooceming rate case issues. In d>e PftrtllH^ Audubon Society case, environmental grxwps challenged the

decision of the Endangered Species Committee (the "God Squad") to grant an exemption fixrni the

Ttquironents of the Endangered Species Act to the Bureau of Land Management for diirteen timber sales in

western Or^on. Tbe groups based their challenge on ex parte contacts that were alleged to have occurred

between the White House and Committee members. The Court first held that the APA's ban on ex parte

communications appUed to the Committee's deliberations, stating that the "result is similar to the one we

reached in a case involving formal rulemaking," Ae Central Lincoln case involving BPA. The Court then

determined that the President and his staff were subject to die APA's ban on ex parte communications since

the "provision's history makes it clear diat the ex parte communication prohibition was meant to include

public o£Bcials." (Note in this r^ard that the application of ex parte prohibitions to Congressional

communications has been expressly recognized in the Ethics Manual ofthe United States House of

Representatives.) The Court remanded the matter for an evidentiary hearing before an administrative law

judge on the questions ofwhedier any improper communications with the White House had in bcX occurred

during the Committee's decision-making process, and, if so, what remedy is required. Quite

understandably, this case causes BPA to very cautiously evaluate for ex parte problems any inquiries that

happen to involve issues pending in BPA's 7(i) process.

BPA would be remiss not to also point out that a number of the Task Force's other questions bear on program

and program level issues that BPA had argued to the rate case Hearing Officer should be excluded from the

rate case. BPA had argued that inclusion of diese type of issues in the rate case would undermine BPA's

program planning processes and responsibilities, and interfere with the Federal budget process. BPA also

argued that Presidential and Congressional authority over BPA budgets could be compromised, and the

Constitutional doctrine of sqiaration of powers would be violated were the judiciary called upon to review

budget decisions ^proved by Congress. However, the Hearing Officer concluded over BPA's objections diat

the program and program level materials were relevant to BPA's rate case revenue requirement and should

dierefore be allowed in the rate case. Despite the Hearing Officer's action, BPA does not r^ard

communications regarding program and program level issues to be subject to the rate case's ex parte

prohibition. The reason for diis is that BPA's rate case procedures (S 1 Fed. R^. 761 1 (1986) exclude from

the ex parte ban a matter "which relates to a topic that is only secondarily the object ofa hearing, for which

BPA is statutorily responsible under provisions other than Northwest Power Act section 7, or which is

eventually decided other than through a section 7(i) hearing." BPA believes that communications concerning

programs and program levels meet the quoted criteria.
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Enclosure 2

Source: The Federal Colu»bi« River Transmission

System Ace of 197A 21

whoHy owned Government corporations named in section 101 of such Act (31

U.S.C. 846), but nothing in the proviso of section 850 of title 31, United

States Code, shall be construed as affecting the powers granted ir^ subsection

{b)(ll) of this section and in sections 2(f), 10(b). and 12(a) of the Bonneville

Project Act (16 U.S.C. 832 et seq.).

(d) Notwithstanding the provisions of sections 105 and 106 of the

Government Corporation Control Act the financial transactions of the

Administrator shall be audited by the Comptroller General at such times and to

such' extent as the Comptroller General deems necessary, and reporu of the

results of each such audit shall be made to the Congress within 6-1/2 months

following the end of the fiscal year covered by the audit.

SEC. 12. (a) If the Administrator determines that moneys in the fund

are in excess of current needs he may request the investment of such amounts'

a; he deems advisable by the Secretary, of the Treasury in direct, general

obligations of. or obligations guaranteed as to both principal and interest by.

the United States of America.

(b) With the approval of the Secretary of the Treasury, the Adminis-

trator may deposit moneys of the fund in any Federal Reserve bank or other

depository for funds of the United States of America, or in such other banks

and financial institutions and under such terms and conditions as the

Administrator and the Secretary of the Treasury may mutually agree.

SEC. 13. (a) The Administrator is authorized to issue and sell to the

Secretary of the Treasury from time to time in the name and for and on behalf

of the Bonneville Power Administratioh bonds, notes, and other evidences of

indebtedness (in this Act collectively referred to as "bonds") to assist in

financing the construction, acquisition, and replacement of the transmission

system, and to issue and sell bonds to refund such bonds. Such bonds shall be

in such forms and denominations, bear such maturities, and be subject to such

terms and conditions as may be prescribed by the Secretary of the Treasury

taking into account terms and conditions prevailing in the market for sinfiilar

bonds, the useful life of the facilities for which the bonds are issued, and

financing practices of the utility industry. Refunding provisions may be

prescribed by the Administrator. Such bortds shall bear irvterest at a rate

determined by the Secretary of the Treasury taking into consideration the

current average market yiiiid on outstanding marketable obligations of the

United States of comparable maturities^ plus an amount in the judgment of the

Secretary of the Treasury to provide for a rate comparable to the rates

prevailing in the market. for similar bonds. The aggregate principal amount of

any such bonds Outstanding at any one time shall not exceed $1,250,000,000.

(b) The principal of, premiums, if any, and interest on such bonds shall

be payable solely from the Administrator's net proceeds as hereinafter defined.

"Net proceeds" shall mean for the purposes of this section the remainder of

the Administrator's gross receipts from all sources after first deducting trust

funds and the costs listed in section 11(b)(2) through 11(b)(7) and ll(b)(11),

and shall include reserve or other funds created from such receipts.

(c) The Secretary of the Treasury shall purchase forthwith any bonds

Issued by the Administrator under this Act and for that purpose is authorized

to use as a public debt transaction the proceeds from the sale of any securities
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Source: Th« Pacific Northwest Eltetric Power Planning

and Conaervatlon Act of 1980

••STAT. 2710

ere;tci>on.

i«USCe3ane«e.

ADoctt^n el

4.(hKSMB) Consumes o« t»«ctric powtr shall bear tha cost of m«a$ur»s dtsignad

to daai with advene impaclf caused by the development and operation of electric povtrer

facilities and programs only.

4.(h)(8KC) To the extent the program provides fof coordination of its measures

with additional measures (including additional enhancement measures to deal with Im-

pacts caused by factors ether than the development and operation of electric power

fadlilies and programs), such additional measures are to be Implemented in accordance

with agreements among the appropriate parties providing for the administration and fund-

ing o' such additional measures.

4.(h)(8)(D) Monetary costs and electric power losses resulting from the implemen-

tation of the program shall be allocaied by the Administrator consistent with individual

.

project impacts and system-wide objectives of this subsection.

4.(h)(9) The Council shall adopt such program or amendments thereto within

one year after the time provided for receipt of the recommendations. Such program shall

also be included in the plan adopted by the Coundi under subsection (d).

4.(h)(10)(A) The Administrator Shall use the Bonneville Power Administration lund

and the authorities available to the Administrator under this Act and other lavirs adminis-

tered by the Administrator to protect, mitigate, and enhance fish and wildlife to the extent

affected by the development and operation of any hydroelectric project of the Columbia

River and its tributaries in a manner consistent with the plan, if In existence, the program

adopted by the Coundl under this subsection, and the purposes of this Act. Expenditures

of the Administrator pursuant to this paragraph shall be in addition to. not in neu of. other

expenditures authorized or required from other entities under other agreements or provi-

sions of law.

4.(h)(1 0)(B) The Administrator may make expenditures from such fund wrhich shall

be Included in the annual or supplementary budgets submitted to the Congress pursuant

to the Federal Columbia River Transmission System Act. Any amounts Included in such

budget for the construction of capital facilities with an estimated life of greater than 15

years and an estimated cost of at least S1 .000.000 shall be funded in the same manner

arid in accordance with the same procedures as major transmission facilities under the

Federal Columbia River Transmission System Act.

4.(h)(l 0)(C) The amounts expended by the Administrator for each activity pursuant

to this subsection shall be allocated as appropriate by the Administrator, in consultation

with the Corps of Engineers and the Water and Power Resources Service, among the

various hydroelectric projects of the Federal Columbia River Power System. Amounts so

•Itocated shall be allocated to the various project purposes in accordance virfth existing

•oeounting procedures for the Federal Columbia River Power System.

4.(hXi i)(A) The Administrator and other Federal agencies responsible lor manag-

ing, operating, or regulating Federal or non-Federal hydroelectric facilities located on the

Columbia River or its tributaries shall—

4.(h)(11KA)(<) exercise such responsibilities consistent with the purposes of this Act

and other applicable laws, to adequately protect, mitigate, and enhance fish and wnldlife.

including related spawning grounds and habitat, affected by such projects or facilities in a

manner that provides equitable treatment for such fish and wildlife with the other purposes

for which such system and *ac<iities are managed and operated:
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•Source: The Pacific Northwest EXectrlc Power Planning
and Conservation Act of 1980

»<STAT.27»

8.(d)(1) The first sentence of subsection (a) of section 13 of such Act is

•mended by Inserting after the word "system." the following: "to implement the Adminis-

trators authority pursuant to the Padfic Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conser-

vation Act (including his authority to provide financial assistance for conservation meas-

ures, renewable resources, and fish and wildlife, but not including the authority to acquire

under section 6 of that Act electric power from a generating facility having a planned

capability greater than 50 average megawatts).".-

».(d){2) The fourth sentence of such subsection (a) is amended by Inserting the

following before the period at the end thereof; "issued by Government corporations".

8.(d)(3) Such subsection (a) te further amended by Inserting the following be-

fore the period at the end thereof: "prior to October 1. 1981. Such aggregate principal

limitation shall be Increased by an additional $1,250,000,000 after October 1, 1981. as

provided in advance in annual appropriation Acts, and such increased amount shall be

reserved for the purpose of providing funds for conservation and renewable resource

loans and grants in a special revolving account created therefor in the Fund. The funds

from such revolving account shall not be deemed State or local funds".

8.(d)(4) Such subsection (a) is further amended by inserting the following after

the fourth sentence thereof: "Beginning in fiscal year 1982. if the Administrator fails to

repay by the end of any fiscal year all of the amounts projected immediately prior to such

year to be repaid to the Treasury by the end of such year under the repayment criteria of

the Secretary of Energy and if such failure is due to reasons other than (A) a decrease in

power sale revenues due to fluctuating sfreamflows or (B) other reasons beyond the

control of the Administrator, the Secretary of the Treasury may incease the interest rate

applicable to the outstanding bonds issued by the Administrator during such fiscal year.

Such increase sha" be effective commencing with the fiscal year immediately following

the fiscal year during which such failure occurred and shall not exceed i per centum for

each such fiscal year during which such repayments are not in accord with such criteria.

The Secretary of the Treasury shall take into account amounts that the Administrator has

repaid in advance of any repayment criteria in determining whether to increase such rate.

Before such rate is increased, the Secretary of the Treasury, in consultation with the

.Administrator and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, must be satisfied that the

Administrator will have the ability to pay such Increased rate, taking into account the

Administrator's obligations. Such increase shall terminate with the fiscal year in which

repayments (including repayments of the increased rate) are in accordance with the re-

payment criteria of the Secretary of Energy.".

8.(e) Oause (2) of section l (b) of the Act of August 31 . 1954 (78 Stat. 756) is

amended to read as follows: "(2) any contiguous areas, not in excess of seventy-five

airline miles from said region, which are a part of the senrice area of a rural electric

cooperative served by the Administrator on the effective date of the Padfic Northwest

Electric Power Planning and Conservation Act which has a distribution system from which

h serves both within artd without sa<d region.".

i6USC83Sk.

Am*, p. 2697.
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ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Section 9.

9.(a) Subject to the provisions of this Act. the Administrator is authorized to

contract in accordance with section 2(f) of the Bonneville Project Act of 1937 (16 U.S.C.

16 use 8391.
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Source : ^^^'SW &->^<J ^2'^^"bftvJiopAikfi>Jh

I».L. W.$0 LAWS OF SSlh CONG.— I»i SRPS. July II

i'.v. (CRrraV! «\s$ion producu within the rtactor. dischar|e eoglms

water from nuclear operation* directly or indirectly into Steel

Creek, or result in cooling tyslem tesUnf discharge* which exceed

the volume. fre<juency and duration of test discharges conducud

prior 10 June 2S. 1983.
. « ,. . , ,aeo

«.M'Sf4«l Consistent >«iih the National Environmental Pol:c>- Act oi 1963.

**** and in eonsuluiion with Sute ofTiciaU "of South Carolina and

Geoffia. the preparation and completion of the Environmental

Impact Sutcmeni called for in the preceding paragraph shall be

fwhi-c expedited The Secretary of Energy- may reduce the public comment
Tn«iinnfM> period, except that sucli period shall not be reduced to less than

thirty days, and the Secretary jhall orovidc his Record of Decision,

based upon the completed Environmenul Impact Statement, not

sooner than December 1. 19S3. and not later than January 1. J9JM

DCrAKTHCNTAL AOMINItTRAtlON

For salaries and expenses of the Otpartmenl of Energy necessary

for Pcparimenial Administration and other activities m carrying

out thf purposes of the Department of Energy Organization Act

«:»V.«a •:••: (Public La*" S5-91'. including the hire of passenger motor vehicle?

•!««» and official reception and representation expenses mot to exceed

$35,000): $366,056,000. all of which is available for fiscal year ISiM

and shall remain available unlii expended, plus auch additional

amounts as necessary to cover increases in the estimated amount of

cost of work for others noiwiihstandine the provisions of the Anti-

Deficiency Act (31 US.C loll et seq.): Provided. That such increases

in cost of'werk are offset by revenue increases of the same or greater

amount, to remain available until expended: Pi-Qi-idcd further That

moncvs received bv the Department for miscellaneous revenues

estim*ated to total £i0J>.6 19.000 in fiscal year 1984 may be retained

and used for operating expenses w-jthin this account, and may
remain available until expended, as auihorUed by »«"'«" 201 of

*;• fst .v»:i Public Law 95-238. notwithstanding the provisions of 31 u.SC 3302.

•••Slu ''f Prcinded furihtr. That the sum herein appropriated shall be

reduced bv the amount of miscellaneous revenues received durinc

Tucal year 19S4 so as to result in a final fiscal year 1984 estimated

appropriation estimated at not more than $156,437,000-

Power Markctinc Aokimstkations

OrCRATION AND MaINTCNAKCB. At>^KA PowtR ADMINISTRATION

For engineering and economic investigations to protftote the devel>

opment and utilitaton of the waur. power, and related resources of

Alaska, and for necessary expense* of operation and maintenance of

Srojects in Alaska and of marketinc electric power and energy.

3.410.000. to remain available until expended, of which not to

exceed S200.000 to be available only upon a determination bv the

Sccreury that such amounts are required to ensure continuity of

service in the case of an emergency.

BoKNtviLLK Power Administration Fund

Expenditures from the Bonneville Power Administration Fund.

i.. vfA •.!•. ' established pursuant to Public Law 93-454. are approved for ofTicial

reception and represcnution expenses in an amount not to exceed

97 STAT. 256
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Jolv 14 ENERGY APPROPRIATION ACT P.L- S8-S0

$2,500; and for continuity of financmg the construction prograjn. as

well as financing new programs, an additionaJ SI.2S0.000.000 in

borrowing authority is made available. u£der the Federal Columbia
River Transmission System Act (Public Law 93-454) to remain >« USC K* note

outstanding at any given time: Provided. That the obligation of such
additional borrov^-ing authority shall not exceed S123.400.000 in

fiscal year 1984.

During fiscal year 1984 and within the resources and authority

available, gross obligations for the principal amount of direct loans

shall not exceed S40.000.000: during fiscol year 1984. commitments
to guarant«« loans moy be made only to the extent that the total

loan principal, any part of which » to be guaranteed, shall not

exceed J20.000.000.

OPERATION AND MaTNTENANCE. SoITTHEASTERN POWTKR
AnMlKISTRATlON

For necessary' e.tpenses of operation and maintenance of power
transmission facilities and of marketing electric power and energ>-
pursuant to the provisions of section 5 of the Flood Control Act of
1944 (16 U.S.C. b25s}. as applied to the southeastern power area.
S20.594.000. to remain available until expended.

Operation and Maintenance. Soirni^tsrzRS Powsr
Administration

For necessarj- e,Tpen&es of operation and maintenance of power
transmission facilities and of marketing electric power and energ>'.
and for construction and acquisition of transmission lines, substa-
tions and appurtenant facilities, and for administrative expenses
connected therewith, in carr>-ing out the proN*isions of section 5 of
the Flood Control Act of 1944 (16 U.S.C S25s)..as applied to the
southwestern power area. $36,229,000. to remain available until
expended.

CoNSTRUCnON. Rehabilttation. Operation and Maintenakce.
Western Area Power Administration

For carrying out the functions authorized bv title m, section
302(aXlXE) of the Act of August 4. 1977 (Public Law 95-91). and <2USC»JS?
ether related activities including conservation and renewable
resources programs as authorized, including the purchase of pa&sen*
ger motor vehicles (not to exceed nine for replacement only), pur-
chase, maintenance, and operation of one aircraft. S194.&30.000. to
remain available until expended, of which $163,430,000 shall be
derived from the Department of the Interior Reclamation fund and
$1.004.0C0. shall be derived fronn the Colorado River Dam fund for

r>wer marketing and transmission expenses of the Boulder Canyon
rojcct.

Cmcrccncy Fund. Wrstcrn Area Power Administration

For the "Emergency Fund", as authorized by the Act of June 16.
1948 (43 U.S.C. 502). to remain available until expended for the
purposes specified in that Act. $500,000, on a continuing basis to be
recovered from the Reclamation Fund against receipts for the trans-
mlMion and sale of electric power and energy which are deposited

07 ST^T >Tir
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suBMrrrED by hon. iarry iardoco

QUESTIONS FOR BPA TASK FORCE HEARING
APRIL 28, 1993

FISH AND WILDLIFE/SALMON RECOVERY
1) Does BPA plan on cutting its current Fish and Wildlife program? If so, can you give

this Task Force an approximate amount of cuts in the Fish and Wildlife program?

Will it be necessary to maintain current Fish and Wildlife staff levels to administer

less money? Further, will there be an equal decrease in Fish and Wildlife

administrative staff commensurate with cuts in Fish and Wildlife programs?

2) With many salmon stocks currently listed as threatened or endangered species on the

Columbia/Snake River system and the nearly certain listing of more salmon stocks, is

this a prudent time for BPA to cut its Fish and Wildlife program?

3) Earlier this year, BPA made a rate proposal of 11.6%, with 4% ascribed to fish and

wildlife costs. Now BPA is stating that there have been additional costs since the

initial rate case which will require a higher rate increase. $28 million of this

additional increase is ascribed to increased fish and wildlife costs. Specifically, what

accounts for the increased costs for fish and wildlife since the initial rate proposal?

4) There have been proposals made to modify John Day and Lower Granite dams to

operate in a drawdown mode. According to these proposals, at most these

modifications would cost $200 million. Does BPA concur with these modification

cost estimates? If not, what does BPA estimate modification of these two dams to

cost? What would the annual preference rate increase be if this project was amortized

over fifty years like other capital construction costs?

5) If the above modifications were made to Lower Granite Dam, what is BPA's latest

estimate of the annual costs of a ten week drawdown of Lower Granite Dam to

spillway crest? Please provide a breakdown for the various components such as firm

power, secondary power, etc.

6) What is BPA's latest estimate of the annual costs for a drawdown of the four lower

Snake River dams (i.e. the "Idaho Plan")? Please use the definition of drawdown used

in the Huppert Report and include the appropriate dam modification costs released by

the Army Corps of Engineers earlier this year. Please provide a breakdown for the

various components such as firm power, secondary power, etc.

7) What is BPA's latest estimate of the annual costs of the Power Council's current flow

augmentation plan? Again, please provide a breakdown for the various components

such as firm power, secondary power, etc.

8) Please explain the different impacts of these two plans on BPA rates.

9) Currently many entities such as the states, the tribes, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife
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. Service, National Marine Fisheries Service, and the Power Planning Council all have

teams of fish biologists partially funded by BPA. BPA also has their own team of

approximately 60 fish biologists. Is this approach to funding fish biology efficient?

10) BPA has been forced by the Endangered Species Act, as well as the 1980 act, to

provide certain flows for endangered salmon in the Columbia/Snake River System. In

its budgets, BPA classifies these mandated fish flows as "foregone revenue" and

attributes it to the Fish and Wildlife budget Many observers (including Justice

Marsh) have questioned this accounting practice. Is this practice appropriate? What
river management baseline does BPA use to estimate "foregone revenues"? Did the

1980 Act, or the enforcement of the Endangered Species Act, change this baseline?

1 1) With regard to the potential endangered species listing of the Kootenai River Sturgeon

in North Idaho, what are the revenue impacts of providing varying flows for the

sturgeon. Specifically, what would the revenue impact be on BPA for providing a 20,

25, 30, and 35,000 cubic feet per second flow for the sturgeon?

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CONSERVATION
1) The Northwest Power Planning Council has produced a graph (attached) showing a

drop in BPA Preference rates in real dollars from 1983 to 1992. If BPA had adjusted

rates since 1983 to keep pace with inflation what would BPA's current cash reserves

be? Further, what rate increase would it take to return BPA's rates to 1983 rates in

real dollars?

2) In fiscal year 1993, what projected costs will have the greatest impact on BPA's

revenue situation in percentage terms: 1) the lower world price of aluminum; 2)

decreased snowpack and drought; 3) closing the Trojan nuclear plant; or 4) increased

flows for fish.

3) Please provide a schedule on a monthly basis of the following items for the first two

quarters of fiscal 1993:

a) out of region power purchases (volumes and price); and

b) sales (volume and price) to the aluminum smelters; and

c) power purchases made on behalf of the aluminum smelters to meet their 1st

quartile needs; and

d) a monthly schedule of fees from aluminum smelters for transmission services

4) What was the upward impact of those wheeling purchases on the price of power on

the spot market? How much did that increased spot market price increase the cost for

spot purchases for acquisition of the other three quartiles of smelter load?

Is BPA obligated to make such wheeling purchases, and if so. what obligates them to

do this?
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What was the actual average price paid to BPA of all power purchased by the

aluminum smelters, both wheeling and firm, in the first two quarters of fiscal 1993?

5) The credit to the smelters for the ability to interrupt service is based on two things: 1)

the 1985 costs of building new capacity, discounted at an interest rate of 14%; and 2)

the 1288 megawatt credit of forced outage reserves.

Today, interest rates for new power sources are nearly half that. Further, BPA stated

in the "1992 Pacific Northwest Loads and Resources Study" (the White Book) that the

smelters actually provide approximately 600 megawatts of forced outage reserves.

Has BPA taken steps to adjust the forced outage reserve credit to reflect current

conditions? When docs BPA plan to adjust the forced outage reserve credit to reflect

current conditions?

6) In its 1988 "Resource Program" document, BPA suted that they had departed from the

"least-cost path" in obtaining conservation resources. To quote the document,

"Bonneville recognizes there is an economic risk in not being on the least-cost path,

and that getting back to the least-cost path may result in higher costs to ratepayer.

However, these risks are judged to be acceptable, in view of the importance of the

financial targets."

In light of its departure from the "least-cost path" causing BPA to lose opportunities to

acquire low-cost conservation resources (i.e. home weatherization during construction),

and the current need for BPA to make expensive out of region power purchases, was

this action fiscally prudent? If BPA had followed the "least-cost path" how much out

of region power purchases could have been avoided in fiscal 1992 and the fu-st two

quarters of fiscal 1993? What impact would this action have on the current rate

increase?

WASHINGTON PUBLIC POWER SUPPLY SYSTEM
1) BPA is currently on a schedule for making its principal and interest payments on the

WPPSS 1 & 3 debt. Could you provide this task force with an amortization schedule

of principal and interest payments on an annual basis for the current debt, not

including possible future refinancing?

2) What is the projected operating life of WPPSS 2? What is the projected cost of

decommissioning WPPSS 2 now, and what is the projected cost of decommissioning

WPPSS 2 at the end of its operating life? How much money is currently in the

sinking fund to pay for decommissioning of WPPSS 2?

What are the projected costs of removal for WPPSS 1 & 3 in light of Washington

State reclamation standards to return the site to its original condition?

3) Overall, rate the success of BPA's nuclear program. What has been the cost per year

for BPA's portion of the region's nuclear facilities (both operating and not) since
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acquiring nuclear resources? Considering operating and non-operating nuclear facility

*
construction, operation and maintenance, what would the per kilowatt hour cost be

from the nuclear resource program?

END OF QUESTIONS
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Department of Energy
Washington. DC 20S85
August 13, 1993

The Honorable Larry LaRocco
U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Congressman LaRocco:

On April 28, 1993, Randall Hardy, Administrator, Bonneville Power
Administration, testified before the Committee on Natural
Resources, Bonneville Power Administration Task Force, regarding
the proposed Fiscal Year 1994 budget for that program.

Enclosed are the answers to 17 of the 20 questions that you
submitted. The remaining three responses will be forwarded to

you as expeditiously as possible.

If we can be of further assistance, please contact our
Congressional Hearing Coordinator, Valerie Howard, on (202)
586-2032.

Sincerely,

William J. Taylor, III'
Assistant Secretary
Congressional, Intergovernmental

and International Affairs

Enclosures
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Question 2: With many salmon stocks currently listed as threatened or endangered species

on the Columbia/Snake River system and the nearly certain listing ofmore

salmon stocks, is this a prudent time for BPA to cut its Fish and Wildlife

program''

Answer: BPA is faced with falling revenues and rising costs. These facts are forcing

us to take a hard look at the way BPA operates and examine the proposed

funding levels for all our programs, including the Fish and Wildlife

Program If forecasts of revenues and expenses had not changed

dramatically from the close of Programs in Perspectives (PIP) in October

1 992, to the present, it is uncertain whether BPA would be conducting

such a broad review of its planned program budgets as it is now

performing Under current circumstances and in an effort to keep the

proposed rate increase below 20 percent, it is necessary to reevaluate ail

program levels for FY 1993, 1994, and 1995.

Decisions on specific program level reductions have yet to be made In our

decision making process, BPA will carefijlly evaluate all components of the fish

and wildlife program before any reductions in funding are approved. BPA

recognizes its' significant and important role it has in fish and wildlife

protection, mitigation, and enhancement within the Columbia River Basin

BPA further recognizes that its responsibilities under the Endangered Species

Act are sigificant and will increase should additional species be listed. These

responsibilities include implementing the National Marine Fisheries Service's

Recovery Plan for threatened and endangered salmon in
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the Snake River Basin and for ongoing coordination and consultation on

Federal Columbia River Power System operations. Decisions on revised

program funding levels are expected in June. We do not expect to make any

cuts which would reduce our ability to carry out, in future years, the measures

described in the 1993 National Marine Fisheries Service Biological Opinion

relating to hydrosystem operations.
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Question 3; Earlier this year, BPA made a rate proposal of 1 1 .6%, with 4% ascribed to fish

and wildlife costs Now BPA is stating that there have been additional costs

since the initial rate case which will require a higher rate increase. $28 million

of this additional increase is ascribed to increased fish and wildlife costs

Specifically, what accounts for the increased costs for fish and wildlife since

the initial rate proposal?

Answer: The $28 million fish and wildlife cost relates to the FY 1994 forecast ofpower

purchases for fish enhancement resulting from Endangered Species Act

activities. These costs are included in BPA's power scheduling program, and

refer to changes in the forecast of power purchases for fish enhancement, not

to changes in the fish and wildlife program. The higher forecast is due to poor

water conditions in FY 1993 that impact the cost ofpower purchases in both

1993 and 1994
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Question 5: If the above modifications were made to Lower Granite Dam, what is BPA's

latest estimate of the annual costs of a ten week drawdown ofLower Granite

Dam to spillway cresf Please provide a breakdown for the various

components such as firm power, secondary power, etc.

Answer. The losses we estimate would occur from operating Lower Granite to

spillway crest for a 10-week period would be similar to those operating at

elevation 710 feet (about a 30 foot draw down). A similar scenario was

analyzed in the 1992 Columbia River Salmon Flow Measures Options

Analysis Environmental Impact Statement(OA/EIS). The OA/EIS analyzed a

12-week draw down period from April 1 through June 30 with 2 weeks

required at the outset to bring the reservoir to the draw down elevation,

8 weeks at the draw down elevation, and 2 weeks required at the end of the

period to refill reservoir levels back to their previous elevation. These losses

amounted to $18 million per year of lost firm energy and $1 1 million of lost

firm capacity. Non-firm losses are estimated to be in the range of

$1 1 - $20 million Therefore total annual operational losses for this 12-week

draw down at Lower Granite is in the range of $40 - $49 million. BPA

assumes that the 1 0-week draw down would have similar cost impacts

assuming it too has a ramp-up and ramp-down period.

The annual capital cost for Lower Granite is estimated to be about

$5 - $7 million This is based on a low range estimate of $60 million in total

capital costs and a high range estimate of $86 million amortized over 50 years

(current practice for Corps of Engineers plan investments) financed at a 7.25

percent Treasury borrowing rate.

Combining the annual capital costs of about $5 to $7 million at Lower Granite,

(derived from the modification costs identified in the previous answer) with the
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operating costs described above yields an overall annual cost of $ 45 to

$56 million This could produce an upward rate impact of .5 to .6

mjlls/kwh, or roughly 2 to 3 percentage points from present levels.



141

Question 6: What is BPA's latest estimate of the annual costs for a drawdown of this four

Lower Snake River dams ([i e.] the "Idaho Plan")? Please use the definition of

drawdown used in the Huppert Report and include the appropriate dam

modification costs released by the Army Corps ofEngineers earlier this year.

Please provide a breakdown for the various components such as firm power,

secondary power, etc.

Answer; BPA has not conducted an independent analysis ofthis four Lower Snake

River draw down However, the Corps 1992 Options Analysis EIS looks

at a draw down scenario similar to that in the Huppert Report. The Idaho

Plan analyzed in the EIS calls for the four lower Snake projects to be

operated at near spillway crest from April 15 through June IS Drawdown

is to occur April 1-15 and refill by early July. Annual cost for lost firm

energy is estimated to be $72 million per year and lost firm capacity is

$32 million per year. Lost non-firm is estimated to range fi"om

$21 - $55 million per year Total annual losses for this plan of operation

are estimated to be in the range of $125 to $159 million. The Huppert

Report defines a different drawdown period. It would begin the draft on

April 7 to be near spillway crest in 2 weeks (April 21) and refill would take

16 days to be completed by June 15. This operation was analyzed two

ways in an attempt to provide a minimum and maximum impact. As

reported by the Corps, costs to make modifications are fi-om $1 .3 to $4.9

billion.

The estimated annual capital costs for the four lower Snake projects based on

amortizing the modification costs of $1 .3 - $4.9 billion over 50 years at a

7.25 percent Treasury borrowing rate is $97 - $366 million. Combining the

annual capital cost of $97 - $366 million with the annual operating costs of



142

$125 - $159 million, described above, yields an overall annual cost of

$222.$519nfullion.



143

Question 7 What is BPA's latest estimate of the annual costs of the Power Council's

cuirent flow augmentation plan'' Again, please provide a breakdown for the

various components such as firm power, secondary power, etc.

Answer The Council's original Water Budget of 3.45 MAF has been estimated to cost

$40 million per year. Updated estimates would probably show a higher cost

since the region no longer has firm power surplus. On average the annual cost

of the Power Council's Columbia River Phase II flow augmentation plan is

estimated to be $20 million. In years when there is ample water supply, no

action is required and there would be no cost In the lowest runoff years net

costs could be as high as $90 million This year these operations cost about

$33 million This cost is comprised of either foregone non-firm sales, power

purchases, or a combination of the two

BPA does not have a current breakdown of these costs into energy and

capacity components However, the Power Council's Phase II flow plan

for the Snake River was reviewed in the 1992 Columbia River Salmon

Flow Measures Options Analysis/EIS (OA/EIS) That study shows that

the impact on firm energy would cost $25 million and there would be a

gain in the production of non-firm of $3 to $7 million This gain in non-

firm results from shifting energy production from the winter into the spring

when there is generally more energy being produced than there is a demand

for firm load This comports with BPA's estimate of expected Snake flow

augmentation costs of about $16 million Capacity impacts were not

analyzed in the OA/EIS.

Thus, the total annual average impacts for the original water budget, and

Phase II Columbia River flow augmentation and Snake River flow

augmentation is in the range of $75 to $80 million and up to $155 million
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in poor water years. Since the original water budget was absorbed into

BPA rates in the early 1980s, the portion that is reflected in the 1993 rate

case is about $50 million.

In addition to the measures listed above, the Council's Phase II program

also calls for operating the four lower Snake River projects to near

minimum operating pool and John Day dam at near minimum irrigation

pool. The expected cost ofthese operations for John Day are about

SS million in lost capacity and non firm energy. The costs associated with

operating the four lower Snake River projects at near minimum operating

pool are about S20 million in lost capacity and lost non firm. Phase II also

calls for spill at several projects costing an estimated S20 million.

Endangered Species Act requirements for listed Snake River stocks have

resulted in more water being provided from the Snake and Columbia Plivers

than was called for by the Power Council's Phase II program The

requirements for flows under ESA added about $10 - SIS million in 1993.

Thus, the estimated 1 993 operational costs for fish including original water

budget. Phase II measures and ESA requirements totals about

$144 • $149 million. On an expected basis these operations will average

$120 - $210 million, depending on NMFS ESA flow targets.

In addition to these operational costs associated with the Power Council's

flow augmentation plan and ESA, there are additional non-power costs

included in BPA's FY 1994 to 1995 Wildlife Program of $18 million for

implementation activities (increased law enforcement, squawfish,

monitoring and evaluation, and additional fish screening). Combining the
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expected operating costs (not including $40 million for the original water

budget) with the non-power costs results in a range of $80 to $170 million

with a corresponding Priority Firm (PF) rate increase of about .8 to

1 .7 mills/kwh, or roughly 3 to 7 percentage points from present levels.

The water budget portion of these flows was absorbed in BPA rates in the

mid-1980s The Phase II and ESA measures described above are reflected

in BPA's proposed 1993 rate increase and represent about 4 to 4.5

percentage points of that increase. None of the impacts described above

include pre-Phase II fish program measures mandated by the Power

Council (roughly $50 million annually) or BPA payments to the Treasury

for Lower Snake hatchery operations and fish mitigation measures fimded

through the Corps of Engineers (roughly $40 million annually).



146

Question 8: Please explain the different impacts of these two plans on BPA rates.

Answer; BPA prepared a preliminary estimate of the rate impacts of the drawdown of the

four lower Snake River dams (i.e., the "Idaho Plan") shortly after release of the

Army Corps of Engineers cost estimates for 2 drawdown options We estimated

that BPA's Priority Firm (PF) rates would increase by about 4 to 5 percent (from

rates without drawdown) in FY 2009 for the Spillway Crest alternative once the

modifications are completed after a 14-year construction period. The analysis

assumed a $900 million (1992 dollars) capital investment amortized over

50 years and an $85 million (1992 dollars) annual power cost. We also

estimated a PF rate increase of about 1 1 to 12 percent (from rates without

drawdown) in FY 2012 for the Natural Riverbed alternative once the

modifications are completed after a 17-year construction period The Natural

Riverbed analysis assumed a $3 2 billion capital investment (1992 dollars)

amortized over 50 years and a $200 million (1992 dollars) annual power cost.

We also estimate that the Northwest Power Planning Council's flow

augmentation plan could increase BPA's PF rate by about 4 to 8 percent in the

FY 1994 to 1997 time period. The ranges were developed using a variety of

different alternative power cost estimates intended to incorporate uncertainties

related to both an operational approach which rely on power purchases and

storage, and a firm planning approach which rely on firm resource acquisition.

Much of the information used to develop these rate impacts are based on

judgment or preliminary estimates.



147

Question 10: BPA has been forced by the Endangered Species Act, as well as the 1980 [act],

to provide certain flows for endangered salmon in the Columbia'Snake River

System In its budgets, BPA classifies these mandated fish flows as "foregone

revenue" and attributes it to the Fish and Wildlife budget. Many observers

(including Justice Marsh) have questioned this accounting practice Is this

practice appropriate'' What river management baseline does BPA use to

estimate "foregone revenues"? Did the 1980 Act, or the enforcement of the

Endangered Species Act, change this baseline?

Answer: We wish to point out that BPA has not been forced to provide flow, but, rather

has been required to provide certain amounts of storage in upstream reservoirs

that is used by fisheries interests to augment lower river stream flows. BPA

considers the baseline for river operations to be prior to the 1980 Act. The

Act created the mitigation requirement for Fish and Wildlife. All new

programs which benefit fish and wildlife and have a cost to BPA ratepayers are

included in BPA's estimate offish and wildlife costs.

Changing hydrosystem operations to benefit fish does have a cost, generally, in

terms of power purchases and foregone revenues, which must be recovered

from BPA ratepayers BPA includes this cost in its budget because we

consistently deal with questions about what causes rate increases.

Water Budget and flow augmentation are not reflected in the Division of Fish

and Wildlife budget To the extent that flow augmentation is met, the

purchases are out of the Power Purchase budget. BPA uses Pacific Northwest

Coordination planning as its baseline. From the planning process rule curves

are developed for reservoir operations. The Federal Hydro system uses these

rule curves as it baseline for operations.
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With the passage of the Northwest Power Act. the Water Budget (3.45 MAF)

was included as part of the annual planning process thereby changing BPA

baseline rule curves These rule curves are the baseline used to estimate costs

(or benefits) such as foregone revenues. Flow Augmentation (3 MAF) is handled

operationally, therefore it is outside of the coordination planning process and is

provided as water above the operating rule curves.
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Question 1 1 : With regard to the potential endangered species listing of the Kootenai River

Sturgeon in North Idaho, what are the revenue impacts of providing varying

flows for the sturgeon Specifically, what would the revenue impact be on

BPA for providing a 20, 25, 30, and 35,000 cubic feet per second flow for the

sturgeon''

Answer: Providing flows for sturgeon in the Kootenai River will have direct revenue

impacts to BPA as well as to other regional parties which could result in

additional indirect revenue implications for BPA. The flows being requested

will result in a devaluation or loss of generation power at Libby and

downstreams, and will necessitate power acquisitions to replace lost firm

power. Lake Kookanusa, behind Libby Dam, will not refill to the extent

occurring in current operations resulting in head loss (reduced generating

capability per unit of water) through the summer and fall and adversely impact

recreation and resident fish

The following table quantifies a range of costs to BPA associated with the

varying flow levels requested:

BPA AVERAGE ANNUAL COSTS FOR DEVALUED FIRM POWER,
FIRM POWER REPLACEMENT AND HEAD LOSSES

Flow

Level
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from which is marketed by B.C. Hydro. Increased flows for sturgeon will

result in significantly increased spill (shows in excess of generating capacity) at

these Canadian projects. B.C. Hydro may be understandably displeased with

Libby's altered operation resulting in losses for them. This could also impact

ongoing negotiations between BPA and B.C. Hydro over power purchases,

flow augmentation storage and the return of Canadian Entitlement Power, thus

resulting in indirect revenue impacts to BPA. The requested change in the

operation of Libby could result in serious adverse impacts to recreational

interests in British Columbia as well The table below estimates a range of

revenue impact to B C Hydro from these flows:

BCH COSTS DUE TO
SPILL ON KOOTENAY RIVER IN BRITISH COLUMBL\

Flow

Level



151

MID-COLUMBU NON-FEDERAL PARTIES COSTS FOR DEVALUED
NON-FIRM POWER AND FIRM POWER REPLACEMENT

Flow

Level
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REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. ANn rONSERVATlON

Question 1 : The Northwest Power Planning Council has produced a graph (attached)

showing a drop in BPA Preference rates in real dollars from 1983 to 1992. If

BPA had adjusted rates since 1983 to keep pace with inflation what would

BPA's current cash reserve be? Further, what rate increase would it take to

return BPA's rates to 1983 rates in real dollars?

Answer: It is not possible to determine what BPA's cash reserves would be if rates had

kept pace with inflation since 1983 This hypothetical assumes BPA would

abandon cost based rates and carry cash reserves far in excess of those needed

for prudent risk mitigation Also, an implied assumption is that this very

different financial situation for BPA would have no effect on financial policy

decisions, such as the expense/capital ratio for new resources and programs.

Additionally, this scenario presupposes no reductions in customer loads due to

the higher rates

We have, however, estimated the revenue impacts had BPA's rates kept pace

with inflation, assuming no changes in load. The total revenue accumulation

for BPA since late 1 983, when rates set in 1983 would be in force, would be

$2,035 million more than the actual revenues earned, based on BPA rates in

force during that time period

The rate increase necessary for BPA to return to the real level of rates set in

1983 is 30 percent That is, the FY 1994 Priority Firm (PF) rate would have to

be 30 percent higher than the current FY 1993 PF rate in order to return to the

real level of rates set in 1983. Since the actual increase for FY 1994 will be far

lower than a 30 percent increase, FY 1994 rates will be well below the real

level of rates set in 1983
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Question 2 In fiscal year 1993, what projected costs will have the greatest impact on

BPA's revenue situation in percentage terms: 1) the lower world price of

aluminum, 2) decreased snowpack and drought, 3) closing the Trojan nuclear

plant, or 4) increased flows for fish.

^swer: Of the four impact areas identified, decreased snowpack and drought have had

the greatest impact on net revenues in fiscal year 1993.

The drought impact will exceed $200 million while the impact of low

worldwide aluminum prices will exceed $60 million. The impact of increased

flows for fish will affect Bonneville in the $120 million to $140 million range

Closure of the Trojan Nuclear Plant had a positive impact of about $20 million

on BPA's revenues This is a result of budget savings for Trojan operators and

maintenance, plus reduced residential exchange costs which offset additional

purchase pouer purchase costs

Assuming net revenues of approximately $2 billion, the drought would result in

a decrease of about 7 percent, aluminum price impacts are about 2 percent,

increased flows for fish reflecting about 4 to 4.5 percent, and closure of Trojan

Nuclear Plant offsetting these decreases by about 5 percent
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Question 3 : Please provide a schedule on a monthly basis of the following items for the first

two quarters of fiscal 1993:

a) out of region power purchases (volumes and price); and

b) sales (volume and price) to the aluminum smelters, and

c) power purchases made on behalf of the aluminum smelters to meet th«r

1st quartile needs; and

d) a monthly schedule of fees from alununum smelters for transmission

services

Answer (a): The following are power purchases ( both spot and block purchases ) that

BPA considers out of region, that is from the Pacific Southwest and from

BC Hydro. These values include Industrial Replacement Energy ( IRE ) that

the smelters purchased to meet their top quartile load.

Out of Region Power Purchases

Month
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Aluminum Smelter Sales

Month
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Monthly Schedule of Fees From Aluminum Smelters

for Transmission Services

Month Cost

October, 1992 $577,600.99

November, 1992 $763,131.49

December, 1992 $611,502.47

January, 1993 $ 80,026.61

February, 1993 $127,346.81

March, 1993 $114,551.90

Please note that the reports are not all final so these values are still an estimate.
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Question 4: What was the upward impact of those wheeling purchases on the price of

power on the spot market? How much did that increased spot market price

increase the cos: for spot purchased for acquisition of the other three quartiles

of smelter load?

Is BPA obligated to make such wheeling purchases, and if so, what obligates

them to do this''

What was the actual average price paid to BPA of all power purchased by the

aluminum smelters, both wheeling and firm, in the first two quarters of fiscal

1993?

We understand the question to ask how the transmission charges impacted the

price of spot market energy The rate charged for wheeling is based on

providing a service The rate charged for energy in the spot market is a

fijnction of the cost of the resource used to produce the energy and the type of

market (buyer's or seller's), not on the cost of transmission. As such, the cost

of transmission did not impact the spot market price of energy. There was a

period of time this past winter when there was a transmission bottleneck in

California that didn't allow as much nonfirm energy from the Southwest to

flow to the Northwest This situation produced more of a seller's market and

possibly contributed to higher prices, however this situation was based on a

transmission limitation not on the rate charged for transmission Steps have

been taken to fix the bottleneck and energy deliveries are no longer reduced.

The other three quartiles of smelter load is firm and is served by BPA through

its firm resources

BPA is not obligated to make the wheeling purchases. The purchases are

made on the behalf of the Direct Service Industries to provide them with a

greater reliability of importing their industrial replacement energy.
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We interpret the final question to mean the average price paid by the smelter

for nonfirm energy (IRE) and transmission to meet its restricted top quartile

load and for firm energy to meet its other three firm quartiles. The average

price of energy that the aluminum smelters paid in the first two quarters of

FY 93 is 19.34 mills per kilowatthour. Not all the reports for that period

have been finalized, so this value is estimated. It should be noted that the

price the smelters would be paying during this period, if they purchased all

four quartiles of their energy fi-om BPA, would be 17.9 mills per

kilowatthour. Therefore, their average rate increased only 1 .44 mills per

kilowatthour higher due to the purchases they made for their restriaed top

quartile
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Question 5; The credit to the smelters for the ability to interrupt service is based on two

things; 1) the 1985 costs of building new capacity, discounted at an interest

rate of 14%, and 2) the 1288 megawatt credit of forced outage reserves.

Today, interest rates for new power sources are nearly half that. Further, BPA

stated in the "1992 Pacific Northwest Loads and Resources Study" (the White

Book) that the smelters actually provide approximately 600 megawatts of

forced outage reserves.

Has BPA taken steps to adjust the forced outage reserve credit to reflect

current conditions? When does BPA plan to adjust the forced outage reserve

credit to reflect current conditions?

Answer: BPA has not recently taken steps to adjust the Value of Reserve (VOR)

credit In our rate design, the VOR is incorporated in the IP-PF link The

IP-PF link is the Premium or Standard margin, less the VOR credit, both

determined in the 1985 rate filing The 1985 values are escalated by the

rate of inflation for use in subsequent rate proceedings Following a formal

rate proceeding in 1990 the link has been extended and would not expire

before June 30, 1996 BPA is planning to examine the general reserve

issue with its customers in the Resource Program and Contract

Renegotiation Process Because of the complexity and contentiousness of

reestimating the various types of reserves provided by the Direct Service

Industries, the cost basis for developing a credit, and the linkage to these

other processes, BPA has not determined when the reserve credit will be

examined in a Rate Case 7(i) process.
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Question 6: In its 1988 "Resource Program" document, BPA stated that they had departed

from the "least-cost path" in obtaining conservation resources. To quote the

document, "Bonneville recognizes there is an economic risk in not being on the

least-cost path, and that getting back to the least-cost path may result in higher

costs to ratepayer However, these risks are judged to be acceptable, in view

of the importance of the financial targets."

In light of its departure from the "least-cost path" causing BPA to lose

opportunities to acquire low-cost conservation resources ([i e.] home^^

weatherization during construction), and the current need fofrW^icr$^ak6.J"

expensive out of region power purchases, was this action fiscally prudent? If

BPA had followed the "least-cost path" how much out of region power

purchases could have been avoided in fiscal 1992 and the first two quarters of =

fiscal 1993? What impact would this action have on the current rate increase?

Answer: In the 1988 Resource Program, BPA decided to deviate fi'om the Least Cost

Path in response to budget constraints At that time, this decision was

expected to result in a savings loss of 55 aMW through the end of 1992. A

return to the least-cost path was, at that time, projected to occur in 1995.

However, BPA ramped-up its conservation efforts in 1990 and again in 1992.

It is not clear exactly how much more conservation would have been obtained

had BPA ramped up from its 1988 least cost path, but for analytical purposes,

55 aNfW will be used to re^sent additional savings that might have been

obtained (and, therefore, the power purchases that could have been avoided).

To assess the financial impact of deviating fi-om the least cost path, it is

necessary to compare the revenue reqairetpents fpr the conservation which

was not acquired with the cost of purchases required to cover the 55 aMW

of need for FY 1992 and the first two quarters ofFY 1993. For all but two

months of this period, purchase power was relatively inexpensive. The

purchases to meet the extra need resulting from not following the least cost

path totaled S19 4 million By contrast, S25.4 million would have been

—w)p:^J*'*«rs
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required to support acquisition of the additional consrvation over the same

period.

These results indicate that following the Least Cost Path over this period

would have resulted in higher costs, and accordingly would not have helped

BPA's current financial situation Prices of natural gas used in thermal

resources proved considerably lower than was anticipated at the time ofthe

1998 Resource Program, and purchase power accordingly proved more

attractive than forecast in the late 1980s.
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WASHINGTON PUBLIC POWER SUPPLY SYSTEM

Question 1 : BPA is currently on a schedule for making its principal and interest payments

on the WPPSS 1 & 3 debt Could you provide this task force with an

amortization schedule of principal and interest payments on an annual basis for

the current debt, not including possible future refinancing?

Answer: BPA scheduled principal and interest payments for WPPSS 1 & 3 cash

requirements for debt service to be funded by BPA are attrached. These

schedules are on a BPA fiscal year basis and are included in BPA's 1993 Final

Rate Proposal.
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Question 2 What is the projected operating life ofWPPSS 2? What is the projected cost

of decommissioning WTPSS 2 now. and what is the projected cost of

decommissioning WPPSS 2 at the end of its operating life? How much money

is currently in the sinking fund to pay for decommissioning ofWPPSS 2?

Question 2b: What are the projected costs of removal for WPPSS 1 & 3 in light of

Washington State reclamation standards to return the site to its original

condition?

Answer: WNP-2 is currently scheduled to operate until the expiration of its Operating

License in the year 2024 However, the industry is planning on extending the

life of nuclear plants The Supply System is taking appropriate actions for that

option to be available

The cost to decommission WNP-2 is approximately $373 million (1993 dollars),

whether it is decommissioned in 1993 or 2024 The estimate is based on

SAFESTOR (long-term storage before decommissioning) for 30 years prior to

radiological decontamination and site restoration Decommissioning WNP-2 in

1993 would require more ratepayer revenue than waiting until 2024, when

accumulated earnings on the sinking fund will pay a greater share of the costs.

The current sinking fund balance is approximately $19.2 million.

The Supply System has estimated the cost of restoration ofWNP-1 and 3 in the

Long Range Forecast of its FY 1994 Budget. If it is assumed that the sites must

be returned to their original condition, it would entail removal of all temporary

buildings and structures, burial of the reactor and related buildings, and

recontouring and revegetating the site. This is estimated at
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$114 million (1992 dollars) per project If Washington State will consider

something less than full restoration to original conditions, the cost could range

from about $50 million to $1 14 million per project.
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Questions: Overall, rate the success ofBPA's nuclear program. What has been the cost

per year for BPA's portion of the region's nuclear facilities (both operating and

not) since acquiring nuclear resources? Considering operating and non-

operating nuclear facility construction, operation and maintenance, what would

the per kilowatt hour cost be from the nuclear resource program?

Answer: Bonneville would describe its situation as disappointing, bu! fairly typical of

that experienced by the majority ofthe nuclear industry. The attached table

shows costs for WNP-2, Trojan and WNP-1/3.
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Department of Energy

The Honorable Larry LaRocco
U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Congressman LaRocco:

On April 28, 1993, Randall Hardy, Administrator, Bonneville Power
Administration, testified before the Committee on Natural
Resources, Bonneville Power Administration Task Force, regarding
the proposed Fiscal Year 1994 budget for that program.

Enclosed are the answers to two of the three remaining questions
that you submitted. The one remaining response will be forwarded
to you as expeditiously as possible.

If we can be of further assistance, please contact our
Congressional Hearing Coordinator, Valerie Howard, on (202)
586-2032.

Sincerely,

,
William J. Taylor, III

^-f-t'"—Assistant Secretary
/ Congressional, Intergovernmental

and International Affairs

Enclosures



Questions for Bonneville Power Administration Task Force Hearing

April 28, 1993

QUESTIONS FROM CONGRESSMAN LAROCCO ,^^p

FISH AND WILDLIFE/SALMON RECOVERY

Question 1 : Does BPA plan on cutting its current Fish and Wildlife program? If so, can

you give this Task Force an approximate amount of cuts in the Fish and

Wildlife program"' Will it be necessary to maintain current Fish aiH^gi^fir^ wl^

staff levels to administer less money? Further, will there be an equafaecr^er

in Fish and Wildlife administrative staff commensurate with cuts in fish and

Wildlife program^'' * Im^-'S:'

Answer As is the case with all ofBPA programs, we are considering a reduction in

our fish and wildlife program in the range of 10 to 25 percent of the post-

Programs in Perspective (PIP) levels (or by approximately $10 - $20

million) For example, assuming an annual program level in the range of

$80 million, BPA would have approximately 60 total employees with 30

additional employees involved in the contracting effort. This level of staff

would reflect salaries and benefits of $1 8 million or about 2.2 percent of

an $80 million program An FY 1993 management analysis of Division of

Fish and Wildlife staffing needs revealed that 86 employees (an increase

of 26) would be required to fully address all current responsibilities.

It should be noted that BPA's responsibility for implementation of the Fish

and Wildlife Program clearly involves more than administering contracts. A

majority of the BPA "contracting" staffh»?e^alogical backgrounds that

enable project scoping and leadership beyond that routinely found in

contracting offices Additionally, BPA has initiated a monitoring and

evaluation program to effectively examine project benefits and results This

^-^ -K.; ,.*^-^
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regionally directed program has been initiated with BPA stafTand will

continue to be staffed within existing allocation levels. Due to ongoing

staffing constraints, the Fish and Wildlife Program has staffed many

administrative functions with contract employees. The Fish and Wildlife

Program is decreasing this administrative contract support by an amount

commensurate with the program reduction.

•>.-?#
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Question 9: Currently many entities such as the states, the tribes, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife

Service, National Marine Fisheries Service, and the Power Planning Council all

have teams offish biologists partially funded by BPA. BPA also has their own

team of approximately 60 fish biologists. Is this approach to fiinding fish

biology efficient?

Answer: BPA's Division ofFish and Wildlife has 60 staff, ofwhich only 24 are

biologists. The balance includes engineers, project managers, policy analysts,

computer, budget and contract specialists, administrative support, and

managers In addition, there are 30 contractor employees involved in

implementing the Fish and Wildlife Program working dirertly for BPA.

BPA implements the Northwest Power Planning Council's Fish and Wildlife

Program primarily through contracts with other entities including State,

Federal, and Tribal fish and wildlife agencies. This implementation method is

due in lai^ part to the fi-amework called for in the Council's Fish and Wildlife

Program and the fact that BPA is not a fish and wildlife management agency.

The management responsibilities for fish and wildlife lie with other Federal and

State agencies and Tribes. BPA shares in the accountability for implementing

the Council's Program. BPA technical experts, including biologists, are

required to develop and administer the contracts and ensure the supplies and

services requested meet the technical requirements contained in the contract.

Federal regulations stipulate that technical experts must determine the

acceptability of all contracted supplies and services.

BPA's fish and wildlife technical experts are also responsible to assist BPA in

making decisions that fiilfill the requirements under the Endangered Species

Act for listed Snake River salmon. These requirements include compliance
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with the National Marine Fisheries Service's 1993 Biological Opinion and the

Recovery Plan, due in late summer.

BPA's contract activity with State and Federal fish and wildlife agencies and

Tribes results in funding that directly supports the work of other fish and

wildlife biologists. BPA is in the process of the identifying the number of

technical experts, including biologists, that are supported by BPA contracts as

part of the Function by Function Review that is currently in progress.
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Department of Energy
Washington, DC 20S8S

Septeaber 2, 1993

The Honorable Larry LaRocco
U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Congressman LaRocco:

On April 28, 1993, Randall Hardy, Administrator, Bonneville Power
Adr,Unistration, testified before the Committee on Natural
Resources, Bonneville Power Administration Task Force, regarding
the proposed Fiscal Year 1994 budget for that program.

Enclosed is the answer to the one remaining question that you
submitted.

If we can be of further assistance, please have your staff
contact our Congressional Hearing Coordinator, Valerie H^ard,
on (202) 58&-2032.

Sincerely,

William J. Taylo;pf III
Assistant Secr^ary
Congressional, Intergovernmental

and International Affairs

,/^f~

Enclosure
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Questions for Bonnevffle Power Administntioo Task Force Hearing

April 2S, 1993

QUESTIONS FROM CONGRESSMAN LAROCCO

Question 4: There hive been proposals nude to modify John Diy and Lower Granite dams

to opente in a drawdown mode. According to these proposals, at aaost these

modifications would cost S200 million. Does BPA concur with these

modification cost estimates? Ifnot, vubMX does BPA estimate modification of

these two dams to cost? What would the annual preference imte increase be if

this project was amortized over fifty years like other capital construction costs?

Answer; BPA has not made an independent analysis ofthe construction and mitigation

costs for any ofthe drawdown alternatives. Relying on the Corps' estimate, it

is expected a one pool drawdown ofLower Granite wiU cost between S60 and

$86 milL'on (depending upon whether or not a new collection and holding

fiuality is included). For Lower Granite, the Corps estimates include:

SIS million for low levd juvenile collection ftdlity, S14 million to upgrade

collection and holding facilities, SS million for oaodification ofadult ladders,

S29 million for bank stabilization, SI million for miscellaneous dam

modifications, SIS million for engineering and design and $4 million contract

supervisors and administration.

To lower John Day to an elevation of257 feet, the Corps estimates

modification costs to be S7S.9 million which breaks down as follows:

$12.2 million to modify the easting pumping stations, SI.9 million to

modify adult ladders and navigation ftdlities, $18.9 millicm for a

repiacemeat wildlife refuge, S2S.S million to restore recreation sites to

their present levd ofservice, SI 6.1 million modify muiudpal water supply

for the dty ofUmatilla and to install a water reuse system for the Umatilla

and Irrigon fish hatcheries, and $1.3 million for misceUaneous
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2

modifications. (These cost estimites mclude the construction costs «s

wdl those for Engineering ind design, supervision and administration, and

contingencies.).

When analyzing the impacts on preference rates, power in^acts must be added

to the modification costs. For a 10-week drwdown ofLower Granite to

710 feet devation, the annua] costs are about S18 nullion for energy,

SI 1 nullion for c^>acity and $11 - S20 million for foregone nonfirm revenues

for an annual total ofabout S40 - S49 million. For a S-month drawdown of

John Day to 2S7 feet elevation, the annual costs are about SS million for

energy, S5 • S20 million for capacity and $2 - $5 million for foregone nonfiroi

revenues for a total of$12 - S30 millioa The annual capital cost for Lower

Granite and John Day are estimated to be about SS - S7 nuDion each. Hie

combined annual impact ofthe two projects totals roughly S62 - $93 million

which would produce an upward rate impact ofroughly .8 to 1.0 mills/kwh or

about 4 to 6 percentage points fi'om current levels.

We would like to take this opportunity ot present BPA's 1993 costs for fish

enhancement activities. The costs reflected in the table bdow are discussed in

greater detail in our responses to questions 5, 6, and 7.
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BPA ANhfUAL EXPENDITUBFig FOR FISH

Duxinp 1993, BPA will spend about $306 million for fish. E3q>enditures

breakdown as follows:

ACTION

1. Council Water Budget

2. Council Phase 11 Volumes • Columbia River

3. Council Phase 11 Volumes - Snake River

4. Additional ESA Flow Requirements

5. Drawdown of 4 Lower Snake Projects

•to Minimum Operating Pool and

John Day to Minimum Irrigation Pool

6. Phase n Spill

7. Pre-Phasell Council Fish and Wildlife

Program Measures

6. Phase II Council Fish and Wildlife Program - ESA

9. Lower Snake Hatchery Funding to Corps/BOR O&M

10.Program Fixed Expenses

^eluding interest, amortization, and depreciation

on capital additions for bypass, screens, hatcheries,

wildlife trusts, etc., and Council budget)

COST

$40 million

33 million

16 million

10.15 million

25 million

20 million

37 million

20millLon

44 million

59 million

TOTAL: $304 • 309 milUon
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SUEMETTED BY HC3N. MIKE KREIDIZR:

ou^ationa for BPA Xdministrator RandV H>rdY
regarding Bonneville's current: financial condition

April 28, 1993 ' >%..

1. What cuts are going to be proposed or are being considered
as part of the second review of program budgets? If these
nvtnbers are not yet available, when will they be available?

2. What is the expected impact on Fish and Wildlife and/or
Conservation programs?

3. How much of the current financial crisis has been brought on
by problems with Bonneville's contractors? It is my
understanding that some of these contractors view the money
they receive from Bonneville as an entitlement, and that
they are not very responsive when asked to account for the
money they have spent. It may be that some of Bonneville's
Fish and Wildlife and/or Conservation money could be more
efficiently spent either by different contractors or by
changes in the present contractors' methods. What are your
thoughts on this issue?

4. What are your thoughts of the viability of the following
options to help limit the additional rate increase request
while retaining Bonneville's ability to meet obligations to
the Federal government and others?

* One-time drought surcharge on BPA customers;
* review of the irrigation assistance program;
* allowing a total rate increase of more than 20% (in

other words, can we prevent deep cuts in the Fish and
Wildlife and Conservation programs if we allow a rate
increase of 20.5 or 21%?);

* turning more conservation responsibilities over to
BPA's customers; or,

* cutting acquisition and development programs in favor
of conservation for a few years.

5. As a longer term solution, what are your thoughts on the
possibility of creating a board of Bonnsvilla's customers
(or perhaps expanding the authority of the Northwest Power
Planning Council) which would have more input or control
over BPA's finances?
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Department of Energy
Washington, DC 20585

Aunust 2, 1993

The Honorable Mike Kreidler
U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, DC 20515

•*

Dear Congressman Kreidler:

On April 28, 1993, Randall Hardy, Administrator, Bonneville Power
Administration, testified before the Committee on Natural
Resources, Bonneville Power Administration Task Force regarding
the Bonneville Power Administration's proposed Fiscal Year 1994
Budget.

Enclosed are the answers to the five questions that you
submitted.

If i;e can be of further assistance, please contact our
Congressional Hearing Coordinator, Valerie Howard, on (202)
586-2032.

Sincerely,

'•k.- -'i <-V_
William J. Taylor, III
Assistant Secretary
Congressional, Intergovernmental

and International Affairs

Enclosures

cc: The Honorable Peter A. DeFazio

^:'--i t
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Responses to Congressman Kreidler's Questions by Letter of April 28, 1993

QUESTIONS FROM CONGRESSMAN KREIDLER

Question 1 ; What cuts are going to be proposed or are being considered as part ofthe second

review of program budgets? If these numbers are not yet available, when will they

be available?

Answer: BPA is reviewing all programs for greater efficiency and potential reductions We

note, however, that no single program is expected to bear an undue burden as a

result ofBPA's present financial difficulties. We are committed to keeping our

rates as low as possible without impairing the reliability of the regional power

system or compromising long-term goals, including conservation and meeting our

fish and wildlife responsibilities.

For Fiscal Years 1994 and 1995, BPA will cut at least $250 million from program

spending This will be accomplished through a combination of reductions and

deferrals Specific program cuts will be announced in early July when the Draft

Record of Decision for the cunent rate case is released. We will forward this

information to your office.
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Question 2 What is the expected impact on Fish and Wildlife and/or Conservation programs''

Answer: Proposed funding for BPA's FY 1994 and 1995 Fish and Wildlife Program is

under review as part of the agency's cost reduction effort. Reductions in

program funding could fall within the range of 10 to 2S percent of the levels

included in the FY 1994 Congressional Budget Submission This translates to

cuts ranging from $10 to $20 million each year.

The likely reductions include research measures not mandated under the

Endangered Species Act for fish health and artificial propagation Proposed

cuts could also include the law enforcement program to curb illegal harvest,

and a potential 33 percent cut in the squawfish management program.

Reductions also are expected in the administrative area such as contractor

suppon, staff training, and travel A decision on the overall program level will

be announced early July

BPA's Conservation Program funding for FY 1994 to 1995 is also under

review for possible cost reductions As is true with all programs, reductions

in program funding could fall within the range of 10 to 25 percent of the

levels included in BPA's FY 1994 Congressional Budget Submission For

the Conservation Program, this translates to cuts ranging from $15 million to

$50 million each year.

Energ}' Resource's Programs are being redesigned to reduce infl^astfucture support

and overhead. Because of the long-term benefits of acquiring energy conservation,

BPA has not reduced its 10-year targets for conservation acquisitions, but is

looking for more efficient ways to acquire the equivalent megawatt savings. Some
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support services are likely to be reduced such as advertising, technical assistance,

research, training, and on-site data collection. Combined cuts in support services

and research are expected to be in the range of S6 million to $8 million. BPA is

working with its customers to review a range ofoptions to improve program

efficiency and reduce costs.

One specific conservation effort which will be redesigned is the Long-Term Super

Good Cents Program The program is being redesigned to make it more efRcient,

cost effective, and mitigate any fuel switching problems. The program provides

incentives to builders to construct new homes to standards which exceed existing

building codes with respect to insulation levels and other house tightening

measures. Budget reductions for this program, from advertising, administrative

costs, and incentives are expected to reach $3 to $4 million in FY 1994. This

would represent about 25 percent of the Long-Term Super Good Cents Program's

overall budget.
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How much of the current financial crisis has been brought on by problems with

Bonneville's contractors'' It is my understanding that some of these contractors

view the money they receive from Bonneville as an entitlement, and that they are

not very responsive when asked to account for the money they have spent It may

be that some of Bonneville's Fish and Wildlife and/or Conservation money coutd be

more efficiently spent either by diffijrent contractors or by changes in the present

.contractors' methods. What are your thoughts on this issue?

Problems associated with BPA's contractors are not a substantial factor in the

current financial situation While some contractors perform better than others, or

are more responsive than others to perceived shortcomings, our overall experience

with contractors has been quite positive With respect to the role of contractors in

BPA's Fish and Wildlife Program, as well as the Conservation Program, this issue

will be closely examined during the "Function.-by-Function" reviews currently

being conducted by BPA and its customers

Question 4: What are your thoughts of the viability of the following options to help limit the

additional rate increase request while retaining Bonneville's ability to meet

obligations to the Federal government and others?

One-time drought surcharge on BPA customers;

review ofthe irrigation assistance program,

allowing a total rate increase of more than 20 % (in other words, can we

prevent deep cuts in the Fish and Wildlife and Conservation programs ifwe

allow a rate increase of 20.5 or 21%);

turning more conservation responsibilities over to BPA's customers, or

cutting acquisition and development programs in favor of conservation for

a few years.
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Answer a: The issue of a one-year surcharge for FY 1994 is pending in the current rate

proceeding, a formal, on-the-record, quasi-judicial hearing At the conclusion of

the hearing, the BPA Administrator is required to determine this issue, among

others, based on the evidence in the record. The Administrator is precluded by law

fi-om determining issues pending in the rate case before it is concluded and

therefore cannot yet state what the Administrator's position or decision will be on

this issue.

BPA staff, however, stale that a surcharge would reduce the overall relative rate

increase for the two-year rate period A rate surcharge would assign risk

coverage funds to the year in which they are needed. This would reduce the

overall relative rate increase compared to a rate design where risk coverage is

ievelized over the 2-year rate period BPA's customers universally oppose the

surcharge concept, arguing that the first year rate would be too high and

disruptive

A number of other proposals aimed at reducing the rate increase have also been

made by parties to the case. These are under review as well.

Answer b: Since this issue is pending in the current rate proceeding as well, the Administrator

is precluded by law from determining issues pending in the rate case before it is

concluded and therefore cannot yet state what the Administrator's position or

decision will be on this issue. BPA staff, however, states that the cost of the

irrigation discount does not affect the level ofBPA's revenues. This is because the

cost of the discount is made up by BPA's other customers. Therefore, lowering

the amount of the discount or elimination of the discount merely shifts part of the

rate increase to irrigators from all other power purchasers
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BPA has stated on record that a 20 percent or more rate increase at this time

would be unacceptable for the region We believe that program costs, including

the costs offish and -wildlife and conservation efforts, can be reduced without

harming long-term program objectives With the program cuts being taken, and

other possible action, we expect to bring the rate increase below 20 percent Ifwe

did not make any program reductions, the rate increase would be 2.5 to 3

percentage points higher.

BPA's Conservation Acceleration Project (decentralization), implemented 2 years

ago, was designed to place more conservation acquisition responsibilities in the

hands of customers by allowing more latitude in making conservation acquisition

decisions The current investigation of opportunities for conservation program

efficiencies will examine strengthening decentralization Utilities are continuing to

take progressively more responsibility for their conservation results, as they have

jointly worked with BPA in developing Conservation Action Plans for their

individual service territori|^

BPA is aL-^o examining alternative delivery systems for acquiring conservation.

One of the alternatives being discussed is tiered rates, which BPA will consider in

its next rate case IfBPA were to adopt tiered wholesale rates, in which the first

block of power sold costs less than additional blocks, utilities could be induced to

institute tiered retail rates or run other conservation programs Tiered retail rates

should promote investments by customers in cost-effective conservation in order

to avoid purchasing energy in the higher rate tiers This could reduce the need for

BPA-financed conservation programs



184

Finally, BPA is currently conducting negotiations with several utilities for "third

party financing' arrangements. Under this concept, the utility would issue bonds to

finance the conservation activity in their utility service territory. This would allow

BPA to avoid having to borrow from the U.S. Treasury for that activity, and it

would provide lower-cost financing since public utilities would be able to utilize

their tax-exempt status. Since these arrangements would provide funding for at

least two years of conservation activity, for the utility it would provide a degree of

budget certainly and stability that does not currently exist through BPA's

traditional budgeting process.

Answer e: BPA's 1 993 Resource Program calls for aggressive acquisition of both

generation and conservation resources over the next 10 years in order to meet

the needs of our customers Our analysis show that over the next 10 years,

available cost-effective conservation will be inadequate to meet these needs, and

will require development of generation resources. Generation resources take a

substantive time to develop and by planning now, we can meet these needs

Generation resource acquisition projects now under way will have no significant

impact on FY 1993 through 1995 rates
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Question 5: As a longer term solution, what are your thoughts on the possibility of creating a

board of Bonneville's customers (or perhaps expanding the authority of the

Northwest Power Planning Council) which would have more input or control over

Answer; The Northwest Power Planning Council was created under the Northwest Power

Act as a compact agency responsible for developing a Regional Energy Plan with

which certain BPA actions must be consistent. While such an arrangement has

been found constitutional by the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals, making the

Council the executive authority ofBPA in the form of a Board ofDirectors would

raise serious constitutional issues under the Appointments Clause of the U.S.

Constitution An Appointments Clause issue would also arise with a Board of

BPA's customers, unless members of such Board were federally appointed See.

Seattle Master Builders v Northwest Power Planning Council . 786 F.2d 1359 (9th

Cir 1986)

In Seattle Master Builders a group of home builders sued to strike down as

unconstitutional the Council and its Energy Plan Before BPA may acquire major

resources, BPA and the Council, a^e required, to determine whether the proposed

acquisition is consistent with the Energy Plan. The home builders also challenged

the reasonableness of certain provisions of the Energy Plan. The Court concluded

that the Council was a compact agency whose members were not Federal officers

under the Appointments Clause.
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Committee on ^
Natural &«(oaruK 2

OUuffitngton. BC 20515-6201 Z

May 25, 1993

Adainistrator Randy Hardy
Bonneville Power Administration
P.O. Box 3621
Portland, OR 97208

Dear Adainist^»«:6r Hardy:

As a follow-up to the Bonneville Power Administration Task
Force's April 29 hearing, I would like you to answer the
following questions.

1.) During the hearing, we discussed the reasons you chose not
to call for voluntary curtailment earlier this year. You stated
that a contractual agreement between BPA and its customers would
require BPA to reimburse its customers for any revenues lost
during a period of voluntary curtailment. Please provide the
Task Force with copies of the contract provisions requiring such
reimbursement and the statutory basis for those provisions. In
particular, I would like to know how such a contractual agreement
is consistent with the Northwest Power Act's mandate to promote
conservation and the efficient use of energy.

2.) In your answer to my %nritten questions, you estimated that
the irrigation discount will cost BPA $27 million in lost
revenues in FY 1994 and FY 1995. Does the BPA's estimate of the
costs of the irrigation discount Include the cost of lost power
generation due to water withdrawals? If not, would you estimate
for me the cost attributable to lost power generation due to
water wltbdravals?

3.) Setting aside the Issues in the pending rate case and
whatever decisions you must make in the case, does BPA have any

plans for a process to review or develop wholesale tiered rates?

Is the BPA willing to consider an interim rate case limited to a

ultl-level rate proposal?



187

Mr. Randy Hardy
May 25, 1993
Page 2

Thanks again for your cooperation. I look forward to our

work together.

Chairman
Task Force on the Bonneville Power
Administration

cc: The Honorable Bob Smith
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Department of Energy
Washington. DC 20585

July 22, 1993

The Honorable Peter A. DeFazlo
Chairman
Committee on Natural Resources, Bonneville
Power Administration Task Force

U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman:

On April 28, 1993, Randall Hardy, Administrator, Bonneville Power
Administration, testified before your Task Force regarding the

Bonneville Power Administration's proposed FY 1994 Budget.

Enclosed are the answers to three questions that you submitted.

If we can be of further assistance, please contact our
Congressional Hearing Coordinator, Valerie Howard, on (202) 586-

2032.

Sincerely,

J^"^ — , // /: / /.»—
William J. Taylor, III

•
,

-_ Assistant Secretary
/ Congressional, Intergovernmental,

and International Affairs

Enclosures
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Responses to Congressman DeFazio's Questions by Letter of May 25, 1993

Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) Task Force

QUESTIONS FROM CONGRESSMAN DEFAZIO

Question 1 During the hearing, we discussed the reasons you chose not to call for

voluntary curtailment earlier this year. You stated that a contractual

agreement between BPA and its customers would require BPA to reimburse its

customers for any revenues lost during a period of voluntary curtailment.

Please provide the Task Force with copies of the contract provisions requiring

such reimbursement and the statutory basis for those provisions. In particular,

I would like to know how such a contractual agreement is consistent with the

Northwest Power Act's mandate to promote conservation and the efficient use

of energy.

"Conservation" and "curtailment" measures attempt to balance loads and

resources by cutting loads rather than building new resources. They do so,

however, in very different ways.

"Conservation" is defined in the Northwest Power Act as "any reduction in

electric power consumption as a result of increases in the efficiency of energy-

use, production, or distribution" (Section 3.(3), P.L. 96-501, emphasis added).

Conservation is intended to be long-term and dependable, making resources

available for service to other customers. It assumes the same jobs can be done,

or the same comforts enjoyed, but with a reduced use of electricity.

In the Regional Curtailment Plan for Electric Energy (Portland; Northwest

Power Pool, 1992), the term "curtailment," as defined in accordance with

standard utility practice during a protracted electric energy shortage is: "load

reduction, irrespective of the means by which that reduction is achieved."

(Section III.D). Curtailment is brought on by unexpected near-term or mid-

term loss of a major resource, or loss of a major transmission facility which
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otherwise could have been used to import energy purchases. Curtailment can

also refer to those measures used to bring resource output in balance with load

when there is an operating year energy shortage on a system.

Curtailment results in an organized "shut down" to avoid failure of an electric

system, or to assist in its re-establishment. If loads exceed resources, all

components of the electric system — generators, transmission, motors, lights, and

other equipment ~ try to operate at frequencies and voltages beyond their design.

After a period of time, they either shut down or bum out. Unlike the long-term

nature of conservation, curtailment is short-term and is used to avoid system failur

and emergencies.

Section 1 1 of the Power Sales Contract is the contractual agreement between

BPA and most of its customers except Washington Water Power, Montana

Power Co , Portland General Electric Co., Pacific Power & Light Co , Puget

Sound Power & Light Co., and Tacoma City Light that provides for the

reimbursement of lost revenues during a period of voluntary curtailment. BPA

has the authority to make such reimbursement under Sections 2(f) and 5(a) of

the Bonneville Project Act and Section 5(b) of the Northwest Power Act A

copy of Section 1 1 is attached

In anticipation of the winter-spring energy shortfalls of 1992 to 1993 related to

drought conditions in the summer and fall of 1992, BPA's Division ofPower

Supply examined the utilization of Section 1 1 (b) to determine whether

curtailment could serve as a "resource" to meet load.
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The two reasons for choosing purchases over curtailment are price and

flexibility.

Price: The Power Sales Contract requires that, ifBPA requests curtailment,

then BPA shall pay the curtailing party for lost revenues. Customers to whom

Section 1 1 applies, for the most part, are totally dependent upon BPA for

power resources. Their expenses may be fixed within the short-term horizon

ofweeks or months between notice of the need for curtailment and the time

when it would have to commence IfBPA and a State Governor call for

curtailment, voluntary or otherwise, those utilities would be unable to adapt

total revenues to cover expenses in a timely fashion to meet the income lost by

reduced electricity sales This would place them, because of a request for

curtailment, in a position of reduced ability to meet their revenue requirements

When the Power Sales Contracts were negotiated in 1981 to 1982, this

situation was recognized, resulting in Section 1 1 Section 1 1 requires BPA to

reimburse utilities for costs incurred during a voluntary curtailment In effect,

this regionalizes the localized, negative impact of a curtailment on utility

systems Costs are defined in the contract as the difference between utility

retail prices and BPAs energy portion of the priority firm rate

In early 1993, additional energy was needed on certain dates, for fixed periods

of time, of^en only on certain hours of the day, and at the lowest possible price

The projected cost of the curtailment "resource" was approximately 4 cents per

kilowatthour (kwh). This figure is derived by taking the average utility retail

rate of 5.5 cents per kwh, minus the average of the energy charge of BPA's

1991 priority firm energy charge of 1.7 cents per kwh Purchased energy was

available for purchase at a price of about 2 7 cents per kilowatthour
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Flexibility: To "turn on" the curtailment "resource," utilities must engage in

lengthy marketing efforts, notifications, public service requests, and other

actions Voluntary curtailment in Oregon during the early 1970's only gained an

estimated energy savings of between 3 percent to 5 percent after 3 to 6 months

of effort Mandatory curtailment, usually imposed only after voluntary efforts

have not produced enough savings, takes additional time to implement

If a resource is needed only for certain peak times, days, or months, then

purchases can be made only for those times Curtailment does not have this

flexibility Once the curtailment "resource" has been turned on, it cannot be

immediately turned off If the crisis requiring curtailment has ended, recovery

by a utility system of its original load takes a period of time

Section 1 1 of the Power Sales Contract is designed to protect the operational

integrity of BPA's electrical system in the short term through curtailment, and

has no connection with the Regional Act's long-term conservation goals.
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Amtndatory Agrttmtnt No. 2 to

Contract No. 0E-MS79-81BP

8/10/82

AMENDATORY AGREEMENT

txtcuttd by tht

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

acting by and through

BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIKISTRATION

and

This AMENDATORY AGREEMENT, txtcuttd . 19_, by tht

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (Govtrnmtnt), Dtpartmtnt of Entrgy, acting by and

through tht BONNEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION (Bonntvlllt), and

(Purchastr),

WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS Bonntvlllt offtrtd a powtr salts contract to tht Purchastr on

August 28, 1981, and tht partlts htrtto havt txtcuttd such powtr salts

contract (Contract Wo. DE-MS79-81BP which as amtndtd Is htrtlnafttr

rtftrrtd to as "Powtr Salts Contract") providing for tht salt and dtllvtry of

fira powtr and tntrgy to tht Purchastr; and

WHEREAS tht partlts htrtto havt agrttd to tht following antndnitnts to tht

Powtr Sales Contract offtrtd August 28, 1981; and
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WHEREAS Bonneville Is authorized pursuant to law to dispose of electric

power and energy generated at various Federal hydroelectric projects In the

Pacific Northwest, or acquired from other resources, to construct and operate

transmission facilities, to provide transmission and other services, and to

enter Into agreements to carry out such authority;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows:

1. Effective Date of Agreement . This amendatory agreement shall be

effective on the later of 2400 hours on the date of execution or the effective

date of the Power Sal fs Contract.

2. Amendment of Power Sales Contract . The Power Sales Contrac* Is

hereby amended as follows:

(a) Section 2 Is amended by adding a new section 2(b) as follow::

"(b) This cortract may be terminated by the Purchaser upon

(1) 7 years' prior notice to Bonneville; (11) concurrent 4ubm1ss on by the

Purchaser to Bonneville of a Firm Resource Exhibit reciting zero demand

upon Bonneville as of the proposed date of termination; and (111; a

determination that termination will cause no adverse economic Impacts on

Bonneville's other customers."

(b) Section 4 Is amended by deleting Exhibit C and replacing It with a

new Exhibit C attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this

contract In accordance with the specific provisions of this contract relating

to Exhibit C.

(c) Section 11 Is deleted and replaced by a new section II as follows:

"11. Compensation Program for Regional Curtailment of Firm Loads .

"(a) The parties agree to commence negotiations as soon as

practicable to develop a comprehensive agreement among utilities In the

Pacific Northwest to buy and sell electric energy made available due to
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curtaHmtnts 1n consunptlon or from rtsources on « pirty's systttn during a

ptrlod whtn governmental bodies having the authority to do so have so

ordered such curtailments or sales.

(b)(1) If the Bonneville Power Administrator and the governor of the

State encompassing the Purchaser's service area publicly appeal for

curtailments of electric power consumption or If mandatory curtailments of

electric power consumption In the Purchaser's service area are ordered by

governmental bodies having the authority to so order, Bonneville shall

compensate the Purchaser as provided In this section for any reduction In

Bonneville's obligation to supply Firm Power to the Purchaser, If the

Purchaser's service area extends Into more than one State and all of such

States' do not participate In the curtailments described above, the

procedures of this ssctlon shall be applied only to those loads In service

areas In the participating States.

"Compensation under this section shall not be available to the

Purchaser during any Operating Year that the Purchaser Is purchasing Firm

Power from Bonneville on a Planned Computed Requirements or Contracted

Requirements basis. The compensation under this section may be reduced

partially or In Its entirety as described in paragraph (4) or

paragraph (5) below. The reductions described In paragraph (4) below

shall be made after the adjustments described In paragraph (5) below.

"Compensation shall begin with the first full month following such

appeal for curtailment or ordered curtailment. Compensation shall end

with the month during which the Bonneville Power Administrator and the

appropriate State political leaders publicly indicate that a need for

curtailment no longer exists or such State officials rescind an order for

curtailment.
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(2) Bonneville shall pay the Purchaser each month an amount equal to

the product of the rate set forth In this paragraph and the amount of load

curtailment determined In paragraph (3) below unless such amount of load

curtailment Is reduced partially or In Its entirety as set forth In

paragraph (4) below. Such rate shall be the amount In mills per

kllowatthour by which the Purchaser's average revenue from retail sales of

electric energy exceeds the wholesale firm power rate the Purchaser would

have paid Bonneville for the Inc-ement of energy determined pursuant to

paragraph (3) below.

(3) The amount of regional load curtailment on the Purchaser's

system during a month shall be dbemed to be the amount, If any, by which

the Purchaser's Estimated Firm Ei ergy load, after adjustment as specified

below, exceeds the Purchaser's A( tual Firm Energy load for such month

after adjustment, If any, as set forth below. If the Purchaser does not

regularly publish an Estimated F.rm Energy Load, such Purchaser's

Estimated Firm Energy Load for purposes of this section shall be the

Purchaser's component of BonnevTile's latest published estimate of its

firm energy loads.

The Purchaser's most recently published Estimated Firm Energy Load

shall be used herein to determine amounts of regional load curtailment In

conjunction with Information submitted by the Purchaser to Bonneville as

soon as possible following the end of each month In which a regional load

curtailment program Is In effect, iSuch Information shall be provided for

each such month and for the three most recent, but not necessarily

consecutive, months In which a regional load curtallmemt program or a load

curtailment program pursuant to section 17(e) was not In effect. Such

information shall Include: (A) the Purchaser's Actual Firm Energy Load
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for such months; and (B) dttaH on any stparattly Identlflabit significant

changts In the Purchaser's Actual Firm Energy Load from Its Estimated Firm

Energy Load which were not the result of a regional load curtailment

program, a load curtailment program pursuant to section 17(e), or an

Interruption of load for the purpose of providing economic operation of

the Purchaser's system including Its Firm Resources.

The Purchaser's Actual Firm Energy Loads for all months used for

calculations herein shall be adjusted to reflect only those loads In the

Purchaser's service area which are In State> participating In the regional

curtailment program. Such adjustments shall be made by subtracting the

portion of the Purchaser's Actual Firm Energy Load In States which are not

participating In the regional curtailment program from the Purchaser's

Actual Firm Energy Load for such month. Such adjustment may be changed

monthly to reflect changes In the States which are participating in the

regional curtailment program.

The Purchaser's Estimated Firm Energy Load for all months for which

information was requested above shall first be adjusted to reflect

separately Identifiable changes in load which were not the result of a

regional load curtailment program, a load curtailment program pursuant to

section 17(e), or an interruption of load for the purpose of providing

economic operation of the Purchaser's system including its Firm

Resources. The Estimated Firm Energy Load shall then be adjusted 1n the

manner specified for Actual Firm Energy Loads above to reflect only those

loads in the Purchaser's service area wnich are in States participating in

the regional curtailment program. An adjusted Estimated Firm Energy Load

for each month in which a regional load curtailment program is in effect

shall then be determined by multiplying the Estimated Firm Energy Load for



198

such month, as adjusted above, by the ratios of the Purchaser's Actual

Firm Energy Load, as adjusted above, to Its Estimated Firm Energy Load, as

adjusted above, for the three most recent, but not necessarily

consecutive, months In which a regional load curtailment program or a load

curtailment program pursuant to section 17(e) was not In effect.

(4) If regional curtailment has been requested after July 1. 1983,

because Bonneville Is unable to acquire sufficient resources to meet Its

firm obligations, Bonneville shall reduce the amount cf load curtailment

determlied In paragraph (3) above during any month if the Purchaser's load

growth is specified In subparagraph (A) below exceeds the amount of

resources which the Purchaser dedicated to Its own load or made available

to Bonm.-vllle as sped fled -In subparagraph (B) below. Such amount of load

curtallnent for each month shall be reduced partially ^^r In Its entirety

by the amount which (A) exceeds (B) below:

(A) the excess of the Purchaser's Actual Firm Energy Load In

average megawatts over the Purchaser's Actual Firm Energy Load In

average megawatts for the same month during the Operating Year prior

to the first Operating Year for which Bonneville's load growth notice

provided 1n section 10(e) of this agreement Is effective; and

(B) the annual firm energy capability In average megawatts of

(1) resources acquired by Bonneville from the Purchaser under

P.L. 96-501; and (11) the portion of the Purchaser's Firm Resources

which are Included as 5(b)(1)(B) resources In Its Firm Resources

Exhibit. Such resources shall not Include conservation programs to

the extent such programs have been reflected In the Purchaser's

Actual Firm Energy Load In subparagraph (A) above.
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(5) If tht Purchaser purchasts Firm Powtr from Bonnevlllt on an

Actual Computed Requirements basis, the amount of load curtailment

determined In paragraph (3) above for any month shall be determined after

the following adjustments:

(A) The amount of load curtailment determined in paragraph (3)

above shall be reduced to provide compensation only for the portion

of the Purchaser's Actual Firm Energy Load served by Bonneville.

Such reduction shall be mac"e by Increasing the Purchaser's Actual

Firm Energy Load used to determine the amount of load curtailment 1n

paragraph (3) by the amouni of load curtailment attributable to the

Purchaser's Firm Resources. Such Increase In the Purchaser's Actual

Firm Energy Load shall be ceemed to be the amount determined 1n the

manner specified In sectlor 17(e)(5) even If the Purchaser has not

Implemented a load curtailment program pursuant to section 17(e).

(B) If the Purchaser Initially purchased Firm Power from

Bonneville on a Metered Requirements basis, but Is purchasing Firm

Power from Bonneville on an Actual Computed Requirements basis at the

time regional curtailment Is requested hereunder, subparagraph (A)

above will apply only If the Purchaser has Implemented a load

curtailment program pursuant to section 17(e). This subparagraph (B)

shall no longer apply If the Purchaser was offered the opportunity to

be a party to a comprehensive agreement among utilities In the

Pacific Northwest described In subsection (a) above after It

commenced purchasing on a Computed Requirements basis."
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(d) Section 17(b) 1s deleted and replaced by a new section 17(b) as

follows:

"(b) On or before the effective date of this contract, and

thereafter, as provided In paragraph (1) below, the Purchaser nay request

In writing to purchase on the basis of Contracted Requirements by

subnlttlng the data and proposed schedule of Contracted Requirements

purchases of peak and energy pursuant to paragraph (2) below.

(1) The Purchaser nay request that It begin lo purchase on a

Contracted Requirements basis at the time of subml-.tal of any revised

Flrr- Resources Exhibit. Such request shall become effective, In

accordance with this subsection (b), for the seventh Operating Year

of fuch exhibit, or for an earlier Operating Year if Bonneville 1s

expr-cted to have an excess of firm load over Its f'rm resources In

the first Operating Year for which the Purchaser requests to purchase

on c. Contracted Requirements basis. Bonneville's expected firm

loac^-resource balance and the priority of competlna requests for

purposes of allocating the availability of this subparagraph of

paragraph (1) shall be determined In the manner described In

section 12(b)(7) above.

The Purchaser nay elect to cease purchasing on a Contracted

Requirements basis at the time of submittal of any revised Firm

Resources Exhibit. Such election shall become effective for the

seventh Operating Year of such exhibit, or for an earlier Operating

Year If Bonneville Is expected to have an excess of firm resources

over Its firm load In the first Operating Year for which the

Purchaser proposes to cease purchasing on a Contracted Requirements

basis. Bonneville's expected firm load-resource balance and the
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priority of competing requests for purposes of allocating the

availability of this subparagraph of paragraph (1) shall be

dctemlned In the manner described In section 12(b)(9) above.

(2) If the Purchaser requests to purchase on the basis of

Contracted Requirements, It shall submit to Bonneville 1n the

Purchaser's Initial Flm Resources Exhibit in addition to data

required In section 12(a), the Purchaser's annual Estimated Firm Peak

Load, the annual average of Purchaser's Estimated Firm Energy Load,

the estimated Assured Capabilities of the Purchaser's Firm Resources

corresponding to the time period of such loads, and a schedule of

annual Contracted .Requirements purchases of peak and energy for e^ch

of the first seven Operating Years. If the Purchaser's Contracte

1

Requirements peak purchase amount for any such Operating Year Is

based on Its Estimated Firm Peak Load for the months June through

November, such amount shall be the Purchaser's Contracted

Requirements peak purchase amounts for June through November and the

Purchaser shall also submit a lower amount which Is based on Its

Estimated Peak Load for the months December through May. With each

revised Firm Resources Exhibit submitted in accordance with

section 12(b), such Purchaser shall submit a new schedule deleting

the amounts of Contracted Requirements peak and energy purchases for

the current Operating Year and adding the amounts to be purchased in

the seventh succeeding Operating Year together with Purchaser's

annual Estimated Firm Peak Load and annual average Estimated Firm

Energy Load In the seventh Operating Year, and new information on the

estimated Assured Capability of all Firm Resources and Estimated Firm
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Question 2: In your answer to my written questions, you estimated that the irrigation

discount will cost BPA $27 million in lost revenues in FY 1994 and FY 1995.

Does the BPA's estimate of the costs of the irrigation discount include the cost

of lost power generation due to water withdrawals'' If not, would you estimate

for me the cost attributable to lost power generation due to water withdrawals''

Answer BPA's estimate of the 2-year amount of the irrigation discount does not include

"the cost of lost power generation due to water withdrawals.At this time, we do

not have a methodology for calculating the impact of water withdrawals. Such

estimates are complicated by a variety of factors including water returned to the

river, price elasticity in the irrigation sector, and varying amounts of annual

precipitation

BPA will reconsider the need for the irrigation discount in the context of

developing tiered rates over the next two years, as a part of the 1995 rate case.

Utilities thai currently qualify for the irrigation discount are also those that have

slow grouih Thus, they may benefit from a tiered rate structure in the form of

iouer rates, offsetting the need for the irrigation discount.
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Question 3: Setting aside the issues in the pending rate case and whatever decisions you must

make in the case, does BPA have any plans for a process to review or develop

wholesale tiered rates? Is the BPA willing to consider an interim rate case

limited to a multi-level rate proposal?

Answer: BPA is currently preparing to initiate a public process, to begin this summer, to

consider the development and implementation of tiered rates. BPA will

establish a working group to identify the problems and concerns to be

addressed by a tiered rate, look at tiered rate objectives and principles, and

develop tiered rate alternatives. The alternatives will then be evaluated, the

completion of which will be no later than July 1994. BPA may, if it is

appropriate at that time, hold an interim rate case on the tiered rate

methodology.
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April 27. 1993

The Honorable Peter DeFazio

House of Representatives

1233 Longworth House Office Building

Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Congressman DeFazio:

The Public Power Council (PPC) and its member utilities take this opportunity

to respond to your questions of the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA).

PPC intends to provide additional information on these questions and other

matters the Task Force will review. We believe that your airing of these issues will

help to contribute to their resolution.

We would like to emphasize these key points for this first Task Force hearing:

BPA is in a financial crisis and it needs to cut its costs;

BPA's customers, the ones who pay those costs and are among the

beneficiaries from BPA's programs, have identified areas where costs

can be cut without undermining BPA's mission or responsibilities; and

BPA's customers want to work with BPA to accomplish these efficiency

improvements.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide these responses. If you need any
additional information, please call me.

Sincerely

William K. Drummond
Manager
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Responses to DeFazio's Questions

OPERATIONS

(p.2,Q6)

Has an independent entity conducted a top to bottom review of the efficiency

of BPA operations? If not, does BPA intend to initiate such an independent

review?

• The customers welcome the opportunity for an objective and

independent review of BPA operations.

• The Programs in Perspective (PIP) process was initiallv designed

to provide increased involvement in BPA*s decision making. Its

incremental review is, however, imlikely to produce the coherent

agency-wide review that mechanisms like the Customer Review Group

(CRG) can.

(p.2,Q7)

BPA has announced that cuts will occur in the administrative budget,

including employee training, travel, supplies and support services. What

level of reductions will you take from current levels in these and other

administrative areas? What cuts will be taken in FY 94 and FY 95 from

budgeted levels?

• PPC believes that cuts in BPA*s administrative costs, as well as its

other costs, are necessary for BPA to rpmain a competitive power

supplier .

• We believe that BPA*s utilitv and industry customers can help

BPA to deal with its current financial situation . BPA's customers

have faced similar financial difficulties in managing their own

operations and have reduced their costs to remain competitive.

Because they have faced these difficult issues themselves, the

customers are uniquely positioned to assist BPA in making decisions

about the kinds and amounts of any cuts.

- 1-
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• PPC is supporting the "conceptual" agreement that occurred

during recent rate settlement discussions . Through that decision

PPC agreed to work with BPA staff to reduce administrative costs.

BPA customers recommend that, in light of the current financial

crisis, BPA hold its costs to 1992 actual levels.

• Expenditure levels may need to be reduced much further, but it is

most important that BPA's expenditures should support the BPA
mission .

This mission includes:

firm electric power and capacity;

transmission services;

exchange coordination and backup services;

economy and replacement energy; and

fulfill its fish and wildlife responsibilities.

REVENUES

(p.2,Q3)

It is my understanding that certain BPA customer utilities have advanced a

proposal to increase BPA's short-term cash flows by paying their BPA
obligations earlier than they presently do. Please describe the benefits that

might accrue to BPA if this approach was adopted. Does BPA plan to

implement this proposal?

BPA's customers have proposed a voluntary prompt bill payment

program whereby, upon notification by BPA. the utilities would pay

their power bills upon receipt of the bill from BPA. instead of at the end

of the period during which the bill may be paid . Also, some investor-

owned utilities participating in the Residential Exchange Program would

agree to receive their Exchange payments at the end of the period in which

they may receive these payments. This cash flow modification would assist

BPA in meeting its U.S. Treasury payments and other payments in years

when BPA's working capital declines below levels needed to make these

payments while maintaining adequate cash balances.
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(l:ONSERVATION

(p.4,Ql)

In a letter to Chairman Miller dated March 24, 1993, the Northwest Power

Planning Council stated that BPA "has not been aggressive in reducing

program administrative costs" for conservation programs. Please identify

potential savings, if any, per fiscal year from FY 1994 to FY 1998 from

reducing administrative costs of conservation programs.

• Reducing the administrative costs of delivering conservation

resources is a high priority with PPC . It is important, however, to

differentiate between program administrative costs and corporate

administrative costs because the corporate costs are beyond the control

of BPA's conservation staff. The preliminary numbers indicate that

program overheads average approximately 14% of program costs and

corporate overheads average approximately 26%.

• PPC believes that significant savings are possible by employing

innovative strategies for delivering conservation resources . Third

party financing of conservation and placing greater control of

conservation expenditures at the local utility level are examples of

these innovations. For example, an organization of Washington

Public Utility Districts has been formed to develop conservation and

renewable resources. These approaches rely more on local than

centralized decision-making.

• Given the state of knowledge about conservation performance in

the Northwest, a more reasonable approach to program evaluation

would also help to lower BPA conservation program

administrative costs . The issues are how much certainty we need

and how much can we afford.

• BPA*s corporate overheads are somewhat more difficult to analyze

and understand . We understand that BPA is reviewing the impacts

of corporate overheads on conservation programs. We will be

examining the components of these overheads as soon as the

assessment is complete and we expect to be working with BPA to

address the issues of corporate overheads as they contribute to BPA's

conservation program costs.
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(p.4,Q2)

Please provide an estimate of the total expenditures to date of the "Super-

Good Cents" program in areas where natural gas service is currently

available. Please estimate the budget savings that would result from a

termination of the Super Good Cents program in areas currently served by

natural gas per fiscal year from FY 1994 to FY 1998.

• The intent of the Super Good Cents program is to promote energy

efficiency in new electrically heated homes . No reliable statistics

are available from PPC's members about the programs's effect in

areas served by namral gas. Informal evidence from PPC's members,

however, indicates that in areas where natural gas is available its

market share is approaching 90%.

• The Super Good Cents program is designed to educate the

construction trades, manufacturers, suppliers and consumers

about the importance of quality materials and workmanship in the

efficiency of new homes . It was developed to prepare the market to

accept the Northwest Power Planning Council's Model Conservation

Standards (MCS).

• Significant savings might be accomplished by reducing the cost

components of the Super Good Cents program . For example,

regional advertising could be lowered along with certain program

support items. PPC is participating in BPA's program-by-program

review of all of its residential programs and we expect to identify

significant savings through these efforts.

(p.4,Q3)

It is my understanding that a study has been conducted which compares the

costs of BPA conservation programs per unit of energy saved to the costs

incurred by certain Northwest utilities per unit of energy saved. Please

provide a copy of this study and explain the differences in conservation

costs, if any, between BPA and regional utilities.

• PPC is unaware of any published study comparing the cost per

unit of energy saved in BPA programs and the cost pgr nnit pf

energy saved of other Northwest utilities. PPC has repeatedly

expressed its concern about BPA making appropriate conservation

investments and keeping its administrative and overhead costs as low
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as possible; however, some comparisons between BPA programs and

those of other utilities might be unfair. Frequently, the utility

programs compared are less comprehensive and less aggressive than

BPA's conservation programs. This does not mean that BPA's

conservation programs cannot be improved; there is ample evidence

that improvement is possible. We just need to decide what is broken

before we try to fix it.

(p.4,Q5)

Please provide an estimate of BPA expenditures to date on the Manufactured

Housing Acquisition Program (MAP) per fiscal year. What Percentage of

these expenditures were administrative costs? Please provide an estimate of

the percentage of MAP homes that are sited in areas currently served by

natural gas.

• Historically, very few manufactured homes have used gas . Each

year, over 11,000 manufactured homes are sited in the region. More
than 90% of these homes are electrically heated. It is difficult to

accurately estimate the number of these manufactured homes that are

located where natural gas is available.

• The regional benefits of MAP are significant . With energy savings

of approximately 6,000 kWh per year per house, the new homes

leaving the factory will add another 7.5 average megawatts of

conservation savings. The MAP is expected to save Northwest

consumers approximately $38 million over the term of the four year

contract.

(p.4,Q7)

Please describe the scope of BPA's activities regarding fuel switching.

Bonneville and its customers reviewed the fuel choice policy as part of the

1992 Resource Program. The conclusions drawn from this review were

threefold.

Fuel switching is a potentially cost-effective resource but the method and

rate of acquisition are unclear. Bonneville identified approximately 200

aMW of fuel switching resource potential not expected to be captured by

current market forces in the service areas of its customer utilities. What

was not clear from the analysis was how, if at all, this resource could be

-5-
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captured in a programmatic effort. In order to improve its information base

regarding fuel switching, Bonneville initiated the following efforts.

Review of current policies and prngrams to assess their impacts on fuel

switchmg. Bonneville will determine if any of its existing programs,

policies or regulations provide inappropriate market signals with regard to

fiiel choice. Bonneville, in cooperation with its customers, will move over

time to make changes in program design if necessary.

Provide assistance for customer initiated projects . Bonneville will

consider financial and other assistance for fuel switching projects endorsed

by the local utility. Projects must be regionally cost-effective and be

strucmred so that the electric and gas utilities along with the switching

consumer all contribute to funding the cost of program.

(p.4,Q8)

Please provide an estimate of the amount of energy that would be saved per

year if the two-tiered rates and low-density discount adjustment

recommended by the Northwest Conservation Act Coalition were

implemented (growth adjustment and no-growth adjustment model). What is

the earliest possible date that BPA can implement tiered rates? Has BPA

initiated an EIS on tiered rates?

Potential energy savings from implementing NCAC's tiered rate

proposal are unknown, for several reasons .

NCAC's defmition of tiered rates is incomplete and there are many

definitions of tiered rates.

Numerous definitional and allocation issues remain to be resolved

under anyone's tiered rates scenario.

Customer responses to tiered rates will, undoubtedly, change

depending on the decisions that are made about tiered rates and how

they are implemented.

No one is certain how DSI or residential exchange loads will be

addressed under possible tiered rates scenarios but the public agencies

believe DSI loads and residential exchange must be included in BPA

tiered rates.

Tiered rates may significantly affect the manner in which conservation

is delivered especially in fostering conservation transfers.

6-
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FISH AND WILDLIFE

(p.5,Q2)

What percentage of the FY 1992, 1993 and proposed FY 1994 budget

are/were devoted to the implementation of Coimcil program measures and

what amount are/were spent for other purposes? Please provide a list of all

non-program measures in these budgets, including the rationale, cost and

purpose of each measure.

Thp unspoken implication is that program measures deserve the too

priority and non-program measures need special rationale to justify

their inclusion in BPA's budget . We think other priorities are important,

and deserve BPA's attention, such as: does the measure offer a direct

benefit to fish and wildlife, especially weak or listed stocks and is it cost

effective? The Council's program is not the only authority on fish

programs, and some elements may actually harm listed stocks. It is critical

that threatened or endangered fish not be harmed by BPA's measures.

(p.6,Q3)

It is my understanding the BPA is currently reducing program budgets

throughout the agency. Do you intend to defer implementation of the

Northwest Power Planning Council's Strategy for Salmon? If so, in vyhat

areas and what savings would result in FY 1994? Do you intend to defer

any non-program measures? If so, in what areas and what savings would

result in FY 1994?

Savings are possible in several areas that would not detract from the

Strategy For Salmon, for example a reduction of the overhead for the

squawfish program. In other areas, such as O&M. wildlife, and

habitat, deferral of program measures is acceptable . Some program

elements may be harmful to potential endangered species and should be

reconsidered for that reason.

(p.6,Q4)

It is my understanding that BPA has a contract relating to sahnon with

Resources for the Future. What is the purpose of the contract? How much

has BPA spent on this contract to date and how much does BPA plan to

spend in FY 1994?

-7
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The purpose of the Resources for the Future (RFF) contract is to help

develop tools that can be used to manage the fish and wildlife program
,

in a cost-pffpptive manner . RFF has used available information and I

developed analyses that can help the region decide which measures in the '

Council's Fish and Wildlife Program are cost-effective and which are not.

Preliminary results are available on a system-wide basis, which indicate that

we are not on a least-cost path toward fish enhancement. This information

should be used to redirect the Fish and Wildlife Program and as part of the

NMFS Recovery Plan. There is no other available comprehensive source on

the cost-effectiveness of the region's expenditures in this area. Two recent

GAO reports note that there is currently no evidence of the cost-

effectiveness of either past or .proposed fiiture actions. The analysis by RFF
is one critical component of a least-cost fish enhancement and recovery plan.

(p.6,Q6)

Has BPA contracted with the University of Washington to do a modeling

effort that is similar to one already conducted by the Northwest Power

Planning Council? If so, what is the purpose of this contract and how much

will it cost?

The BPA modeling effort is important because it is an alternative to. not

a duplication of. the Council and state models . BPA's model is more

comprehensive than the Council's model, allows for consideration of

alternative measures and answers different questions; it goes far beyond the

Council's model. Also, the other models were not developed in the same

open arena as the BPA model.

(p6,Q8)

How much has BPA budgeted for the squawfish program in FY 1994? Of

this amount how much will go directly for the payment of bounties to

fishermen? Please describe the status and results of research on the

effectiveness of the squawfish program.

PPC supports predator control as part of a comprehensive program of

salmon recovery. We are concerned that administrative costs appear to

comprise a disproportionate share of program costs.

-8-
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(p.6,Q9)

Please describe the so called "lease back/buy back" fish program. How
much will this program cost in FY 1994?

This proposal is apparently dead for this year due to a failure to ensure

the fish not harvested in the lower river would pass through tribal

fishing areas . There are pros and cons to the concept. Basically, the best,

if not only, way in near term to make additional adults available for

spawning is to stop or reduce the harvest. The concept is that BPA would

pay for adults through this program and be compensated by NMFS in terms

of river operation (giving credit for fish). It is expensive per fish, but

compared to the cost and uncertain benefit of changes in river operations, it

may be cost-effective. The program is designed to increase the number of

listed wild adult Snake River salmon, but would likely help other runs as

well.

-9
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April 28, 1993

Mr. George Eskridge
Montana District Manager
800 Kensington
Missoula, Montana 59801

Dear George

Thank you for coming to Northwest Montana to hear the
concerns of my constituents about the lake and about Bonneville's
operations.

I know this is a difficult time for BPA, and that you have
an extraordinary set of circumstances within which to operate the
power system this year. Between the drought, efforts to maintain
northwest fisheries, and the need to purchase additional power,
Bonneville would seem to be very close to the rock and the hard
place.

As you know, today is the first hearing of the U.S. Congress
task force on the BPA. This task force has been formed for the
purpose of both reviewing BPA's water and power programs, and to
begin the discussion about what we want Bonneville to look like
in ten or twenty years. As the custodians of much of the
region's water storage capacity, we Montanans have very serious
concerns about how this water is used, and about the cost to
Montana's fish, wildlife, and recreation of policies benefitting
these same resources downstream.

I'm committed to work through the task force to resolve some
of the following issues, and I'm willing to work with the
residents of this county and the state on other issues of concern
as well.

From our top state officials at the Power Planning Council,
to the marina operators and fishermen on Lake Koocanusa,
Montanans are weary of the drawdown process. We Montanans
deserve a full accounting of why our reservoirs are drawn to such
low levels that our fisheries cannot thrive, residents and
visitors can't get their boats in the lake, and the Tobacco
Valley is choked in dust.
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Mr. George Eskridge
April 28, 1993
Page 2

We want an accounting of our reservoirs' contribution to the
efficient production of power, to the recovery of sturgeon on the
Kootenai and the salmon in the Columbia.

Montanans are willing participants in our nation's quest to
restore the salmon, but we must be assured that our contributions
are based on science and have a good chance of success.

And finally - but importantly - our Northwest Montana
economy is very sensitive to electric rates. Columbia Falls
Aluminum and our timber mills most likely cannot absorb large
rate increases. We encourage Bonneville to continue to do all it
can to keep its costs down, and to improve conservation so that
we avoid expensive new power purchases.

Now, George, if you'll do those things, we'll try to make it
rain.

Best regards.

Sincerely,
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Committee on Hi;?^
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The Honorable Charles A. Bowsher
Comptroller General of the United States
U.S. General Accounting Office
441 G Street, N.W.
Room 7000
Washington, D.C. 20548

Dear Mr. Bowsher:

I recently announced my Intent to establish within the
Committee a Task Force on the Bonneville Power Administration to
review the many critical issues confronting BPA and the Northwest
region, including electric power resource acquisition, water
management, endangered salmon, and financial reform. As part of
this review, X request that GAO prepare a summary of all the work
it has done regarding BPA and other federal agencies involved In
the operations of the BPA system subsequent to the passage of the
Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation Act of
1980. If possible, I request that this summary be completed
before March 31, 1993, so that the Task Force can utilize it
prior to holding its first hearing.

Thank you for your assistance.

yBxy$;«ily yourt, ' .

^—©Bfirge Miller3rge
Chairman
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GAO Unlteil States

General Accounting OfHce
WaahlnKton. D.C. 20S48

Beaoorces, Community, and
Economic Development DIvialon

B-252738

March 31, 1993

The Honorable George Miller
Chairman, Committee on Natural Resources
House of Representatives

Dear Mr. Chairman:

This letter with enclosures responds to your February 1993
request that we summarize our work on the Bonneville Power
Administration (BPA) since the enactment In 1980 of the
Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation
Act (Northwest Power Act). You asked that we Include our
relevant work on other federal agencies Involved In the
operations of the BPA system. These Include the U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers and the Bureau of Reclamation, which
operate dams on the Columbia River; the Department of
Energy, BPA's parent agency; and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service and the National Marine Fisheries Service, which
are responsible for protecting the Columbia River's
endangered and threatened fish species.

To respond to your request, we searched GAO's automated
database to identify products on BPA and the related
agencies issued from December 1980, when the Northwest
Power Act was enacted, to the present. For those products
in which we had recommended that an agency or agencies take
action, we retrieved from other GAO automated files the
documentation indicating whether and how the agency or
agencies had responded to the recommendation(s) . We
reviewed each of the identified products for content and
relevance. As agreed with your office, we categorized the
products according to the issues identified in your letter
and several related issues.

Each of the eight enclosures to this letter summarizes our
work on one of these issues, as follows:

Enclosure I - Financial Management
Enclosure II - Endangered Species
Enclosure III - Resource Acquisition
Enclosure IV - Irrigation
Enclosure V - Electricity Transmission

GA0/RCa>-93-133R, GAO Products on Bonneville Power AdmiitistEatian
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B-252738

Enclosure VI - Administrative Matters
Enclosure VII - Washington Public Power Supply System

(WPPSS)
Enclosure VIII - Power Marketing Administration (PMA)

Rates/Repayment

For each of the identified issues, the summary includes our
conclusions and recommendations and the action(s) taken by
the agency or agencies in response to our recommendations

.

We have also included within each enclosure a complete list
of our relevant products

.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (202)
512-3841.

Sincerely yours.

^(A^^
Victor S. Rezendes
)irector. Energy and
Science Issues

2 GA0/RCED-93-133R, GAO Products on Bonneville Power AdBinistration
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ENCLOSURE I ENCLOSURE I

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

BACKGROUND

Federal law requires the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA)

to repay the federal investment in the Columbia River Power System
—about $8.5 billion as of 1987 --and to set electric power rates at

the lowest possible level consistent with sound business practices.
The Federal Columbia River Transmission System Act of 1974 placed
BPA on a self-financing basis, giving it authority to fund its

operations from the revenues of power and transmission service
sales and to borrow from the U.S. Treasury. This law also provided
that BPA apply revenues to pay for, among other things, the costs
of (1) operation and maintenance, (2) purchased and exchanged
power, and (3) transmission service.

BPA made repayments on the federal Investment from 1939

through 1965, using a cost-based method that incorporated fixed
annual repayments. In 1965, BPA switched to a "repayment study
method," under which annual repayments are not required; BPA need
only repay the federal investment within its repayment period
(usually 50 years).

GAP WORK

In June 1981, we concluded that BPA's repayment study method
was unaccept£a>le and recommended that BPA replace it with a cost-
based (mortgage-type) approach. We found that since BPA had
adopted the repayment study method, its repayments of the federal
investment had fallen far behind levels that would have been
expected if annual schedules had been maintained. We based our
recommendation on a number of factors that we believed BPA should
consider in evaluating its policies and alternatives, including the

requirements of the 1980 Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning
and Conservation Act (Northwest Power Act) and the principles of

good government. We found that the repayment study method made it

virtually impossible for BPA to (1) adequately meet some of the
requirements of the Northwest Power Act, such as the requirement
that BPA allocate costs among its various customers, and (2)

conform to principles of good government, such as those calling for

the establishment of credible and reliable processes, the
encouragement of economy and efficiency, and the prevention of
unsanctioned burdens on the taxpayer.

In testimonies before the Congress in August and September
1983 and in a report issued in October 1983, we continued to
recommend that BPA adopt a repayment method based on costs with
fixed annual payments. Our October 1983 report cited the fixed
repayment requirement that the Congress had placed on the Tennessee
Valley Authority to suggest that a cost-based approach was

3 GM)/BCEI>-93-133R, GAO Products on Bonneville Poner Adainistratian
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ENCLOSURE I ENCLOSURE I

practicable. Our October report also included two additional
recommendations. First, we recommended that BPA stop its practice
of first paying the highest interest-bearing obligations, rather
than repaying debts in the order in which they were incurred. We
concluded that the practice of first paying high- Interest
obligations reduces BPA's payment to the Treasury. As a result,
the Treasury has to borrow more money at interest rates that
usually exceed those paid by BPA, thereby costing the taxpayer
more

.

The report also recommended that the cost-based method contain
a provision that late or missed repayments incur interest costs at
the higher of the project's interest costs or the Treasury's
current cost of borrowing. In response to our recommendations, the
Department of Energy (DOE) stated that (1) BPA's repayment study
method was appropriate but that DOE and BPA were continuing to
study alternative methodologies, including the cost-based method
that we had recommended; (2) imposing an interest penalty on missed
repayments was not legally permissible; and (3) paying the highest
interest-bearing capital obligation first was consistent with sound
business principles.

In a September 1989 report, we reviewed the authority of
several federal agencies, including BPA, to borrow funds when this
authority was not provided in advance in annual appropriations
acts. At the time, agencies with authority to borrow were
financing a large portion of their programs with debt and were
repaying their debt with appropriations or new borrowing rather
than collections. We recommended that those agencies that would,
in all likelihood, be able to repay their borrowings entirely with
collections be granted authority to borrow. We concluded that,
since BPA had not received appropriations to reduce debt and since
BPA had attempted to set its rates at a level sufficient to recover
its costs, it was reasoneUale to expect that BPA would be able to
repay its $1.8 billion in borrowings with collections.*

Our 1990 report reviewed BPA's Residential Exchange Progreun,
which was created by the Northwest Power Act. The purpose of this
program was to reduce the disparity in electric rates paid by
residential and small farm customers of the region's utilities by
having BPA "exchange" its relatively low-cost power with Northwest
utilities that had higher-cost power. We found that, although the
program reduced the disparity in rates, this reduction stemmed
mostly from significant increases in BPA's rates over the period
rather than from reductions in rates attributable to utilities'
purchases of lower-cost BPA power. After finding that BPA had not

^he report noted that BPA was also required to pay $6.7 billion
in debt resulting from appropriations.

4 GAD/BCED-93-133R, GAO Pzodncta go Bonneville PoNer Adainistration
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ENCLOSURE I ENCLOSURE I

been conducting the reviews necessary to ensure that utilities were
passing on lower costs to residential and small farm customers, we
recommended that the BPA Administrator Initiate such reviews. BPA
adopted our recommendations. Including procedures to verify that
customers' rates are adjusted by Northwest utilities to account for
purchases of BPA's lower-cost power.

GAO/BCED-93-1331. GAO Products on Bonneville PoMer Ateinistrmtion
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ENCLOSURE I ENCLOSURE I

GAO PRODUCTS

Federal Electric Power; Bonneville's Residential Exchange Program
(GAO/RCED-90-34, Feb. 6, 1990).

Budget Issues: Agency Authority to Borrow Should Be Granted More
Selectively (GAO/AFMD-89-4, Sept. 15, 1989).

Nuclear Science: Effect of Conversion of Washington Nuclear Plant
No. 1 on Debt and Electric Rates (GAO/RCED-89-88FS, Mar. 9, 1989).

Federal Electric Power: Development of Bonneville Electricity
Rates for the 1988-89 Period (GAO/RCED-88-126, June 7, 1988).

Bonneville Power Administration's Repayment of Federal Investment
in Columbia River Power System (GAO testimony, 125176, Sept. 13,
1984).

Implementation of the Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and
Conservation Act's Fish and Wildlife Provisions (GAO/RCED-84-166,
Aug. 17, 1984).

Policies Governing Bonneville Power Administration's Repayment of
Federal Investment Still Need Revision (GAO/RCED-84-25, Oct. 26,
1983).

Bonneville Power Administration's Repayment of the Federal
Investment (GAO testimony, 122327, Sept. 14, 1983).

Federal Investment in the Columbia River Power System; Status of
Repayment (GAO testimony, 122041, Aug. 3, 1983).

Bonneville Power Administration's Capability and Preparations to
Implement the Regional Power Plan (GAO testimony, 121651, June 13,
1983).

Actions by the Bonneville Power Administration to Implement the
Long-Term Contracting Provisions of P.L. 96-501 (GAO/EMD-81-140,
Sept. 4, 1981).

Policies Governing the Bonneville Power Administration's Repayment
of Federal Investments Need Revision (GAO/EMD-81-94, June 16,
1981).

Bonneville Power Administration's Efforts in Implementing the
Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation Act
(GAO/EMD-81-67, Apr. 8, 1981).

GA0/RCED-93-133R, GAO Products on Bonneville Power Adoiinistration
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ENCLOSURE II ENCLOSURE II

ENDANGERED SPECIES

BACKGROUND

Hydropower facilities In the Columbia River Basin have
contributed to an estimated 80-percent decline In the nuoibers of
salmon and steelhead trout that migrate to the ocean as young fish
and return as adults to spawn. Dams have been built by the
Department of the Interior's Bureau of Recleunatlon (Bureau), the
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), or public utility districts.

The Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation
Act, enacted In 1980, established the Pacific Northwest Electric
Power and Conservation Planning Council (Council) and directed it
to develop a program for enhancing, mitigating, and protecting fish
and wildlife affected by the Columbia River Basin power-generating
facilities. The Council's program was first adopted in 1982 and
was revised in 1984 to include a 5-year action plan that put
primary emphasis on enhancing fish resources. The action plan also
included measures for protecting and enhancing the habitat of the
basin's nonmigratory fish and wildlife.

The Department of Commerce's National Marine Fisheries Service
(NMFS) listed the Snake River sockeye salmon as an endangered
species in 1991 and the Snake River fall Chinook salmon and
spring/summer Chinook salmon as threatened species in 1992.

GAP WORK

In 1984, we reviewed the Council's compliance with the act's
requirement to develop a fish and wildlife prograun and found that
the Council had developed a program according to the procedures and
standards specified in the act. In 1987, we again reviewed the
Council's program and found that the Bonneville Power
Administration (EPA) and other responsible agencies appeared to be
making progress in carrying out the Council's program. BPA and the
Corps have responsibility for implementing roughly one-half of the
action items Included in the program, and, as of 1985, BPA and the
Corps had spent more than $100 million on implementing these items.
All expenditures for the progreun are funded by BPA through its
power sales revenues. We noted, however, that it was too early to
determine the success of the overall progreun in protecting and
restoring the region's fish and wildlife resources. We also noted
that both the Council and BPA had Instituted programs to Inform the
public of, and elicit their views on, plans and activities related
to fish and wildlife prograuns.

In 1990, we examined the efforts made by the Corps to
determine the most effective method for assisting fish migration
past certain Columbia and Snake River dams. We found that the
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Corps had excluded several factors from calculations used to
determine that the costs of constructing bypasses at two dams
outweighed the benefits and that the inclusion of these factors
could have led to the opposite conclusion. In addition, we found
that the Corps did not adequately involve fish and wildlife
agencies or other groups, as its regulations require, in making its
decisions. We determined that the Corps was not obligated to
restore the numbers of migrating fish to a specific level and
therefore had no benchmark to assess the need for additional fish
migration projects.

On the basis of these findings, we recommended that the
Secretary of the Army direct the Corps, in consultation with other
interested groups, to establish a mitigation objective and
determine which measures, such as bypass facilities, were necessary
to meet the objective. We also recommended that, in performing
future cost-benefit analyses, the Corps take such steps as using
validated models to project impacts on fish stock and consulting
with other agencies and other parties involved in resource
management. In response, the Army stated that the Corps was
developing mitigation objectives and expected to have a detailed
analysis in 1993 or 1994. In addition, the Corps agreed to adopt
our recommendations regarding cost-benefit analyses.

In 1992, we reviewed past actions taken to address declines in
salmon runs, together with the costs of these actions. We also
reviewed the results of studies and research that evaluated the
effectiveness of the salmon recovery measures undertaken. We found
that, since 1981, federal agencies and regional organizations had
spent over $1.3 billion (in 1991 dollars) to construct and operate
fish hatcheries, construct fish ladders and other facilities to
assist salmon in their migration to and from the sea, improve
salmon habitats, and conduct research to learn more about salmon or
to assess and improve salmon runs. The effectiveness of the
actions taken has varied by the type and location of the action.
For example, hatcheries have been successful, but problems have
resulted from mixing wild and hatchery-bred salmon; facilities to
assist salmon in their migration, such as bypass screens and fish
ladders, have also had differing results, depending on the location
of the dams and the type of salmon.

A 1993 follow-up report identified the potential economic
costs and effectiveness of future actions that could be taken to
further protect endangered and threatened salmon stocks . We found
that a preliminary estimate of the impacts of additional salmon
protection measures on employment would not be available until mid-
1993 at the earliest. Preliminary estimates of the direct net
economic costs of some potential salmon protection measures range
from $2 million to $211 million annually (in 1990 dollars). These
protection measures would alter stream flows to improve the
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survival of flti^h migrating downstream; more definitive estimates
of economic Impact cannot be determined until NMFS Identifies the
specific measures to be taken. We found no conclusive evidence to
Indicate how effective any of the salmon protection measures
proposed to date would be In sustaining populations of threatened
or endangered salmon.
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GAO PRODUCTS

Endangered Species; Potential Economic Costs of Further Protection
for Columbia River Salmon (GAO/RCED-93-41, Feb. 23, 1993).

Endangered Species: Past Actions Taken to Assist Columbia River
Salmon (GAO/RCED-92-173BR, July 13, 1992).

Hydroelectric Dams; Issues Surrounding Columbia River Basin
Juvenile Fish Bypasses (GAO/RCED-90-180, Sept. 6, 1990).

Electric Power; Issues Concerning Expansion of the Pacific
Northwest-Southwest Intertie (GAO/RCED-88-199, Sept. 14, 1988).

Federal Slectric Power; A Five-Year Status Report on the Pacific
Northwest Power Act (GAO/RCED-87-6, Feb. 19, 1987).

Matters for Consideration When the Columbia River Basin Fish and
Wildlife Program Is Revised (GAO letter, 124359, May 2, 1984).

I
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RESOURCE ACQUISITION

BACKGROUND

The Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation
Act (Northwest Power Act) was enacted in 1980, in part, to
alleviate regional concerns about future power shortages. Its

primary objectives included (1) establishing a regional power
planning process with participation from all interested parties and

(2) encouraging cost-effective energy conservation and development
of renewable energy resources. The act strongly emphasized
conserving electricity and developing renewable resources by making
these activities the first and second priorities of the Bonneville
Power Administration (BPA) when acquiring new resources. In

addition, the act also authorized BPA to borrow up to $1.25 billion
to finance energy conservation investments. Under the act, BPA was
authorized to acquire conservation and renewable resources
consistent with the Pacific Northwest Electric Power and
Conservation Planning Council's (Council) power resource plan, and

the Council was authorized to review BPA's acquisitions for

consistency with the plan.

GAO WORK

In an April 1981 report, we found that, to implement the act

successfully, BPA should consider (1) developing an expertise in

demand forecasting, (2) including provisions in power contracts
allowing BPA access to customers' records to verify conservation
investments, (3) developing conservation programs for BPA's
industrial customers, (4) completing the acquisition procedures and

guidelines for renewable resources, and (5) examining BPA's
organizational structure in light of new legislative
responsibilities

.

During congressional testimony in November 1981, we reported
that BPA's efforts to carry out the act's provisions had proceeded

too quickly in some instances (signing contracts) and too slowly in

others (formulating conservation policies and developing renewable
energies). This testimony reiterated most of the suggestions of

our April 1981 report.

In a 1987 review of BPA's implementation of the Northwest
Power Act, we found that the regional power planning process
instituted under the act had provided a positive framework for

evaluating and planning for the development of the Pacific
Northwest's future electric power resources. We concluded that,

through the planning process, BPA had identified the types of power
resources that should be developed and the timing of their
development under differing future conditions. However, we noted
that, until regional conditions called for utilities to acquire
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major resources, the workability of the act's resource acquisition
process, including whether resources would be acquired in a manner
consistent with the Council's plan, would not be certain. We also
concluded that both the Council and BPA had instituted programs to
inform the public of, and elicit their views on, plans and
activities related to regional power planning.

In 1991, we reviewed the potential savings in electricity from
utility energy efficiency programs, as well as the progress made by
states, utilities, and federal power agencies to encourage more
efficient electricity use. We found that BPA was promoting the
conservation of electricity by (1) providing financial and
technical assistance to consumers of electricity, (2) encouraging
states and local jurisdictions within its service areas to develop
energy-efficient building codes, and (3) transferring energy-
efficient technologies. We noted that, with an explicit
legislative mandate and authority to charge more for its power
unless customer utilities implemented demand-side management (DSM)

programs, BPA was a recognized DSM program authority.

<
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GAO PRODUCTS

Electricity Supply: Utility Demand-Side Management Programs Can
Reduce Electricity Use (GAO/RCED-92-13, Oct. 31, 1991).

Federal Electric Power; A Flye-Year Status Report on the Pacific
Northwest Power Act (GAO/RCED-87-6, Feb. 19, 1987).

Implementation of the Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and
Conservation Act by DOE's Bonneyille Power Administration (GAO
testimony, 116852, Noy. 10, 1981).

Bonneyille Power Administration's Efforts to Implement the
Conseryation Provisions of Public Law 96-501 (GAO/EMD-81-99,
June 8, 1981) .

Bonneyille Power Administration's Efforts in Implementing the
Pacific Northwest Electric Power and Planning and Conseryation Act
(GAO/EMD-81-67, Apr. 8, 1981).
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IRRIGATION

BACKGROUND

The Department of the Interior's Bureau of Recleunatlon
(Bureau) and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) are the
principal federal agencies that build and operate multipurpose
water projects. The Bureau constructs and operates projects for
storing, diverting, or developing water resources to reclaim land
In the arid or semlarld areas of the country. The Corps constructs
and operates water projects associated with rivers, harbors, and
waterways. Both agencies build and operate multipurpose reservoirs
that provide municipal and Industrial water supplies, hydroelectric
power generation, irrigation, fish and wildlife enhancement, flood
control, outdoor recreation, and river regulation and control.

The Bureau has been primarily responsible for the development
of irrigation projects in the Pacific Northwest. The Reclamation
Project Act of 1939, as amended, authorized the Secretary of the
Interior to undertake projects to provide water not only for
irrigation but also for other purposes, such as flood control and
power generation. The act provides that the construction costs
associated with the various purposes of such projects are to be
recovered from the parties receiving the benefits.

In general, users of irrigation water repay their share of a
project's costs without Interest. These interest-free payments
generally are required to be made within 50 years, on the basis of
the irrigator's ability to pay as determined by the Bureau's
economic analysis of the specific project. Irrigation costs above
the water user's ability to pay are to be repaid by revenues from
surplus hydroelectric power sales and other miscellaneous project
revenues, again without an Interest charge.

GAO WORK

In October 1985, we testified on the development of
hydroelectric and federal water projects in the Pacific Northwest.
Among other Issues, we assessed whether the Bonneville Power
Administration (BPA) should be required to repay the costs of
constructing irrigation projects from its power sales revenues
(irrigation assistance). We concluded that the Reclamation Project
Act of 1939 does not authorize the use of power revenues for
irrigation assistance but that a substantial number of individual
project authorizations either require or allow irrigation
assistance. For irrigation projects In the Pacific Northwest,
Bureau documents indicate that about $2.7 billion in Irrigation
assistance is to be provided from revenues received by BPA from
federal power sales.
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In a July 1985 report, we noted that the Congress, in a 1966
law (P.L. 89-561), had limited BPA's authority to provide
irrigation assistance, as well as the amount of the assistance. We
noted that the law represented an attempt by the Congress to
balance the somewhat conflicting interests of power users and
irrigators. The law provides that (1) irrigation assistance may be
paid only from net revenues (defined by the act as revenues not
required to repay project costs allocated to power and irrigation
assistance authorized before the passage of Public Law 89-561; (2)
construction of irrigation projects after 1966 will be scheduled so
that any irrigation assistance provided to those projects, together
with already authorized irrigation assistance, will not require an
increase in BPA rates; and (3) the total amount of irrigation
assistance may not average more than $30 million per year in any
period of 20 consecutive years.

We found that, according to the legislative history of the
1966 law, the key to balancing the interests of power users and
water users is the scheduling of construction of post-1966
irrigation projects. The Congress reasoned that the repayment of
the irrigation costs of any project authorized after 1966 would not
be necessary until 2026 at the earliest, and probably not until
2030 or 2035. By that time, the Congress reasoned, BPA should have
substantially reduced its power-related costs and could shift its
revenues to the repayment of irrigation-related costs without
having to increase power rates

.

In a 1986 review of a proposed expansion of irrigation
facilities in the Columbia Basin Project, we examined who would
repay the costs of constructing the facilities and what share of
the total costs each group would pay. We found that the main
difference between the Bureau's analysis and the other two analyses
that we reviewed was that the Bureau's analysis did not take into
account the interest subsidy granted to users of federal
irrigation. According to the two studies that took the subsidy
into account, the U.S. Treasury would pay 74 percent or 82 percent
of the total cost of the project. In contrast, the Bureau's study,
which did not consider the interest subsidy, showed that irrigators
would pay the largest share (46 percent) of the total cost and the
Treasury would bear no expense in the project.
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GAO PRODUCTS

Water Resources; Issues Concerning Expanded Irrigation In the
^nlnmh^fl Basin Prolect (GAO/RCED-86-82BR, Jan. 31, 1986).

Hydroelectric Development at Federal Facilities in the Pacific
Northwest (GAO testimony, 128095, Oct. 8, 1985).

Recovering a Portion of Federal Irrigation Prolect Construction
Costs Through Revenues From Department of Energy Electric Power
Sales (GAO/RCED-85-128, July 26, 1985).
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ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION

BACKGROUND

The Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) owns and operates
some 14,000 miles of high-voltage electricity transmission lines.
Two reglons--the Pacific Northwest and Callfornla--are joined by
three high-voltage transmission lines (intertie), which allow for
an exchange of electricity between the two regions. BPA owns about
80 percent of the Northwest segment of the Intertie. The Intertie,
completed in 1970, also made Canadian power available through the
Northwest into California. The regions benefit from the exchange
because of the difference in the costs of generating electricity

—

the Northwest uses relatively low-cost hydropower, while California
relies on higher cost oil- and gas-fired generation.

GAO WORK

In 1980, we found that the intertie should be expanded so that
California could save roughly 4 million barrels of oil per year,
while the Northwest could earn additional revenues from the sale of
surplus energy. We recommended that the Secretary of Energy take a
more active role in facilitating the proposed expansion. In a
November 1983 follow-up review, we again recommended that the
Secretary of Energy ensure that BPA continue to facilitate
negotiations to expand the intertie. We also recommended that the
Secretary direct BPA to resolve several outstanding concerns among
BPA and participating utilities. The Department of Energy (DOE)
concurred with our recommendations and stated that it would work to
resolve outstanding issues. In addition, the 1985 DOE
appropriations legislation contained authorization for BPA to
upgrade portions of the existing intertie and to expand the
intertie.

In 1988, we assessed, among other things, both the economic
justification for a proposed $883 million expansion of the Intertie
and the relationship of the expansion to Canadian power imports.
We found the economic rationale for the expansion inadequate and
determined that Canadian power Imports could increase as a result
of the expansion. We recommended that BPA clarify the economic
justification for the proposed expansion. BPA later performed the
supplemental economic analysis, as recommended.
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GAO PRODUCTS

Electric Power; Issues Concerning Expansion of the Pacific
Northwest-Southwest Intertle (GAO/RCED-88-199, Sept. 14, 1988).

Expanding the Pacific Northwest/Southwest Intertie—Benefits and
Impediments (GAO/RCED-84-38, Nov. 4, 1983).

Potential for Expanding Electric Power Transmission Between the
Pacific Northwest and California (GAO testimony, 121900, July 11,

1983).

Analysis of Bonneville Power Administration's Estimate to Bury
Segments of Transmission Line in Montana (GAO/EMD-82-80, May 7,

1982).

Oil Savings From Greater Intertie Capacity Between the Pacific
Northwest and California (GAO/EMD-80-100, Sept. 24, 1980).
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ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

BACKGROUND

In 1983, we issued several reports on the management by the
Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) of its automatic data
processing systems development activities. These reviews were,
based, in part, on our 1978 review of BPA's management of automatic
data processing systems development activities and on a 1981 audit
conducted by the Department of Energy.

GAP WORK

In March 1983, we reviewed computer security at BPA's
control system computer center. We found that BPA had made strides
in implementing a computer security program but that more could be
done. Identified weaknesses included lack of written computer
security procedures, inadequate site security, and lack of 'a fully
developed contingency plan in the event of a computer failure. We
recommended that BPA develop an action plan to correct these
weaknesses and that the Chief Auditor periodically review the
computer center's security program. BPA took corrective action in
response to our recommendations

.

Our February 1983 report reviewed BPA's electricity billing
processes to assess the actions planned by BPA to improve the
timeliness of its billings. We found that more than $3.2 million
in interest expenses could be avoided annually if BPA were to
change its customer billing processes. Specifically, BPA could
achieve significant savings by (1) charging certain customers
monthly rather than quarterly and (2) requiring federal agency
customers to pay their bills promptly or be charged interest on
late payments.
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GAP PRODUCTS

Bonneville's ADP Resource Management Controls Show Improvement, but
More Needs to Be Done (GAO/AFMD-83-63/ June 22, 1983).

Bonneville Power Administration Control Svstem's Computer Security
—More Needs to Be Done (GAO letter, 122958, Mar. 18, 1983).

Changes In BPA Billing Practices Could Reduce Interest Costs and
Improve Cash Flow {GAO/RCED-83-64, Feb. 28, 1983).

Federal Agencies' Still Need to Develop Greater Computer Audit
Capabilities (GAO/AFMD-82-7, Oct. 16, 1981).

BPA Management of ADP Systems Development Activities (GAO letter,
092132, May 30, 1978).
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WPPSS

BACKGROUND

Created In 1957, the Washington Public Power Supply System
(WPPSS) was a municipal corporation and a joint operating agency of
the state of Washington. It consisted of 19 operating public
utility districts and four cities In the state of Washington.
WPPSS had the authority, among other things, to acquire, construct,
and operate plants and facilities for the generation and
transmission of electric power and energy. In 1969, WPPSS agreed
to construct three nuclear-powered electric generating stations,
and the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) agreed to participate
in financing these facilities (plants 1, 2, and 3).

In 1972, BPA's ability to assist in the financing of
additional generating units was halted because of (1) rising
construction costs for power plants 1, 2, 'and 3 and (2) a change in
U.S. Treasury regulations. In spite of BPA's lack of financial
participation, WPPSS decided to build two additional nuclear plants
(plants 4 and 5) that would be financially backed by participating
utilities (participants). Between 1976 and 1981, WPPSS continued
to construct plants 4 and 5. Construction delays and dreunatic
cost increases at plants 4 and 5 led eventually to WPPSS' decision,
in 1982, to terminate the construction of both plants because the
financial market was not able to absorb the bond financing.
However, by this time, WPPSS had sold $2.25 billion in bonds that
required the participants to pay off the bonds in the amount of
their proportionate share, regardless of whether the plants were
ever completed or operated. A number of participants and
ratepayers filed lawsuits contesting the validity of these
obligations.

GAO WORK

We issued two reports in 1982 on BPA's involvement in WPPSS'
nuclear plant projects. One report. Issued on July 2, reviewed the
potential impacts from default or successful legal challenge by
participants in the financing of plants 4 and 5 on the Pacific
Northwest's ability to raise funds for public works and other
programs. We found that a default on the bond obligations by the
participants would probably have adversely affected the economy of
the region and its ability to raise capital in the bond market.
Also, participants that defaulted could expect to pay higher
interest rates for future bond sales.

Our other 1982 report, issued on July 30, examined, eunong
other things, the role of BPA in the development and termination of
plants 4 and 5. We found that BPA had (1) helped small regional
utilities forecast the demand for electricity, (2) endorsed the
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need for additional generating units, (3) supported utilities'
participation in the financing of the plants, and (4) acted to

indirectly facilitate the termination of the plants.

In testimony before the Congress in March 1984, we assessed
both the impact of the costs of nuclear plants 1, 2, and 3 on BPA's
rates and on BPA's responsibilities for project oversight. We
found that BPA's ratepayers were responsible for almost $1 billion
annually in costs related to plants 1, 2, and 3 and that costs from

the projects represented about 30 percent of BPA's total projected
revenue requirements for 1985. We also found that BPA's oversight

staff and management staff were uncertain of BPA's oversight
objectives and staff responsibilities. We identified means by
which BPA could better exercise its existing contractual
authorities for oversight, including conducting more comprehensive
audits and budget reviews and participating in project-related
meetings

.

In our August 1984 report, we recommended to the Secretary of

Energy that BPA take several steps to strengthen its oversight
program, including defining its organizational roles and policies,

adopting procedures for implementing its oversight objectives,

outlining its intent to implement its contractual oversight
authorities, and reviewing its oversight staffing and
organizational format to ensure their adequacy and appropriateness

to support a comprehensive oversight program. The Department of

Energy (DOE), in commenting on a draft of our report, agreed with
the general thrust of our recommendation that BPA improve the

effectiveness of its oversight. However, DOE believed that recent

changes in BPA's oversight structure had overcome many of the

problems and therefore believed that no further action was needed
to address the specific problems identified in our report.

Our 1989 report reviewed several issues involving DOE's
possible acquisition and conversion of a partially completed
commercial nuclear power plant (plant 1) to a nuclear materials
production facility. We found that if DOE acquired the plant, it

would probably complete the power-generating capability of the

plant, thus making it a dual-purpose—production and power

—

reactor. We reviewed, eunong other things, whether a DOE
acquisition and conversion of plant 1 through condemnation could

lead to a default on bonds for the plant, and what effect such an

acquisition would have on BPA's liability for BPA's share of debt

in the plant. We also examined the rate that DOE would charge for

electricity generated by the converted reactor.

We found that DOE could acquire the plant either through
voluntary sale or condemnation. We determined that selling the

plant for less than the amount of the outstanding bonds (roughly
$2.1 billion) could cause a default. Condemnation, however, would
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not lead to default or make the bonds immediately due and payable
because the condemnation would be considered a transfer of the
reactor "through the operation of the law." In addition, we found
that although many factors could be expected to Influence the rate
charged for electricity from the plant, the cost of electricity
from plant 1 would probably be lower than the cost of electricity
produced from the most economical power-generating alternative.
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GAO PRODUCTS

Nuclear Science; Effect of Conversion of Washington Nuclear Plant
No. 1 on Debt and Electric Rates (GAO/RCED-89-88FS, Mar. 9, 1989).

Status of Bonneville Power Administration's Efforts to Improve Its
Oversight of Three Nuclear Power Projects (GAO/RCED-84-27, Aug. 3,
1984).

The Bonneville Power Administration's Oversight Activities Related
to Washington Public Power Supply System (GAO testimony, 123637,
Mar. 12, 1984).

Bonneville Power Administration and Rural Electrification
Administration Actions and Activities Affecting Utility
Participation in Washington Public Power Supply System Plants 4

and 5 (GAO/EMD-82-105, July 30, 1982).

Financial Community's Perceived Impacts Which Could Result From
Default or Successful Legal Challenge by Participants in Washington
Public Power Supply System Nuclear Project Nos . 4 and 5

(GAO/EMD-82-106, July 2, 1982).
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PMA RATES /REPAYMENT

BACKGROUND

The Bonneville Power Administration (EPA) and the Department
of Energy's four other power-marketing administrations (PMA)--
Alaska, Southeastern, Southwestern, and Western--sell wholesale
power from hydroelectric facilities built and operated by the
Department of the Interior's Bureau of Reclamation (Bureau) or by
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps). These projects are
financed largely by the federal government. Project costs properly
allocated for irrigation, power generation, and municipal and
industrial (M&I) water supplies must be repaid in accordance with
repayment policies and contract terms established by the Congress
and through Bureau and Corps administrative decisions made over a

long period of time. In general, repayment provisions for
irrigation users require water users to repay the federal
construcrtion costs, without interest, over a period of time
(usually 50 years).

Federal laws and regulations require power-marketing
administrations to establish power rates at levels necessary to

ensure that revenues from power sales are sufficient to recover all

power-related costs. BPA and Western are also required to recover
some costs for certain Bureau irrigation projects through power
sales revenues (irrigation assistance). Generally, irrigation
assistance is not repaid in annual installments; usually, it is

deferred until the end of the payment period (usually 50 years).

GAP WORK

In March 1981, we reported that the price of Irrigation water
is much lower than the federal government's cost of producing the
water. To show policymakers the direct economic value of producing
more irrigation water, we recommended that, as part of the
congressional authorization and appropriations process, the
Secretary of the Interior provide estimates of (1) the federal
government's full cost of providing irrigation water, including the
cost of borrowing at the then-current rate of interest for federal
borrowing; (2) the increases in crop yield expected for acres
receiving federal water, and (3) the change in net income on the
acres to receive federal water at full cost.

In August 1981, we recommended that the Secretaries of the
Interior and of the Army change certain policies to, sunong other
things, (1) require that all reservoir users share equitably in

cost recovery, (2) include Interest expense in all M&I water sales
prices, and (3) accumulate all unrecovered operations and
maintenance costs and consider such costs in future price
determinations

.
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In our October 1981 report, we concluded that interest-free
financing for irrigation projects and future M&I water supply costs
had become a costly burden on the U.S. Treasury. We calculated
that the interest subsidy for only four reviewed projects would
cost the Treasury more than $667 million. We recommended that the
Congress (1) amend the appropriate federal laws to ensure that M&I
water users would fully repay their share of interest costs and (2)
require the Secretaries of the Interior and of the Army to (a) use
interest rates, developed by the Treasury, that would more
appropriately reflect the Treasury's costs of borrowing funds and
(b) revise the method of computing interest on construction. The
Treasury concurred with our recommendations

.

In 1985, we reported that revenues to the U.S. Treasury could
be increased if irrigation assistance were to be repaid in annual
installments over the life of the repayment period instead of being
repaid in a lump sum at or near the end of the repayment period.
For exeunple, we calculated that this change would result in a net
benefit to the Treasury of about $8.7 million for one project for
which BPA provides irrigation assistance. We noted that the
benefits might not be realized if BPA deferred power cost
repayments to compensate for accelerated irrigation assistance
payments

.

In our September 1986 report, we analyzed several alternatives
for determining federal power prices and concluded that certain
changes could more fully identify and recover the government's
costs or, in some cases, produce revenues in excess of costs.
Alternatives based on the existing cost-of-service objective (which
generally requires that the costs of providing electric service be
recovered through rates) included options for (1) computing a power
project's interest costs and (2) scheduling payments to the
Treasury to repay the federal investment in constructing the power
projects and financing their costs. We concluded that these
alternatives would generally reduce or eliminate the under-recovery
of costs and result in pricing methods that were more consistent
with those of nonfederal electric utilities. In addition, we
analyzed alternatives based on criteria other than the cost of
service, including alternative methods for recovering some
irrigation project costs through power sales revenues, marginal
cost pricing, market pricing, and user fees. We concluded that the
use of these methods could produce revenues in excess of costs.
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GAO PRODUCTS

Federal Electric Power; Pricing Alternatives for Power Marketed by
the Department of Energy (GAO/RCED-86-186BR, Sept. 30, 1986).

Federal Power; Additional Information on Repaying Federal
Investments in Electric Power Facilities (GAO/RCED-86-44FS,
Nov- 12, 1985).

Additional Information Concerning Irrigation Project Costs and
Pricing Federal Power (GAO/RCED-86-18FS, Oct. 10, 1985).

Reforming Interest Provisions in Federal Water Laws Could Save
Millions (GAO/CED-82-3, Oct. 22, 1981).

Changes in Federal Water Project Repayment Policies Can Reduce
Federal Costs (GAO/CED-81-77, Aug. 7, 1981).

Federal Charges for Irrigation Projects Reviewed Do Not Cover Costs
(GAO/PAD-81-07, Mar. 3, 1981).

(307330)

27 GA0/RCED-93-133R, GAO Products oa Bonneville Power Administration
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April 15, 1993

TO: House Natural Resources Committee
The Honorable George Miller, Chairman

Attn: Dan Adamson

FROM: Amy Abel (x7-7239)^
Analyst in Energy Policy

Environment ^d Natural Resources Policy Division

SUBJECT: Bonneville Power Administration Task Force Briefing Book

As you requested, CRS has prepared a two-volume briefing book on the
Bonneville Power Administration (BPA). This document contains the legal

authorities and selected court cases involving BPA and the Northwest Power
Planning Council. Summaries and some completejournal articles, CRS material,

law review articles, and agency material are provided as background for salmon,
water management, and power issues. When only a summary or abstract is

included in the briefing book, we are providing the Committee with a copy ofthe

entire document.

Additionally, we are providing copies of a legislative history of the Pacific

Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation Act. Material for this

doounent was compiled by Amy Abel (electricity), Betsy Cody (water

management), and Eugene Buck (salmon), of the Environment and Natural

Resources Division, and Robert Poling Gegal issues) of the American Law
Division.

Volume One

Volume 1 of the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) Task Force

Briefing Book includes sections on BPA's legal authorities, court cases involving

BPA and electric power issues. In addition to an indexed copy of the Pacific

Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation Act (PX.. 96-501), the first

section contains relevant annotated code. A selection of ei^teen court cases

provides an overview of legal issuea.

The remaining sections in Volume 1 contain material on electric power
issues. The section titled Pacific Northweat Electric Power and Conaervation
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Act-GtTteral includes a CRS report, jouroal article, and law review articles,

describing the Act's implementation and BPA's general responsibilities.

BPA's resource plans are presented in the next section. BPA was the

source for most of this information. Two journal articles are included that

describe perceived inefficiencies in the planning and operation of BPA. In

addition, an article produced by the Oak Ridge National Lab is included which

compares the costs and benefits between construction of short-lead-time power

plants and conservation.

The third electric power section. Resource Planning: Conservation, includes

a description of how conservation is addressed in BPA's resource modeling

process. A law review article describes BPA's statutory obligations to implement

conservation. Finally, an article is included which describes the results of one

residential conservation program.

The section on debt repayment and the proposed BTU tax includes

President Clinton's plan for restructuring BPA's debt. Opposing views on

BPA's debt to the Federal Government are expressed in two journal editorials.

A CRS memo is included that estimates the impact of the proposed BTU tax on

residential electric rates. The final section ofthis volume provides an overview

of the Northwest Power Planning Council's functions.

Volume Two

Volume 2 provides background on the Columbia River Basin salmon and

water management. The first section, Salmon^ begins with a CRS Issue Brief

describing the background and issues associated with the decline of wild salmon

stocks in the Columbia River Basin. The issue brief is followed by articles on

the history, threats, scientific uncertainty, and listing controversy of Columbia

River salmon.

The second section. Federal Agency Responsibilities and Actions, includes

articles related to Federal agency responsibilities for fish and wildlife

management under the Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and

Conservation Act, as well as responsibilities related to the listing of salmon

species under the Endangered Species Act (PX. 93-205).

The third section is WaterManagement' Conflicts and User Concerns. This

section includes articles from various water users' perspectives, as well as some

independent economic analyses of competing interest in the Columbia River

Basin. The section also includes articles on water rights issues and potential

legal and institutional implications of the salmon listings.

Proposals and Alternatives for Pacific Northwest Salmon Recovery and

Water Management is the final section of this volume. The lead document in

this section is a summary of the Northwest Power Planning Council's "Strategy

for Salmon.' There are many other proposals, including one from the State of

Idaho, based on drawdown of key reservoirs to flush salmon smolts to sea. In
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interest of keeping this volume to a majiageable proportion, we have included

only the Council's strategy in this section, slong with broad proposals for the

general enhancement of Pacific Northwest salmon populations. Also included

are selected articles on the potential economic impacts of various proposals.

We hope this information is useful to the Bonneville Power Administration

Task Force. Please call us if we can offer further assistance to the Committee

or the BPA Task Force.
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This volume of the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) Task Force

Briefing Book includes sections on BFA's legal authorities, court cases involving

BPA, and electric power issues.

In addition to an indexed copy of the Pacific Northwest Electric Power

Planning and Ckjnservation Act (Pl,.96-501), the first section contains the

relevant annotated code. A selection of ei^teen court cases provides an

overview of legal issues that have been presented since enactment of the Pacific

Northwest Power Planning and Conservation Act,

The remaining sections in Volume 1 contain material on electric power

issues. The section titled Pacific Northwest Electric Power and Conservation

Act-General, presents a CRS report, journal article and law review articles,

describing the Act's implementation and BPA's general responsibilities.

BPA's resource plans are presented in the next section. BPA is the source

for most of this information. Two journal articles are included that describe

perceived inefficiencies in the planning and operation of BPA. In addition, an

article produced by the Oak Ridge National Lab is included which compares the

costs and benefits of short-lead-time power plants and conservation.

The third power section, Resource Planning: Conservation, includes a

description of how conservation is addressed in BPA's resource modeling

process. A law review article describes BPA's statutory obligations to unplement

conservation. Finally, an article is included which describes the results of one

residential conservation program.

The section on debt repayment and the proposed BTU tax includes

President Clinton's plan for restructuring BPA' a debt Opposing views on

BPA's debt to the Federal government are expressed in two journal editorials.

A CRS memo is included that estimates the impact of the proposed BTU tax on

residential electric rates. The final section of this volume provides an overview

of the Northwest Power Planning Council's functions.
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COLUMBIA RIVER BASIN SALMON & WATER MANAGEMENT

I. Salmon: History, threats, scientific uncertainty, listing

complications

n. Agencies: Review of Federal agencies' fish and wildlife

authorities and responsibilities, and agencies'

descriptions of activities related to salmon listing

m. Water Management: User conflicts and concerns

IV. Proposals : Alternatives for future management of resources

within the Columbia River Basin
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April 23, 1993

MEMORANDUM

TO: CoBunittee on Natural R««ourc«8, Bonneville Power
Administration Task Force, Majority Members

FROM: Majority Staff, Committee on Natural Resources

RE: Task Force Hearing on the Bonneville Power
Administration's Fiscal Year 1994 Budget, April 28,

1993, 1:00 p.m.. Room 1324 Longworth House Office Bldg.

Purpose of the Hearing

BPA is currently experiencing a financial crisis due to a

wide variety of factors, including low aluminum prices ( "DSI"

power rate is linJced to the price of aluminum) , increased
electric demand, the closure of the Trojan nuclear plant, a

series of extremely dry years, failure to increase rates in the

past, and modifications in power operations to reduce harm to

endangered salmon. As a consequence BPA may have to increase

power rates by more than twenty percent. This rate increase will

be permanent even if weather conditions improve.

In order to reduce the amount of the rate increase the

Administrator of BPA, Randy Hardy, plans to cut the BPA budget in

a number of areas. The budget choices that BPA meOces in the

context of the current crisis will not only affect BPA's near-

term fin«UK3ial viability, they will also involve important policy

decisions relating to its energy resource mix, energy efficiency,

the protection of salmon and many other issues. The purpose of

this hearing is to identify areas where BPA can cut its budget

and reduce the proposed rate increase without compromising
important policy goals.

Background on BPA Task Forc*

The Task Force will convene for the first time at this April

28th hearing and pursuant to Democratic Caucus rules will



252

- 2 -

conclude its hearing activity no later than October 28, 1993.
The Task Force will be chaired by Representative Peter DeFazlo
and composed of Members of the Committee on Natural Resoxirces.

The mission of the Task Force is to conduct oversight of BPA
and of Implementation of the Pacific Northwest Electric Power
Planning and Conservation Act and the Federal Columbia River
Transmission Act of 1974. The Task Force will consider a wide
range of Issues, including BPA's proposed energy resource
acquisitions, efforts to save the endangered salmon, Columbia
Basin water management and the long-term financial status of BPA.

The Task Force will consist of the following Members:

Maiorltv MingrltY
Peter A. DeFazlo, Chair Robert F. Smith
Philip R. Sharp Barbara Vucanovich
Pat Williams Craig Thomas
Richard H. Lehman John Doolittle
Larry LetRocco Don Young (ex officio)
Karen Shepherd
George Miller (ex officio)

BPA Background

BPA was originally established within the Department of
Interior in 1937 to market and distribute power from federal
hydroelectric projects in the Pacific Northwest. Over time the
responsibilities of the agency have gro%m to include the
acquisition of new energy resources, the protection of fish and
wildlife and regional energy planning.

In 1977 BPA was transferred to the Department of Energy. The
agency presently markets and distributes power generated at 30

Corp of Engineer and Bureau of Reclamation dams, the WNP-2
nuclear power plant, and other generating facilities. BPA also
funds and im>l«Bents demand-side management programs and fish and
wildlife restoration activities. BPA provides services in
Oregon, Washington, Idaho, western Montana and small parts of
Nevada, Wyoming, California and Utah. Approximately one-half of
the electrical energy consumed in the Pacific Northwest is
provided by BPA. BPA also dominates the electrify transmission
system in the Northwest, it owns and operates approximately
15,000 miles of transmission lines and provides about eighty
percent of the region's transmission capacity.

The Administrator of BPA is a political appointee who serves
at the pleasure of the Secretary of Energy. Under the
reorganization plan recently Issued by Secretary O'Leary, the BPA
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Administrator will report directly to the Deputy Secretary of
Energy. During the Bush Administration the Administrator
reported to the Assistant Secretary for Conservation and
Renewable Energy.

status of the Rate Case

BPA is in the process of developing electric rates for the
next two years beginning in October 1993. BPA rates are set by
the Administrator following an adjudicative ratemaJcing process
that is presided over by an administrative law judge. After the
Administrator has set the rates they are then reviewed by FERC
before they go into effect.

In January 1993 BPA proposed increasing the priority firm
rate by 11.6 percent. Since that time BPA's financial condition
has worsened significantly due to low alxuninum prices, cold
weather, low streamflows and other factors. BPA now believes
that it may have to raise rates by more than twenty percent.

BPA is currently conducting settlement discussion with the
parties to the rate case. It expects to make a new rate proposal
in June 1993.

Rate Case Ex Parte Rules

Because the rate case is considered through a formal
adjudicative hearing process it is imlawful for BPA staff to
engage in any ex parte communications relating to the rate case.
The purpose of the ex parte rule is to prevent BPA from being
influenced by "back door" private communications that the public
and parties to the rate case are unaware of.

Section 1010.2(d) of BPA's hearing procedures defines an ex
parte communication as follows:

... an oral or written communication regarding the merits of
any issue pending in a hearing conducted pursuant to
Northwest Power Act section 7(1) which is not on the record
and with respect to which reasonable notice has not been
given, but it shall not include requests for status reports
on any hearing.

In a letter dated J^ril 14, 1993 BPA notified the parties to
the rate case that the BPA Task Force hearing "may also consider
issues and potential budget savings and efficiencies that may
have been raised as issues in the rate case." Because BPA has
provided notice to the parties the most likely outcome of any ex
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parte comniuilcation by a Member of the Task Force at the hearing
is that BPA will notify the Administrative Law Judge of the
communication and he will give the parties to the rate case an
opportunity to respond on the record to the communication.

If you have any questions about the ex parte rules please
contact the Majority Staff.

BPA Budget Cuts

On April 9, 1993 Administrator Hardy announced a series of
actions to improve BPA's near-term financial status and reduce
the euBOunt of the proposed rate increase. Hardy announced that
BPA would "move to terminate" two uncompleted nuclear plants,
WNP-1 and WNP-3 that were built by the Washington Public Power
Supply System (HPPSS) . For the past ten years these plants have
been preserved and maintained so that the option of completing
construction was available. The current cost of this
"mothballing" is about $10 million per year. BPA expects that
termination of these plants will bring significant savings by the
mid-1990s.

Hardy also plans to cut BPA administrative costs by 50
percent by reducing expenditures for travel, training, office
supplies, overtime, and reducing temporary and on-site contractor
employment. BPA also will continue a "limited" hiring freeze and
is considering closing one or more field offices.

Finally, BPA has reopened their budget process for FY 1994
to consider reductions of up to twenty-five percent.

Overview of BPA's Proposed FY 1994 Budget

The proposed FY 1994 Budget that BPA has submitted to
Congress is based upon assumptions made in January 1993. These
assumptions are no longer valid and BPA has reopened its budget
process as part of its effort to limit the rate increase.
Consequently, the numbers in FY 1994 Budget are now only
reference points for BPA's ongoing review of its budget and do
not even include the budget cuts recently announced by
Administrator Hardy.

The following table summarizes BPA's proposed FY 1994
Budget.
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DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
FY 1»4 CONGRESSIONAL BUDGET SUBMITTAL

BONNEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION
CURRENT SERVICES

(in ihousands of doUan)

EXPENSED OBLIGATIONS/OUTLAYS
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Potential Budget Savings

Representative DeFazio, the Chair of the Task Force, has
submitted a series of questions regarding the proposed FY 1994
Budget for BPA's response prior to the hearing. The purpose of
these questions (copy attached) is to identify potential areas
where BPA can produce budget savings and efficiencies. BPA's
responses will be provided to your office as soon as they are
received.

What follows is a summary of the major budget issues raised
in the questions submitted by Representative DeFazio:

Personnel

:

Some BPA customers have suggested that BPA could operate
more efficiently, and at a lower cost, with fewer personnel.
The proposed FY 1994 Budget allocates 3,483 FTE positions to
BPA. This FTE number does not include contractor or
temporary FTE, overtime, holiday and seasonal workers.

Contractor Expenses:

Like most federal agencies, BPA spends a significant euBount
on outside contractors.

Washington Public Power Supply System (WPPSS)

;

BPA reimburses WPPSS for the expense of operating the WNP-2
nuclear power plant and the "mothballing" expenses for the
incomplete WNP-1 and WNP-3 plants. BPA recently announced
its intent to terminate mothballing of WNP 1-3. Critics of
WNP-2 operations claim that the plant's operating expenses
are considerably higher than the nuclear industry average
and that BPA should exercise stricter oversight over WNP-2
expenditures

.

Consttrvation

;

According to the Northwest Power Planning Council, BPA has
not been aggressive in reducing the administrative costs of
its conservation programs. Many BPA . customers complain that
the BPA process for approving and implementing conservation
programs is cumbersome and bureaucratic and that local
utilities with independent programs are able to achieve
conservation savings cheaper than BPA. Finally, BPA's
conservation efforts have focused primarily on the
residential sector even though less expensive conservation
opportunities exist in the commercial and industrial
sectors

.
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Fuel Switching;

BPA's "Super Good Cents" program provides a $2,500 subsidy
toward the construction of energy-efficient all-electric
homes. These subsidies are provided throughout the BPA
service territory, including areas that are currently served
by natural gas. This has the effect of subsidizing
increased demand for electricity which is counter to the
purpose of energy conservation.

Ironically, BPA intends to meet part of the increased demand
for electricity in the Northwest by purchasing the output of
natural gas turbines. In 1992 BPA signed a letter of intent
to purchase 248 megawatts of output from a natural gas
turbine to be built in Washington State. It must be noted
that direct gas use in the home produces 2 . 5 times more
energy than burning the same gas in a turbine to produce
electricity that is subsequently used for space or water
heating purposes.

Capital Investment

A number of BPA customers have expressed a willingness to
provide capital financing for energy conservation
activities. This could significantly reduce BPA borrowing.
BPA is c\irrently considering these proposals.

Fish and Wildlife

Most of the exp>enses that BPA attributes to fish and
wildlife are the costs of power purchases to firm energy
supplies in low water years, when flow restrictions to
improve salmon migration reduce the available hydropower.
In large part, these power purchase costs cannot be
eliminated because they are governed by salmon transport
requirements mandated under the Endangered Species Act. The
purchase costs could be reduced, however, by aggressive
energy conservation; since the replacement energy costs more
than hydropower generation, higher cost conservation
measures are justified to avoid the energy purchases.

In addition, BPA plans to reduce the cost of its other fish
and wildlife programs by $10-12 million. Some of these
programs have been criticized for yielding little benefit
for the fish, or for addressing obsolete goals to Increase
overall fish numbers without regard to the impact on wild
salmon stocks. For example, certain hatchery operations
financed by BPA may actually contribute to the decline in
wild salmon runs.

If you or your staff have any questions please contact Dan
Adamson (5-1911) or Liz Bimbaum (6-0200) of the Committee Staff
or Jeff Stier of Representative DeFazio's staff (5-6416).

Attachment #1 - Major Statutes Relating to BPA
Attachment /2 - Committee on Natural Resources - BPA Task Forr

Pre-Hearing Questions, April 7, 1993
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Attachment #1

Major Statutes Relating to BPA

Bonneville Project Act of 1937:

Established BPA and directed it to build and operate
transmission lines to deliver power from federal dams and to
market the power at a rate that would recover the Federal
investment in a reasonable period of time. BPA was directed to
make this power available to publicly owned utilities in the
Northwest prior to any sales to investor-owned utilities. This is

known as the "preference" clause.

Act Authorizing the Third PoweiT)lant at Grand Coulee Dam (enacted
June 14, 1966)

:

BPA's method of repayment of its obligations to the U.S.
Treasury was discussed in the legislative history of this Act.
BPA has interpreted this legislative history as follows:

- repayment of capital investments within 50 years;

- investments bearing higher interest rates are paid first;
and,

- interest payments must be paid on schedule, BPA may adjust
the schedule for the repayment of principle.

Federal Columbia River Transmission Act of 1974:

Provided BPA with the authority to use revenues from
ratepayers to directly fund its programs and provided borrowing
authority for BPA to sell bonds to the U.S. Treasury to finance
transmission construction. A total of $1.25 billion in borrowing
authority was authorized.

P.L. 95-91, Department of Energy Organization Act of 1977

Transferred BPA from the Department of the Interior to the
Department of Energy.

Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation Act of

1980:

- Made BPA responsible for meeting the electricity loads of

its customers and authorized BPA to purchase new electricity
resources to meet these needs.
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- Established the Northwest Power Planning Council, a
regional energy and fish and wildlife planning agency. The
Council has two members from the States of Oregon,
Washington, Montana and Idaho. The Act requires that BPA
resource acquisition and fish and wildlife activities be
"consistent" with the recommendations of the Council.

- Required BPA and the Council to give priority to energy
conservation resources when acquiring new energy resources.

- Modified the "preference" clause, which requires to make
firm power resources available to publicly-owned utilities
prior to sales to any investor-owned utilities, to require
BPA to be responsible for meeting all future requirements of
its preference customers.

- Further modified preference through the "residential
exchange" program which provides the benefits of firm
federal power resources available to residential and farm
customers of investor-owned utilities.

- Directed the Council to establish a program to protect and
enhance the fisheries resources of the Columbia River basin.
BPA provides funding for this program through its rates.

- Authorized $1.25 billion in borrowing authority for
conservation and renewable resources.

P.L. 98-50 Energy and Water Development Appropriations for 1983

Authorized an additional $1.25 billion in BPA borrowing
authority.
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ATTACHMENT #2

COMMITTEE ON NATURAL RESOURCES- BPA TASK FORCE
PRE-HEARING QUESTIONS

April 1 . 1993

Overview

1. Please indicate what percentage of the BPA FY 1994 budget is
spent on the following:

- WNP 1,2,3 debt service
- VINP 1,2,3 operations and mothballing
- WNP 4,5 settlement costs
- non-WNP energy resources
- federal/interest principle
- transmission
- residential exchange
- non-WNP operations
- conservation
- fish and wildlife

Operations

1. The amount of the BPA operations budget per year from FY
1980 to FY 1993 and proposed budget for FY 1994, with a
breakdown of operations expenses by function per year.

2. A list of the number of FTE positions, including seasonal
or temporary workers, at BPA by fiscal year from FY 1980 to
FY 1993 and proposed FTE for FY 1994. Please provide a
numerical breakdown for each fiscal year of the following:

- number of FTE at each GS, GM or SES level;
- staff function by program (for example— power

operations, transmission, conservation, public
affairs etc.), and;

- niinber of FTE slots actually filled.

3. The total aaotuit budgeted in FY 94 for purchases of
equipment. Including, but not limited to, computers
vehicles, furniture, and a list and description of these
proposed expenditures.

4. BPA contractor expenditures from FY 1991 to FY 1993 and
proposed expenditures for FY 1994. Please provide a
numerical breakdown for each fiscal year of the following:

- number of contractor employees;
- amount of contractor funding by program;
- contractor equipment purchases paid for by BPA.
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5. It is my understanding that at the most recent "Programs
In Perspective" BPA engineers agreed that in certain cases
local utilities can design and construct power lines below
500 .kv more cost-effectively than BPA. Is this an accurate
statement? If so, how much money could be saved from FY
1994 to FY 1998 if BPA turned this responsibility over to
the local utilities? Are there other areas relating to
transmission that BPA could transfer work to local utilities
to achieve more cost-effective results?

6. Has an independent entity conducted a top to bottom
review of the efficiency of BPA operations? If not, does
BPA intend to initiate such an independent review?

7. BPA has announced that cuts will occur in the
administrative budget, including employee training, travel,
supplies and support services. VRiat level of reductions
will you take from current levels in these and other
administrative areas? What cuts will be taken in FY 94 and
FY 95 from budgeted levels?

Revenues

1. An estimate of the amount of revenues foregone per fiscal
year since the irrigation discount was implemented in 1984,
and an estimate of the revenue increase per year from FY
1994 to FY 1998 if it is eliminated. Is there any statutory
basis for the irrigation discount?

2. An estimate of the amount of revenues foregone per fiscal
year since the low-density discount was implemented, the
revenue increase per year from FY 1994 to FY 1998 if the
discount is eliminated, and an estimate of the revenue
increase, if any. If the discount is modified in accordance
with the proposal submitted by the Northwest Conservation
Act Coalition.

3. It Is my understanding that certain BPA customer
utilities have advanced a proposal to increase BPA's short-
term cash flows by paying their BPA obligations earlier than
they presently do. Please describe the benefits that might
accrue to BPA if this approach was adopted. Does BPA plan
to implement this proposal?

4. An estimate of the effect on revenues in FY 1994 and
annually thereafter if BPA sold 1350 megawatts of Third AC
capacity to participants instead of the 725 megawatts of
capacity BPA currently plans to sell.
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Washington Public Power Supply System

1. An estimate of the savings per year from FY 1994 to FY
1998 if the "mothballing" of WNP 1 and 3 was terminated.

2. An estimate of the revenues that would result if WNP 1
and 3 fuel was sold following the termination of
mothballing.

3. Please provide an estimate of the payment the BPA will
make to WPPSS for the operating costs of WNP-2 in FY 1994.
How do WNP-2 operating costs compare to the nuclear industry
average? Does BPA have a mechanism for auditing WNP-2
operating expenses? Has BPA ever refused to pay any WNP-2
expenses? If so, please state the amount of payment refused
and the rationale or doing so.

4. It is my understanding that WPPSS currently pays its
board members $500 per day of service. Does BPA reimburse
WPPSS for these expenses? If so, please provide an estimate
of the total funding BPA has provided WPPSS since 1980 for
this purpose.

5. Please provide an estimate of WPPSS administrative
expenses that will be reimbursed by BPA in FY 1994.

6. A list of the number of FTE positions at WPPSS, including
contractor, temporary and seasonal employees by fiscal year
from FY 1980 to FY 1994 and proposed FTE for FY 1994. Has
the number of WPPSS staff declined as WPPSS responsibilities
have declined? How does the number of WPPSS staff who are
responsible for the operations of WNP-2 compare to the
nuclear industry average?

7. Please provide WNP-2 operations and maintenance (O&M)
expenditures per year from FY 1985 to the present and
estimated O&M expenditures for FY 1994. What percentage of
those O&M expenditures have been reimbursed by BPA under the
net billing agreement from FY 1985 to the present? How do
WNP-2 O&M expenditures compare to the nuclear Industry
average?

8. Portland General Electric recently concluded that it was
more cost-effective to permanently shutdown the Trojan
reactor than to continue to operate it. Has BPA conducted
any analysis of the long-tezm cost-effectiveness of
continuing to operate the WNP-2 reactor? If so, what are
the results of this analysis?
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Conservation

1. In a letter to Chairman Miller dated March 24, 1993, the
Northwest Power Planning Council stated that BPA "has not
been aggressive in reducing program administrative costs"
for conservation programs. Please identify potential
savings, if any, per fiscal year from FY 1994 to FY 1998
from reducing administrative costs of conservation programs.

2. Please provide an estimate of the total expenditures to
date of the "Super Good Cents" program in areas where
natural gas service is currently available. Please estimate
the budget savings that would result from a termination of
the Super Good Cents program in areas currently served by
natural gas per fiscal year from FY 1994 to FY 1998.

3. It is my understanding that a study has been conducted
which compares the costs of BPA conservation programs per
unit of energy saved to the costs incurred by certain
Northwest utilities per unit of energy saved. Please
provide a copy of this study and explain the differences In
conservation costs, if any, between BPA and regional
utilities.

4. To date BPA's conservation programs have focused
primarily on producing energy savings In the residential
sector. Please provide an estimate of the current cost per
unit of energy saved from residential, commercial and
Industrial conservation programs respectively.

5. Please provide an estimate of BPA expenditures to date on
the Manufactured Housing Acquisition Program (MAP) per
fiscal year. What percentage of these expenditures were
administrative costs? Please provide an estimate of the
percentage of MAP homes that are sited in areas currently
served by natxiral gas.

6. How much electric water heating and space heating load
does BPA currently serve? How much of this load is in areas
currently served by natural gas? What Is the relative
efficiency of burning natural gas In a turbine to produce
electricity which Is used for water and space heating vs.
burning gas on site for this purpose?

7. Please describe the scope of BPA's activities regarding
fuel switching.

8. Please provide an estimate of the amount of energy that
would be saved per year if the two-tiered rates and low-
density discount adjustment recommended by the Northwest
Conservation Act Coalition were implemented (growth
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adjustment and no-growth adjustment model). What is the
earliest possible date that BPA can implement tiered rates?
Has BPA initiated an EIS on tiered rates?

Capital Investment

1. The amount of the BPA capital investment budget per year
from FY 1980 to FY 1993 and proposed budget for FY 1994 with
a breakdown of expenditures by function per year.

2. It is my understanding that BPA is currently considering

a number of proposals for customer capital financing of

conservation activities. Please describe each of these

proposals, ir\cluding the amount and terms and conditions of

such financing, and the amount of energy that would be

saved. Does BPA plan to utilize these proposals to reduce

its dependence on Treasury borrowing?

3. Which capital financing methods have the least impact on
electric rates over the short term? Over the long tern?

4. Please provide projections of net borrowing authority
use from FY 94 to FY 2000. When will your current borrowing
authority for transmission and conservation be fully
utilized?

5. Please provide the bill and report language that
authorized the three separate increments of borrowing
authority totalling $3.75 billion. Also provide any BPA
doc\iments that clarify what type of capital Investments each
Increment of borrowing authority can be used for.

Pish and Wildlife

1. BPA staff have stated that fish and wildlife spending
amounts to about $300 million per year. Please provide an

accounting by year for expenditures and estimates of

foregone revenue for fish and wildlife measures since 1978.

For each year, provide costs of the net effects of the water

budget and the additional flow augmentation provided by the

Northwest Powar Planning Council phase two amendments;

repayment for bypass Improvements, reimbursements to other

federal agencies and their purpose, and the fish and

wildlife program expenses.

2. What percentage of the FY 1992, 1993 and proposed FY 1994

budget are/were devoted to the Implementation of Council

program measures and what amount are/were spent for other

purposes? Please provide a list of all non-program measures
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in these budgets, including the rationale, cost and purpose
of each measure.

3. It is my understanding the BPA is currently reducing
program budgets throughout the agency. Do you intend to
defer implementation of the Northwest Power Planning
Council's Strategy for Salmon? If so, in what areas and
what savings would result in FT 1994? Do you intend to
defer any non-program measures? If so, in what areas and
what savings would result in FY 1994?

4. It is my understanding that BPA has a contract relating
to salmon with Resources for the Future. What is the
purpose of the contract? How much has BPA spent on this
contract to date and how much does BPA plan to spend in FY
1994?

5. How many biologists currently work for BPA either
directly or under contract? Is the role of BPA's biological
staff to implement the recommendations of the National
Marine Fisheries Service and the Council or to come up with
alternatives?

6. Has BPA contracted with the University of Washington to
do a modeling effort that is similar to one already
conducted by the Northwest Power Planning Council? If so,
what is the purpose of this contract and how much will it
cost?

7. It is my understanding that BPA has contracted for a
"shadow" biological opinion similar to the one conducted by
the National Marine Fisheries Service. Is this correct? If
so, what is the purpose of this contract and how much will
it cost?

8. How much has BPA budgeted for the squawfish program in FY
1994? Of this amount how much will go directly for the
payment of bounties to fishermen? Please describe the
status and results of research on the effectiveness of the
squawfish program.

9. Please describe the so called "lease back/buy back" fish
program. How much will this program cost in FY 1994?
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